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INSTRUCTIONS FOR COMPLETION OF THE APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

be used for all proposed construction or modification projects (including the

acquisition of major medical equipmen) subject to the permit requirements of the Illinois Health Facilitics Planning Act.
Persons making application should havg and refer to the Planning Act and the rules promulgated thereunder (77 IAC 1100
ct. scq.). This application form docs not supersede any of thosc rulcs and requirements that arc currently in cffcet,

The application form is divided into several scctions, dealing with information requirements and review critenia for Parts
1110 and 1120, Complete and submit ONLY those sections along with the required attachments that are applicable to the
type of project proposed. Questions conceming completion of this form may be directed to the Health Facilities Planning
Board staff at (217} 782-3516. Copies of this application form are available on computer diskette and by clcctronic mail.

1. Please observe the following general requirements with respect to completion of the application:

A.

B.

F.

G.

Usc this form as written Jnd formatted.

Submit only those sections of the application form that are applicablc to the proposed project. Attachments
for each section should bﬁ appended after the last page of that section. Begin each attachment on a separate
sheet and print or type the attachment identification in the lower right-hand comer of each attachment page.

Provide all information lpon 8 %"x11" paper and print or type the information only on one side of the
page. All documents must be single sided and size 8 /2" by 11"

Information to be considered must be included with the applicable section attachments. Refcrences to
appended material not included within the appropriate section will not be considered.

Upon completion of the application, number all pages consecutively at the bottom center of cach page.
The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of each applicant entity.

If the application is bound, usc only throe-ring notcbooks. It is rccommended that only the copy containing
the original signatures be placed in such a notcbook.

Failure to follow these general requirements may result in the application being declared incomplete. In

addition, failure to provide
project, or having an invalid

certain required information (e.g. not providing a site for the proposed
entity listed as thc applicant) may result in the application being declared

null and void. Applicants are advised to read Part 1130 with respect to completeness (1130.620(c) and

other requirements.

2. In addition to the requirements previously noted, applicants must comply with the following requirements:

A

FLOOD PLAIN REQUIREMENTS. Bcfore an application for permit involving construction will be
deemed complete, the applicant must provide documentation from the Division of Water Resources of the
Illinois Department of Transportation {217/333-0447) that the project site is or is not in a flood plain, and
that the location of the proposcd projcct complics with the Flood Plain Rule under Exceutive Order #4,
1979,

HISTORICAL PRESERVATION REQUIREMENTS. In accordance with the requirements of the Illinois

Historic Resources Prese
Historic Preservation Ag
Preservation Act provides

ation Act, the Health Facilities Planning Board is required to advise the [ilinois
ency of any projects that could affect historic resources. Specifically the
for a revicw by the Historic Prcservation Agency to detcrming if certain projects

may impact upon historic resources. Such types of projects include:
i.  Projects involving demolition of any structurcs; or

Z

ii. Construction of new buildings; or




.
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iii. Modernization of existing buildings.

Should any of these or other types of projects (including those for acquisition of major medical equipment)
result in changes in the character or use of historic property or if there is any historic property located in an
“arca of potential effects,” review by the Historic Preservation Agency is required. “Area of potential

cffcets™ mcans the geog
character or use of histor

raphical arca or arcas within which an undcrtaking may causc changces in the
¢ properties.

In order to assure that any proposcd construction or modemization project subject to certificate of need

review is not delayed b

the requirements of the Historic Resources Prescrvation Act, please submit the

following information ta the Illinois Historic Preservation Agency (Preservation Services Division, Old

State Capitol, Springficlq
can be identified, and the

1, Illinois 62701) so known or potential cultural resources within the project arca
project’s effects on significant propertics can be evaluated:

i. General projectdescription and address:

ii. Topographic onlmetropolitan map showing the gencral location of the project;
iii. Photographs ofjany standing buildings/structures within the projcct arca;

iv. Addresses for bLiildings/structures if present.

The Historic Preservatioh Agency will provide a determination letter conceming the applicability of the
Preservation Act. Include the detcrmination letter or comments from the Historic Preservation Agency
with the submission of|the application for permit. Information conceming the Historic Resources
Prcscrvation Act may be pbtained by calling (217) 782-4836.

If a determination letter from the Historic Preservation Agency is not submitted, the following information
MUST be submiited with' the application for permit:

i. Detailed map/site plans indicating the complete project area.

ii. 35mm photographs of all buildings/structures within the project area, with addresses and
construction date on the back of each photo.

iii. Projoct narrativé, with cmphasis on the conscquences of the plan on the building/structurcs within
the project arca.

iv. Listing of fcderal and other state agencies which potentially would be involved in the project,
either through funding, licensing, permitting or othcr forms of official support/approval.

Failure to provide a determination letter from the Historic Preservation Agency that the project is
not subject to the Historic Resources Preservation Act or failure to provide the required information
detailed above may result in delays in processing the application for permat.

3. An application processing ch (refer to 77 TAC 1130.620(f)(1)) for the determination of the application
processing fee) is required to be submittcd with most applications. Tf a fee is applicable, an initial fee of $2,500
MUST accompany the applicattion. The application is incomplete and review will not be initiated if the initial
fee is not submittcd. The State} Agency will inform applicants of the amount of the fee balance, if any, that must
be submitied. Payment muslt be by check or money order and must be made payable to the Illinois
Department of Public Health

4. Submit an original and one copy of all applicable scctions of the application, including all attachments thereto.
The original must contain orignal signatures in the certification portion of this form. SUBMIT ALL COPIES
TO: Executive Secretary, Winois Health Facilities Planning Board, 525 West Jefferson Street - Second Floor,
Springfield, Illinois 62761-0001

3
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This section must be completed fo

A. Facility/Project Identificatio

. Applicant Identification {pro

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS

C. Primary Contact Person (per

2. Post Permit Contact Person (
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ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES PLANNING BOARD

APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION 1. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION (IDEN)

Facility Name_Mercy Hosp

lLall projects.

ital and Medical Center

Exaet Legal Name _Mercy H

vide for cach co-applicant [refer to Part 1130.220] and insert afier this page)

ospital and Medical Center

Address _2525 S Michigan Ave
Chicago, 1L 60616 Namc of Registcred Agent Sister Sheila Lyne
Name of Chicf Exceutive Officer Sister Sheila Lyne Title President / CEQ

CEO Addrcss 2525 S, Michigan Ave , Chicago, IL 60616

Telephonc No. (312)567-2100

Type of Ownership: X Non-p
O Partnership

rofit Corporation O For-profit Corporation O Limited Liability Company
O Governmental O Sole Proprietorship [ Other (specify)

Corporations and limited liability companics must provide an Hlinois certificate of good standing; partnerships

must provide the name of the s
whether cach is a general or lif

Name Richard Cerceo

tate in which organized and the name and address of each partner specifying
nited partner.

ATTACHMENT IDEN-1 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.
son who is to receive correspondence or inquiries during the review period)

Title _Chief Qperating Officer

Company Name_Mercy Hos

pital and Medical Center

Address 2525 S. Michigan Ave., Chicago, IL 60616

Telephone No. _(312 ) 567-2255

E-mail_rcerceo@mercy-chicago.org

Addrcss2525 S. Michigan Ave

, Chicago, IL 60616 Fax Number (312 }567-7089

who also is authorized to discu

Name _Tom Garvey.

. Additional Contact Person (pcrson such as consultant, attorney, financial representative, registered agent, ctc.

5s application and act on behalf of applicant)

Title _Chief Financial Officer

Company Name¢ _Mercy Hospital and Medical Center

Address 2525 S _Michiga

Ave  Chicaao, JL 60616

Telephone No. _(312)567-2580

E-mail Address _tgarvey@mercy-chicago.org Fax Number __ (312 ) 567-7089

person to whom all correspondence and inquiries pertaining (o the project

subsequent to permit issuance are to be directed)

Name _Richard Cerceo

Title _Chief Operating Officer

Company Name_Mercy Hos

ital and Medical Center

Address _ 2525 S Michigan Ave , Chicago L 60616

Telephonce No. _{312)567-2255

E-mail Address _fcerceo@mercy-chicago.org

Fax Number ( 312 ) 567-7089

L/
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. ILLINOIS HEALTH FACILITIES PLANNING BOARD
APPLICATION FOR PERMIT

SECTION 1. IDENTIFICATION, GENERAL INFORMATION, AND CERTIFICATION (IDEN)

This section must be completed for all projects.

=

A. Facility/Project ldentificatio

Facility Name_Mercy Hospital and Medical Center

B. Applicant Identification (pravide for each co-applicant [refer to Part | 130.220] and insert after this page)

Exact Legal Name Mercy Health System of Chicago
Address 2525 S. Michigan Ave., Chicago, IL 60616

Namc of Registered Agent Sister Sheila Lyne
Name of Chief Executive Officer Sister Sheila | yne Title President/CEQ
CEO Address 2525 S. Michigan Ave., Chicago, IL 60616 Tclcphone No. (312)567-2100
Type of Ownership: ® Non-grofit Corporation 1 For-profit Corporation O Limited Liability Company

] Partnf:rshi}g O Governmental O Sole Proprictorship O Other (specify)

Corporations and limited liability companies must provide an Illinois certificate of good standing; partnerships
must provide the name of the state in which organized and the name and address of each partner specifying
whether each is a gencral or limited partner.

. APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT IDEN-1 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

C. Primary Contact Person (pefson who is to reccive corrcspondence or inquiries during the review period)

. Additianal Centact Person (;

Name

Title

Company Name

Address

Telephone No. _{ )

E-mail

Addrcss

Fax Number ( )

who also is authorized to discu

berson such as consultant, attorney, financial representative, registered agent. etc.
ss application and act on behalf of applicant)

Namg Title
Company Name
Address
Telephone No. _( )
E-mail Addrcss Fax Number __{ }

subsequent to permit issuance

Name

. Post Permit Contact Person (person to whom all correspondence and inquirics pertaining to the project

arc to be directed)

Title

Company Name

Addrcss

Tclephone No. _( )

E-mail Address

Fax Number ( )
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APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS

H.

X

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS

F.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS

Site Ownership (complete th

Exact Legal Name of Person
Address of Site Owner _252

Application for Permit February 2003 Edition Page 5
s information for each applicable site and inscri after this page)

Who Owns Site nter

icago. 1L 60616

Street Address or Legal Desc
Operating Entity/Licensee (

Exact Legal Name
Address 2525 S. Michiga

Type of Ownership: & Non-p
O Partnershi

Corporations and limited liabi

must provide the name of the
whether cach is agencral or li

Organizational Relationship
Provide (for each co-applicant

related (related person is defin
funding of the project, describy

Status of Previous Certificat
Provide the project number fot
(completion is defined in Part
complete, indicate NONE:

Flood Plain Requirements {

Provide documentation regard

b S. Michigan Ave., Chic
iption of Site _2525 S_ Michigan Ave., Chicago. |L 60616

omplete this information for cach applicable facility and insert after this page)

ical Center
il 60616

Ave.. Chicago

ofit Corporation O For-profit Corporation O Limited Liability Company
0 Governmental O Solc Proprictorship O Other (specify)

lity companics must provide an Illinois certificate of good standing; parinerships
btate in which organized and the name and address of each partner specifying
mitcd partncr.

ATTACHMENT IDEN-2 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

an organization chart containing the name and rclationship of any person who 15
od in Part 1130.140). If the rolated person is participating in the development or
¢ the intcrest and the amount and type of any financial contribution.

ATTACHMENT IDEN-3 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

e of Need Projects

any of the applicant’s projects that have received permits but are not yet complete
1130.140) and provide the current status of the project. If all projects arc

ONE

=fer to instructions for completion of this application)
ng compliance with the Flood Plain requirements of Executive Ocder #4, 1979

ATTACHMENT IDEN-4 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THiS SECTION.
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. K. Historic Resources Preservation Act Requirements (refer to instructions for completion of this application)

Provide documentation regardi

{

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS

L. Project Classification (check

ng compliance with the requirements of the Historic Resources Preservation Act.
ATTACHMENT IDEN-5 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

those applicable, refer to Part 1110.40 and Part 1120.20.b)

I, Part 1110 Classification 2. Part 1120 Applicability or Classification: {check onc only)

& Substantive
0O Nen-substantive

M. Narrative Description

O Part 1120 Not Applicable { Category A Project
J DHS or DVA Project ™ Category B Project

Provide in the space below a brief narrative description of the project. Explain what is to be done, NOT why it
s being done. Include the rationale as to the project’s classification as substantive or non-substantive. Ifthe

project site does NOT have a §

See Attached.

treet address, include a legal description of the site.




Section I, Item M. Narrative Description

Mercy Hospital and Medical Center (the "Hospital") is an acute care hospital sponsored by the
Sisters of Mercy of the Americasl7 The Hospital has been serving Chicago since 1852 and currently
serves 38% Public Aid patients (75% of the Hospital's Birthing Center patients are Public Aid
beneficiaries). The Hospital, together with its corporate member, Mercy Health System of Chicago
(collectively, the "Applicants") proposes to modernize its Birthing Center (OB/GYN), the Cardiac
Care Unit ("CCU") of its intensive care department, and its Gastrointestinal Laboratories ("GI
Labs"). Because two of these units will be relocated in part, the Applicants also plan to renovate a
small number of medical/surgical:lbeds and certain non-clinical support space, as these areas are
impacted by the modernization of the CCU and the GI Labs, respectively. Due to the renovations,
the Hospital is required to update|its S-27 Air Handler, a non-clinical project. The final non-clinical

portion of the project is the instal
Hospital's fire alarm system, as re

This project will not add any beds
portions of the Hospital.

Birthing Center Modernization {(Q

ation of a Hospital-wide sprinkler system and an upgrade to the
quired by various legal requirements, discussed below.

or new categories of service and is strictly a modernization of

B/GYN)

The modernization to the Hospital

Labor Delivery/Receiving rooms,

's Birthing Center will consist of reconfiguring and renovating the
nursery, and post-partum care areas, in addition to the required

support spaces for the unit. Speciklcally, the Hospital will renovate the unit to add two single post-

partum rooms, one of which will
partum rooms for complicated lon
decrease the number of nursery bz
newbormns will be "rooming-in" in
re-apportion the split between wel
be included. The modernization ¥
staff offices (for a total of 4), and
will be relocated to other areas of
of the birthing area with easy acce

1

meetings. The number of LDR r
conference room will not increase
private bathtubs and the post-p

of newbomns. In conjunction wit
and electrical will be updated to ¢
OB/GYN beds; this will not cha

e an isolation post-partum room (for a total of 22) and add 2 ante-
g stay labor candidates (for a total of 2). The hospital will

ssinets by 8 (for a total of 20) as, following the renovation, many
the post-partum rooms. The nursery will also be reconfigured to

1 babies, Special Care and NICU needs. An isolation nursery will

vill eliminate one c-section room (for a total of 2), eliminate 2
eliminate 7 on-call rooms (for a total of 2). Certain staff offices
the building. A new nurse station will be constructed in the core

ss to all birthing rooms and a small conference area for staff

opms, the prep/recovery unit, the exam/triage rooms, and the large
or decrease. The LDR rooms will be modernized to include

m rooms will be modemnized to accommodate the "rooming-in"

h|the modemization, the HVAC, medical gases system, plumbing,

L

rrespond to the renovation. The Hospital has 30 licensed

nge. The square footage of the unit also will not change. The

:

existing Birthing Center will remdin in operation throughout the duration of the renovation.

CCU Modernization (Intensive Ca

re)

The CCU is a specialty care unit v

post-procedure cardiac patients. T
the unit, consclidating the unit at
intensive care beds, 14 of which a

vithin the intensive care unit that is designed to administer care to
he modernization of the CCU proposes to relocate a portion of
yne end of the eleventh floor. The Hospital has 30 licensed

¢ staffed as surgical intensive care beds and 16 of which are

J

NARRATIVE




currently staffed as CCU intensive care beds. The Hospital proposes to renovate the unit, which
will include the addition of three |isolation rooms (for a total of four), two of which will be ADA
compliant. The patient rooms will be renovated, and a family lounge, conference room, small
nurses' station, physician consultation area, and data room will be added. F ollowing the renovation,
the Hospital will staff 14 cardiac intensive care beds. In conjunction with the modernization, the
mechanical, electrical, lighting, power, and plumbing systems (as well as a few specialized systems,
such as the nurse call system, intércom system, and television system) serving the CCU will be
updated. The surgical portion of the intensive care unit ("SICU"} is not being renovated and the
number of licensed intensive care beds (30) will not change. Portions of the CCU will remain in
operation throughout the duration of the renovation.

Medical/Surgical Modernization

In conjunction with the CCU modernization, the Applicants propose to renovate five of the adjacent
medical/surgical beds vacated by |the relocated CCU, as well as a nurses' station. No
medical/surgical beds are being added and the Hospital's remaining medical/surgical beds will
remain in operation throughout the duration of the renovation.

1 Lab Modernization

The GI Lab Department is a specialty care unit within the Hospital's ambulatory surgery department
dedicated solely to performing GI procedures. The modemnization of the GI Labs will relocate and
consolidate these labs to the east ¢nd of the ambulatory surgery unit. Four procedure rooms will be
modemized, along with eight induction/recovery bays, a central nurse's station, soiled and clean

utility rooms, scope cleaning and

storage facilities, and miscellaneous required support functions.

In conjunction with the modernization, the mechanical, electrical, lighting, power, and plumbing
systems (as well as a few specialized systems, such as the nurse call system, intercom system, and

television system) serving the Gl
number of the Hospital's licensed

Labs will be updated. This modernization will not increase the
beds, nor will it increase the square footage of the GI Labs. The

project will be executed in phasesjand the GI Labs will remain in operation throughout the

modernization.

Non-clinical Modernization

In conjunction with the partial rel
soiled and clean support areas, ad
nurses' lounge will be renovated.

t:ation of the GI Labs and the CCU, a staff locker, toilet room,
inistrative offices, a storage area, a women's locker room, and a
The Hospital's S-27 Air Handler will also be updated, which is a

non-clinical project, as it is required by the Life Safety Code.

Sprinkler System/Fire Alarm Upgrade (Non-clinical)

The project also includes the installation of a Hospital-wide sprinkler system and an upgrade to the
Hospital's fire alarm system. This portion is non-clinical and necessary to comply with the Life
Safety Code, the Chicago High-Rise Sprinkler Ordinance, and the Life Safety Ordinance of the
Chicago Fire Department and Fire Prevention Bureau.

q

NARRATIVE




Project Cost

The estimated project cost for the modernization of the Birthing Unit, the GI Labs, the CCU, and
the related clinical modernization is $14,966,707. The estimated cost of the non-clinical portion of
the project (non-clinical space, sprinklers and fire alarm upgrade) is $14,062,449. The estimated

total project cost is $29,029,156.

Project Classification

The project is classified as substdntive, as the total project cost of $29,029,156 exceeds the Illinois

Health Facilities Planning Board

review threshold. The project will be financed by the Department

of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) under the Section 242 Mortgage Insurance Program.
The first full year of operation for the medernized areas will be 2011.

10,

NARRATIVE
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N. Project Costs and Sources ¢

Complete the following table
or any component of a projec
dollar value (rcfer to Part 119
project contains components
the portions that are solely fo
home’s costs from the compo
project that includes a parking

f Funds

y garage.

Application for Permit February 2003 Edition Page 7

listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a project
| is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the fair market or
0.40.b) of thc componcnt must be included in the cstimated projoct cost. 1f the

hat are not related to the provision of health care, complete an additional tablc for

- health carc and insert that table following this page (e.g. separate a nursing

hents of a retirement community; separate patient care area costs from a hospital

HEALTH CARE PROJECT:

]LROJECT COST AND SOURCES OF FUNDS

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil

Investigation

Site Preparation

417,318

OIf Silec Work

New Construclion Cantracts

Modemization Contrixcts

10,361,630

Contingencics

905,574

Architectural/Engine

Ln’ng Fees

1,146,329

Consulting and Other Fees

77,814

Movable or Other Equipment (not in construction contracts) 2,058,042

Bond Issuance Expellse (project related)

Net Interest Expense

During Construction {project related)

Fair Market Value of

Leased Space or Equipment

Other Costs To Be Capitalized

Acquisition of Buildi

ng or Other Property (excluding land)

ESTIMATED TOTA

L PROJECT COST 14,966,707

Cash and Securilies

2,135,856

Pledges

Gifis and Bequests

Bond Issues (project

related)

12,830,851

Mongages

Leases (fuir market v

aluc)

Governmental Appro

priations

Grants

Other Funds and Sou

Ces

TOTAL FUNDS

14,966,707

[
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N. Project Costs and Sources ¢f Funds

Complete the following table|listing all costs (refer to Part 1120.110) associated with the project. When a project
or any component of a project is to be accomplished by lease, donation, gift, or other means, the fair market or
dollar valuc (rcfer to Part 1190.40.b) of the componcnt must be included in the cstimated project cost. 1f the
project contains components that are not relatcd to the provision of health care, complete an additional table for
the portions that arc solely for health care and insert that tablc following this page (¢.g. separate a nursing
home’s costs from the components of a retirement community; separate patient care area costs from a hospital

project that includes a parking garage. NON-CLINICAL PROJECT:

|
PROJECT COST AND SOURCES OF FUNDS

Preplanning Costs

Site Survey and Soil Investigation

Site Preparation

QIf Sile Work

New Construction Contracts

Modemization Contricts 14 062,449

Contingencies

Architectural/Enginedring Fees

Consulting and Other|Fees

Movablc or Other Equipment (not in construction coniracts)

Bond Issuance Expenl;c {project related)

Net Interest Expense buring Construction {project related)

Fair Market Valuc of Leased Space or Equipment

Other Costs To Be Cabitalized
1

Acquisition of Buildinig or Other Property (excluding land)

ESTIMATED TOTAL PROJECT COST 14,062,449

Cash and Securities

Pledges

Gifis and Bequests

Bond Issues (project related) 14,062,449

Morgages

Leases (Tair market value)

Govcrmmental Appropridtions

Granls

Othier Funds and Sourges

TOTAL FUNDS 14,062,449
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0. Related Project Costs

1. Provide the following inf

has been acquired during
£1 No land acquisition 1s ¥
Does the project involve ¢
If yes, provide the dollar

through the first full fisca
1100.

Estimated start-up costs a
P. Project Status and Complet

1. Indicate the stage of the p

O Nong or not applica

clated to project; Purchase Price $

nd operating deficit cost is $

Application for Permit February 2003 Edition Page 8

hrmation, as applicable, with respect to any land related to the project that will be or
the last two calendar years:

. Fair Market Value$

stablishment of a new facility or a new category of service? 0O Yes X No

amount of all non-capitalized operating start-up costs (including operating deficits)

vear when the project achicves or cxcceds the target utilization specificd in Part

on Schedules

roject’s architectural drawings:

le O Schematics & Preliminary O Final Working

2. Provide the following dates (indicate N/A for any item that is not applicable):

25% of project costs expended June 2009
75% of project costs expended June 2010

100% of project costs

Anticipated project completion date (refcr to Part 1130.140)

50% of project costs expended January 2010
5% of project costs expended_September 2010
Midpoint of construction date _January 2010
January 2011

xpended January 2011

3. Indicate the following with respect to projcct expenditures or to obligation (refer to Part 1130.140):

O Purchase order
a Project obligat

*certification g
& Project obligat

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AY
Q. Cost/Space Requirements
Provide in the format of the fo

total project cost for each depJ
department costs MUST equal

5, leascs, or contracts periaining to the project have been executed,

on is contingent upon permit issuance. Provide a copy of the contingent

f obligation” document, highlighting any language related to CON contingencies.
on will occur after permit issuance.

ATTACHMENT INFO-6 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

llowing example the gross square footage (GSF) and the attributable portion of
rtment/area. Identify cach picce of major medical equipment. The sum of the
the total estimated project costs. Indicate if any space is being reallocated for a

diffcrent purposc. Include outside wall mcasurcment plus the department or arca’s portion of thc surrounding

circulation space. Indicate the

Department/Area Caost
Dictary $1.150.000

Radiation Therapy  3.250,000*
Medical Records 300.000
TOTAL 4,700,000

*Jneludes §1,500.000 for an 18 MEV
1} Existing radiation therapy space

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS

proposed use of any vacated space.
Gross Square Feet Amount of Propesed Total GSF That Is:

Exigting Proposed New Const. Remodeled Asis Vacated Space
3.000 6.000 3.000 1,000 2.000
4.000(1) 5,500 5,500

2,500 6,500 4,000(1) 2,500

9,500 18,000 8,500 5,000 4500

lincar accclerator
will be vacated and yemodeled and converted to medical records.

ATTACHMENT INFO-7 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.
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Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board Application for Permit February 2003 Edition Page 9

R. TFacility Bed Capacity and Utilization

1. Complete the following chart as applicable. Complete a separate chart for each facility that is part of the
project and insert following this page. Provide the existing bed capacity and utilization data for the latest
12 month period for which data is available. Any bed capacity discrepancy from the Inventory will result
with the application being deemed incomplcte.
|

FACILITY NAME Mercy Hospital and Medical Center crry_Chicago

REPORTING PERIOD DATES: From January 1, 2007 to December 31, 2007

Category of Service Existing | Number of | Patient Days Bed Proposed
Beds Admissions Changes Beds
Medical/Surgical 289 8,595 36,739 0 289
Pediatrics a7 345 3,916 0 37
Obstetrics 30 3,260 6,697 0 30
Intensive Carce 30 1,539 5466 0 30
Neonatal ICU 0 0 0 0 0
Acute Mental Illness 39 1,037 6,793 0 39
Rehabilitation 24 354 3,138 0 24
Nursing Carc 0 0 0 0 0
Sheltered Care 0 0 0 0 0
Other (identify) 0 0 0 0 0
Other {identify) 0 0 0 0 0
Other {identify) 0 o 0 0 0
TOTALS 449 15,130 62,749 0 449

2. Is the facility certified for participation in the Medicare “swing bed” (i.e. acutc carc beds certified for
extended care) program? Yes X No

3. For the following categories of scrvice, indicate the number of existing beds that are Medicare certified and
the number of existing beds that are Medicaid certified (if none, so indicate):

Scrvice # Mecdicare Beds #Mgdicaid Beds
Nursing Carc 0 g
ICF/DD Adult g 0

Children DD 0 0
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1Ninois Health Facilities Planning Board

§, Certification

The application must be signed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The authorized
representative(s) are in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its board of directors; in
the case of a limited Lability company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole manager or member

when two or morc managers of members do

the sole general partner when two or more general partners do not exist); in the case of estates and trusts, two of
its beneficiaries (or the sole beneficiary when two or more beneficiaries do not exist); and in the case of a sole
proprietor, the individual that|is the proprictor. The signature(s) must be notarized. TF the application has co-
applicants, a separate certification page must be completed for cach co-applicant and inserted following this

page. One copy of the application must
applicant and for each of the co-applicants.

This Applicatien for Permit is filed on

* in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the Illinois Health Facilities Planning
Act. The undersigned certifies that he or she has the authority to execute and file this application

for permit on behalf of the applicant

information provided her¢in, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or
her knowledge and belief.| The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required
for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon reque . :

Application for Permit February 2003 Edition Page 10

not cxist); in the casc of a partncrship, two of its gencral partners (or

have the ORIGINAL signatures for all persons that sign for the

behalf of Mercy Hospital and Medical Center

entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and

—ZMM e
Signafure 4

Printed Name_ 3R. SWELA LyNE

Signature

Printed Title CE0 _ANN PRESINENT

Printed Name_"THamag . SARVEY
Printed Title ___f1S51570507 Thefsofed

Notarization:
Subscn"\li‘ed and sworn to before me
this Jf"" day of Wiy R00%

Mavig, Cupdia Dkeltam.

Notanzation:
Subscribed and sworn to before me
this day of

Signature of Notary v

Seal

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant

Signature of Notary

Seal

IS
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Ilinois Health Fagilities Planning Board

§. Certification

Application for Permit February 2003 Edition Page 10

The application must be sig ed by the authorized representative(s) of the applicant entity. The authorized
reproscntative(s) are in the case of a corporation, any two of its officers or members of its board of directors; in
the case of a limited liability|company, any two of its managers or members (or the sole manager or member

when two or morc managers

'+ members do not cxist); in the casc of a partnership, two of its gencral partners (or

the sole general partner whenhltwo or more general parmers do not exist); in the casc of estatcs and trusts, two of

its beneficiaries (or the sole
proprietor, the individual that is the proprictor.

encficiary when two or more bencficiaries do not exist); and in the case of a sole
The signature(s) must be notarized. If the application has co-

applicants, a separat¢ certifidation pagc must be completed for each co-applicant and inserted following this

page. One copy of the application must have the
applicant and for cach of the co-applicants,

ORIGINAL signatures for all persons that sign for the

This Application for Permit is filed on behalf of Mercy Health System of Chicago

% in accordance with the requirements and procedures of the Ilinois Health Facilities Planning
Act. The undersigned centifies that he or she has the autherity to execute and file this application
for permit on behalf of the applicant entity. The undersigned further certifies that the data and
information provided hergin, and appended hereto, are complete and correct to the best of his or

her knowledge and belief,

The undersigned also certifies that the permit application fee required

for this application is sent herewith or will be paid upon reques,
l?éw . / @ﬂm

Ao da o

Sigpdture /

Printed Name_9R, SHERA LYNE

Printed Title CEQ ond Qvegidentt

Notarization:
Subscribed and swom to before me
this J'* day of_mmé_

ol

Signature of Notary

Scal

*Insert EXACT legal name of the applicant

1"

Signature U
Printed Name__VHomas . fartiey
Printed Title ﬂgggm‘g Fretsngel

Notarization:
Subscribed and swom to before me
this day of

Signature of Notary

Seal




File Number 0114-154-6

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Greeting:

I, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do
@  lereby certify that

MERCY HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTER, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION,
INCORPORATED UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON JUNE 21, 1852, APPEARS TO
HAVE COMPLIED WITH ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT
CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

In Testimony Whereof, I hereto set
my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of
the State of Illinois, this 31ST

day of MARCH AD. 2008

l ! 3 .:: 4
. Authentication #: 0809100854 M

Authenticate at: http://ww.cyberdriveillinois.com

SECRETARY OF STATE

| 7 ATTACHMENT IDEN-1




File|Number 5257-458-7

To all to whom these Presents Shall Come, Ureeting:

1, Jesse White, Secretary of State of the State of Illinois, do

o hereby certify that

MERCY HEALTH SYSTEM OF CHICAGO, A DOMESTIC CORPORATION, INCORPORATED
UNDER THE LAWS OF THIS STATE ON NOVEMBER 20, 1981, APPEARS TO HAVE

COMPLIED WITH ALL THEP

ROVISIONS OF THE GENERAL NOT FOR PROFIT

CORPORATION ACT OF THIS STATE, AND AS OF THIS DATE, IS IN GOOD STANDING AS
A DOMESTIC CORPORATION IN THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

Thh
. Authentication #: 0808701096

Authenticate at: hitp:/fiwww.cyberdriveillingis.com

In Testimony Whereof, 1 hercto sct

my hand and cause to be affixed the Great Seal of

ie State of Illinois, this 27TH
7y of MARCH AD. 2008

Dvoce WAL

SECRETARY OF STATE

l 3 ATTACHMENT IDEN-1
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1linhois State Water Survey

Main Office - 2204 Grifith Dive * Champaign, IL &1820-7405 ~ Te! (217) 333-2210 = Fox (217 333-6540

ey O Pooria Office - P.O. Bix 697 - Pearla, I 61652-0697 » Te! (309) 671-3196 « Fox (309) 671-3106 w

OLPARTMENT QF

Telephonc: {312) 567-2255

Chicago, IL 60616-2477

NATURAL
RESOURCES
Special Fiood Hazard Area Determination
pursuuni to Governor's Exccutive Order 5 (2006) . l
(supersedes Gavernar's Excentive Order 4 (1972 .
Requester; Richord F. Cercgo, Executive Vice President'Chicf Operating Officer
 Address; Mercy Hospital & Medical Center, 2525 S. Michipan Ave. .

City, state, zip:

Site description of determinatlmln:
Site address: 2525 S. Michigan Ave.

City, stale, zip: _Chicago, IL 60616
County: Cook Secv: SE 1/4 of NW 1/4  Scclion: 27 T. 39N. R 4L PM: _3d

Subjcct arca; Area bounded by E. 25th St on the north, E. 26th St. on the south, 9. Michizan Ave_ on the west, and
Tr. Mactin Luther King Jr. Drive on the east.

1

|15 NOT

located in n Speciat Flood Hazard Area ar shaded Zone X floodzone.

The property deseribed abuve
Floodway on propesty: _INo

Floodway mapped: _N/A

Sources used: FEMA Flaod Insucance Rate Map (FIRM, annotated copy attached); cookeountynssessar.com map/photos. :
Community name; _ City of Chicryzo, 1L Communily number: _170074 :
Panel/rmap pumber: _1703 1C0526 F Effective Date: _November 6, 2000 |

Dase flood clevation:  N/A ft NGVD 1929

Flood zone: X [unshaded]

N/A  a. The community docs not currently participate in the National Flood Mmsurance Pragram (NFIP). :

NFIP Nood inswranc

is not available; ceriain State and Federal assistance may not be available.

N/A b, Panclnot printed: norSpecinl Flood Hazard Area on the pancl (pane! designaoted alf Zone C or unshaded X}.

N/A ¢ No map panels prink

d: no Special Flood Hazard Areas within the community {(NSFHA).

The primary structure on the property: :
/A d. 13 Jocated in a Specidl Flood Hazard Arca. Any activity on the properly must meet State, Federal, and

jocal Moodplain development regulations. Federal law requires ihat a flood insurance pelicy be abined

as a condition of a {&

derally-backed mortgage or loan that is securcd by the building.

N/A ¢ s located in shaded Zone X or D {500-yr floodplain). Conditions may apply for local permits or Federal fundiug,.

¥ I 1s not located in a Special Flood Hazard Area or 500-year floodplain area shown on the cffective FEMA map.
NA . A determination of the building’s exact tocation cannot be made on the curreat FEMA flood hazard map. ‘
/A h. Exact structure location is not available or was not provided for this determination.

Note: This delermination is base

for the community. This letter dﬁs not imply that the seferenced proper

doruage. A property of structure

of the 1llinois State Waler Survey,

predicted on the FEMA map or bT

This tetter docs not excrmpt the pr‘E

Questions concemiug this detern
Questions concerning requireme

on the current Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Mood hazard map
ty will or will not be fice from flooding or

ol in a Special Flood Hazard Area may e damaged by o flood greater than diat
local drainage problems not mapped. This leticr docs not create labiliy on the part
or cmployee thereof for any damage (hat results (rom reliance on this detenuination.
ect from local slormwaicr management regulations.

ation may be directed to Bill Saylor (2 17/333-0447) at the [llinois State Water Survey.

1o Jolm Lentz {847/608-3100 x20l22) at the TDXR OfTice of Water Resources.

Il S flon

s of Gavernor's Exccutive Order 3 {(2006), or State ficodplain regulations, may be dirccred

Title: 1SWS Surface Water & Floodplain Information Date: "f/.)—f/.;lqgg‘

Witliam Suylar, cem Lozantal, lllineis Stp

1e Water Sunvey
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Illinois Historic o
ek Progervation Agfe_n'_cyf

I’..I . _ _ F.lu-: (217) 782-8161
N~ Oid State Cap:tol Plaza- * Springfield, illinois 62701-1512 + www. ilinois- hlstory gov
Cock County” Aﬁf?_'ﬁf L e
_Chlcagb oo S A IR ‘ S
© Rengvation - ﬁercy Hosp1taﬂ:5ﬁd.MéﬂiCa1 Cénter
2835 6. Miclkigdn RAve. ' '
IHFA Log- #_004110_807 L

pecerber 6, ﬁdﬁ?

fbavid Larsoh

- ghicagsy IL 60f04

”ﬁéﬁfjﬁf;_narson=" '

Gieason, Cultura.l o
1 Old State Cap:.tol Plaza,

'ydﬁ. ha\re adiy further diges i G
i Radouices Manager, Ill:.nois ":Lstor:.c Preservation Agency,
'Sprlngfleld It 62701, 217/'785 ,3'97’7. S a

3 {S::Ln‘r-.- e:x.-“elyr .

s
li‘Anne E. Haaker ' e e ST SRS . ;
© ‘Deputy State Higtorie.' Ch : S R |

| _Preservation Offl r R RN

‘12 ,

I

A teletypewriter for the soeechlheanng J‘mpa!red is ava:lable at 217 524—7128 it Is not a voice or fax line.
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Section I, Item Q. Cost/Space Requirements

Department/Area Cost Existing | Proposed GSF: New GSF: GSF; GSF:
GSF GSF Construction | Remodeled Asls | Vacated
Space
OB/GYN $6,520,040 34,398 34,398 0 14,371 20,027 ]

{Birthing Center)

Intensive Care
(Cardiac Intensive $4.362,871

Care Project) 14,066 16,217 0 8,805 7,412 0
Medical/Surgical $864,809 2,708’ 2,708 0 2,708 0 0
GI Laboratories $3,018,987 5,947 5,026 0 5,026 0 0
Non-clinical/

Administrative $696,941 3,376" 3,376 0 3,376 0 0
Space/Staff/

Storage Space

Non-clinical/ Fire

Alarm $6,203,060 716,515° 716,515 0 716,515 0 0
Non-clinical/

Sprinkler System $6,868,920 716,515 716,515 0 458,503° 238,012 0
Non-clinical/ 5-27

Air Handler $493,528 20,571 20,571 0 20,571 0 0
TOTAL $29,029.156 1,514,096 | 1,515,326 0 1,229,875 285,451 0

' The Hospital is consolidating the cardjac portion of its intensive care unit ("CCU™) into one area of the eleventh floor,
as described herein. 4,890 square feet of the existing CCU will remain in place and is being renovated, and 1,764
square feet of the existing CCU space }ill be vacated (see note 2, below). The remaining 3,915 square feet of the new

CCU will include space currently used as medical/surgical space, which will be renovated into CCU space.

2 This reflects the medical/surgical square footage being renovated. Because of the large size of the Hospital's
medical/surgical department, and because the department is spread throughout several floors, obtaining exact square
footage for the entire department would be extremely burdensome for the Hospital.

* The Hospital is consolidating and rendvating the GI portion ("G Lab") of its ambulatory surgical department. 964
square feet of the old GI Lab space plus 4,062 of former general ambulatory surgical space will be renovated to
complete the new relocated GI Lab. The remainder of the old GI space (5,947 square feet existing — 964 existing space
being renovated into the new GI Lab =},983 square feet of old GI Lab space) will be used as follows: 2,292 renovated
for administrative offices, a nurses' lounge, and equipment storage rooms (see note 4). 2,691 square feet of the former
GI Lab space within the ambulatory surgical department will be used by that department as general ambulatory surgical
space but will not be renovated.

4 This non-clinical space includes a cledan and soiled utility room, administrative offices, a nurses’ lounge, storage space,
and a staff locker room.

716,515 is the total square footage of the Hospital.

8 Certain portions of the sprinkler systerln have already been completed.

2 5 ATTACHMENT INFO-7




Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board

Application for Permit February 2003 Edition Page 12

SECTION IIl. GENERAL REVIEW CRITERIA

and those projects that are mon-substantive and subject only to a Part 1120 revicw. Refer to Part 1110.40 for the

This section is applicable to all projec;}EXCEPT those projects that are solely for discontinuation with no project costs

requirement for non-substantive projects.

A. Criterion 1110.230.a, Location N/A

Check if the project will result

in any of the following: O cstablishment of a health care facility: O establishment

of a category of service; O acquisition of major medical equipment (for treating inpatients) that is not or will not
be located in a health carc facility and is not being acquircd by or on behalf of a health carc facility. If NO boxcs

arc checked, this critcrion is n

applicablc. If any box is checked, read the critcrion and submit the following:

1. Amap(8 5" x 11")of the lrca showing;

a. the location of the appli

b. the name and location
surrounding planning

ant's facility or project;

£ all the other facilities providing the same scrvice within the planning area and
as within 30 minutcs travel time of the proposcd facility,

¢. the distance (in miles) and the travel time (under normal driving conditions) from the applicant's facihty
(o each of the facilities identified in b. above;

d. an outline of the propos

2. For existing facilities, pro

d target population area.

ide patient origin data for all admissions for the last 12 months presented by zip

code. Note this information must be based upon the patient's legal residence other than a health care facility
for the last 6 months immédiatcly prior to admission. For all other projects for which reformals arc requircd
patient origin data for the rferrals must be provided.

3. The ratio of beds to popula
minutes travel time of the

4. The status of the project in

5. Evidence of lcgal sitc own
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS
B. Criterion 1110.230.b, Backgr:
Read the criterion and submit €

1. A listing of all hcalth carc
accreditation identification

2. Proof of current licensing :
or operated by the applican

3. A certification from the ap
the applicant during the thz

tion (population will be based upon the latest census data by zip code) within 30
roposed project.

the zoning process. Provide letter(s) from the appropriate local officials.
rship, posscssion, or option to purchasc or Icasc.

ATTACHMENT GRC-1 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

ound of Applicant
he following information:

facilitics owned or opcrated by the applicant, including licensing, certification and
numbers, if apphicable.

and, if applicable, certification and accreditation of all health care facihities owned

s—ﬁ

plicant listing any adverse action taken against any facility owned or operated by
ce (3) years prior to the filing of the application.
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Authorization(s) permitting the Statc Board and Agency access to information in order to verify any
documentation or information submitted in response to the requirements of this subscction or to obtain any
documentation o information that the Statc Board or Agency finds pertinent to this subsection. Failure to
provide such authorizatign shall constitute an abandonment or withdrawal of the application without

any action by the State Board.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT GRC-2 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

C. Criterion 1110.230.c, Alterndtives to the Proposed Project

Read the criterion and provide,the following information:

1.

)l of the alternatives considered including the alternative of doing nothing. The

Providc a comparison of :
cost bencfit analyses, patient access, quality, and short and long-term financial

comparison must address
benefits.

Discuss why the alternatiye of using other area facilities or resources to meet the needs identified in your
project is not feasible.

Discuss why the alternative of utilizing underutilized bed or othcr space in the facility is not feasiblc.

If the alternative selected is based solely or in part on improved quality of care, provide empinical cvidence
(including quantified outcome data) that verifies improved quality of care.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT GRC-3 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

D. Criterion 1110.230.d, Need for the Project

Is the need for the project based upon need assessment per Part 1100 or a vardance? O Yes & No.
If no is indicated, read the crterion and submit the following as applicable:

1.

2.

Copies of area market studies including explanations regarding how and when these studics were performed.

Calculation of the nccd|for the beds or scrvices including the models uscd to cstimatc the nced (all
assumptions used in the model and the mathcmatical calculations must be included).

. Identification of the individuals likely to use the proposed beds or service by:

Provide letters from physicians or hospitals which document how many patients were referred for this
service in the past 12 rrt)nths, where the patients were referred and how many patients will be referred

annually to the proposed project.

. If the project is for the acquisition of major medical equipment that does NOT result in the cstablishment ofa

category of service, provide documentation that the equipment will achicve or cxceed the applicable target
utilization levels specifict in Appendix B of Part 1110 within 12 months after acquisition.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT GRC-4 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.
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. E. Criterion 1110.230.e, Size of Project

Read the critcrion and provide the foilowing:

|.  Forany department involved in this project that has a square footage which exceeds the State Norm found
in Appendix B of Part 1]110 or if no Statc Norm is shown in Appendix B, provide:

a. arationale explaining how thc proposcd square footage was determined,;
b. copies of any standards used to determing appropriate square footage:
¢. architectural drawings showing any design impediments in the existing facility; and

d. ifthe project is for the conversion of beds from onc catcgory of scrvice to another an ¢xplanation as
to why the excess space within the facility cannot be more appropriately used for other purposcs.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT GRC-5 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

2. Ifthe project involves 4 category of service for which the State Board has established utilization targets,
provide the following:

a. projected utilizatign for the first two years of operation after project completion;

b. an explanation rej:rding how thcse projections were developed;
. ¢. copies of any contracts with new physicians or professional staff,
d. alist of any new procedures which will affect the workload of the facility.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT GRC-6 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.




Section 111, Item B. Background of Applicant

Applicant: Mercy Hospital and Medical Center

1. Mercy Hospital and Medical Center only owns/operates one health facility (as defined
by Section 3 of the Health Facilities Planning Act, 20 ILCS 3960/3), a licensed hospital
(Mercy Hospital and Medical Center). The hospital's license number is 0001 578.

2. A copy of the hospital's license and accreditation are attached hereto.

3. Attached is a letter certifying that no adverse action has been taken against the Applicant
or its hospital for the three (3) years prior to the filing of this application.

4. The attached letter also authorizes the State Board and Agency access to information in
order to verify any documentation or information submitted in response to the
requirements of this subsection or to obtain any documentation or information that the
State Board or Agency|finds pertinent to this subsection.

Co-Applicant: Mercy Health System of Chicago

1. Mercy Health System of Chicago does not own or operate any health care facilities.
2. N/A
. 3. Attached is a letter certifying that no adverse action has been taken against the Co-

Applicant for the three!(3) years prior to the filing of this application.

4. The attached letter als¢ authorizes the State Board and Agency access to information in
order to verify any dogumentation or information submitted in response to the
requirements of this sybsection or to obtain any documentation or information that the

State Board or Agency finds pertinent to this subsection.

2 q ATTACHMENT GRC-2




MERCY

MERrcY HosriTal & MEDICcAL CENTER

2525 SOUTH MICHIGAN AVENUE

CHICAGO, [LLINGOIS 608T6-2477

phone 312.567.2000

March 24, 2008

Mr. Jeffrey Mark
Executive Secretary

Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board
525 W. Jefferson Street — Second Floor

Springfield, 1L 62761
Dear Mr. Mark:

In Accordance with Crnilerio

n 1110.230.d, Background of the Applicant, we are

submitting this letter assuring the Hlinois Health Facilities Planning Board that:

L. Mercy Hospital and Medical Center does not have any adverse actions against
any facility owned or operated by the applicant during the three (3) year
period prior to the filing of this application and

2. Mercy Hospital and Medical Center authorizes the State Board and Agency

access to inform

ation in order to verify documentation or information

submitted in response to the requirements of Criterion 1110.230.d or to obtain

any documentati
pertinent to this

on or information which the State Board or Agency finds
application

Tf we can in any way provide assistance to your staff regarding these assurances or any

other issue relative to this aj

Sincerely,

Premdent and Chlcf Execut

SSL/ss

pplication, please do not hesitate to call me.

ve Qfficer

OFFICIAL SEAL
SANORA A SCHUELER
MOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF (LLINOIS
MY COMMIBSION EXPIRES:0310/11
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grants this
CERTIFICATE OF ACCREDITATION
to : ‘

Mercy Hospital and Medical Center
Chicago, IL

This Facility has met the applicable HEAP accreditation
requirements and is therefore fully accredited by
the Healthcare Facilities Accreditation Program
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MERCY HOSPITAL & MEDICAL CENTER
2525 SOUTH MICHIGAN AVENUE

CHICAGO IL. 60618 2477

FEE RECEIPT NO.
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CRCY

MERCY HosPiTAL & Minicain CENTER

2525 S0UTH MICHIGAN AVENUE
CHICAGO, [LLINOIS 60616-2477

phone 312.567.2000

March 24, 2008

Mr. Jeffrey Mark
Executive Secretary
Illinois Health Facilities Planping Board
525 W. Jefferson Street — Second Floor
Springfield, 1L 62761

Dear Mr. Mark:

In Accordance with Criterion 1110.230.d, Background of the Applicant, we are
submitting this letter assuring the Illinois Health Facilities Planning Board that:

1. Mercy Health System of Chicago does not have any adverse actions against
any facility owned or operated by the applicant during the three (3) year
period prior to the filing of this application and

2. Mercy Health System of Chicago authorizes the State Board and Agency
access to information in order to verify documentation or information
submitted in response to the requirements of Criterion 1110.230.d or to obtain
any documentatian or information which the State Board or Agency finds
pertinent to this application

If we can in any way provide assistance to your staff regarding these assurances or any
other issue relative to this application, please do not hesitate to call me.

Sincerely,

s — e
esidont G SANORAA SCHUELER  $
[

President and Chief Executiye Officer NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF ILLINOIS
WWIRESW‘IWH

PN P e,
T

SSL/ss ,OaMM Q. pchuale B/D‘f o0&
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Section II1, Item C. Alternatives

The proposed project requires mog
Center, the Cardiac Care Unit ("C
certain related renovations to spac
(including renovations to certain 1
also proposes to add sprinklers to
§-27 air handler; this aspect is con

\ to the Proposed Project

lernization of three main areas of the Hospital: the Birthing
CU"), and the Gastrointestinal Laboratory ("Gl Labs"), as well as
¢ vacated by the relocation of the CCU and the GI Labs
nedical/surgical beds and certain non-clinical space). The project
the Hospital, to upgrade the fire alarm system, and to upgrade the
sidered to be non-clinical and is required in order to comply with

various regulations. Please note that the project does not propose to add a category of service, does

not propose to add beds, and does
footage of the Hospital.

The primary alternatives consider
maintaining the Birthing Center, t

not propose any new construction or expansion of the square

-d with respect to this project included: (i) doing nothing and
he CCU, and the GI Lab "as is;" (ii) using other area facilities;

(iii) using underutilized bed or other space in the hospital; and (iv) modernizing the Hospital's

Birthing Center, the CCU, and the

Birthing Center (OB/GYN)

The Hospital's Birthing Center co

GI Lab.

nsists of twenty-two (22) post partum patient rooms, nine (9) labor

delivery rooms, twenty (20) nursery bassinets and two (2) ¢-Section rooms. Seventy-five percent

(75%) of the Hospital's Birthing ¢
closing of Michael Reese Hospita
year, the Birthing Center serves a

1. Do Nothing/Maintain Stat

"enter patients are Public Aid beneficiaries. With the impending
1 and the continuous increases in deliveries the Hospital faces each

vital community need.

us Quo

The existing physical infrastructu
been renovated. The Hospital cu
Double occupancy is not only a b
satisfaction surveys), but patient
industry standard and patient's ex
Tooms.

Under the "do nothing/maintain s
the existing Birthing Center with
existing condition of the facilities
healthcare need of patients and th
deficiencies to accommodate the

Since the need for obstetrics servi

re of the Hospital is 40 years old and the Birthing Center has never
rently has semi-private patient rooms in its Birthing Center.

ig patient dissatisfaction (as identified by the Hospital's patient
confidentiality is compromised in a semi-private room. The
pectations clearly have shifted to the use of private post-partum

tatus quo" alternative, the Applicants would continue operating n
but any modernization. Such a course of action would ignore the

;, the legal requirements for patient confidentiality, and the obvious
1e community. The existing Birthing center presents serious

needs of patients (e.g., noise issues, privacy concerns, etc.).

ces is expected to continue to increase in the coming years,

particularly with the anticipated ¢losure of Michael Reese Hospital, the Applicants determined that

"doing nothing” is infeasible. Alt
utilization of the Birthing Center
patients' desire for private rooms

the alternative of doing nothing/

hough "doing nothing" will not cost anything, continued

without modernization will not address the age of the facility, the
| and the legal requirements for patient confidentiality. As a result,
ﬁqaintaining the status quo was considered and rejected.
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o

Use Other Area Facilities

The Hospital has seen significant
market. Unlike most other inpatie

seen on a regular basis in our affili

rowth in community demand for women's health services in our
t admissions, women plan their obstetric hospitalizations and are
ated clinics. Many of our patients select the Hospital because

£
1y

they live in our primary service aréa. The level and breadth of our healthcare services, including
pre-natal care, is available in convenient satellite locations. As stated previously, the Hospital's

obstetrics patients are primarily P

dblic Aid beneficiaries (75%).

The Hospital considered the alternative of using other area facilities rather than modernizing its

Birthing Center. The Hospital has

years. Cumulative growth during

' experienced a dramatic increase in deliveries during the past four
the past four fiscal years through 2007 was 42.62%, averaging

10.7% annually. In fiscal year 20d7, the Hospital had 3,067 deliveries, which represents a 17.2%

increase from the 2,618 deliveries

in fiscal year 2006. Deliveries through the first eight months of

Fiscal Year 2008 (through Feb. 2008) are 6.9% above last year's levels. A forecast of 3,278

deliveries is projected for the full
closure of Michael Reese Hospita

local community will be coming t

Due to the continued increase in ¢
Hospital's community, the fact tha

services, and the fact that patients

obstetrics patients to other faciliti
3. Use Underutilized Bed/Ot
This alternative does not apply to

constructing new space for the Bi
existing Birthing Center.

fiscal year ending June 30, 2008. In addition, with the impending
. which performed 894 deliveries in 2006, more patients in the
b the Hospital's Birthing Center.

bstetrics demand, the impending closure of Michael Reese in the
t the Hospital serves 75% Public Aid beneficiaries for obstetrics
physicians may only have privileges at the Hospital, referring

és is not a viable option.

her Hospital Space

the proposed project, as the proposed project does not require
rthing Center but, rather, proposes renovating the Hospital's

4,

Modernize Birthing Center

In the final analysis, the Applicaxlts determined that the best option to ensure the availability of

quality and confidential obstetric
of the Hospital's Birthing Center.
preserve the quality of services p

§ services is to obtain a Certificate of Need for the modemization

|

lovid:-‘:d by the Hospital and to continue to serve the community,

This project is the most efficient and cost-effective alternative to

particularly the Public Aid beneficiaries in need of obstetrics services. This project proposes to
modernize the Birthing Center and allow the Hospital to accommodate significant growth in
obstetrics and meet the projected need in our community.

As discussed above, the Hospital|has experienced a dramatic increase in deliveries during the past

four years and anticipates that de
neighborhood surrounding the H
space. With the closure of Micha
serves a vital need. As the Hosp

iveries will continue to increase in the coming years as the
spital is being gentrified with the addition of new residential
el Reese Hospital, providing obstetrics services to the community

tal's facilities are 40 years old and have not been renovated, and as
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semi-private post partum rooms ar¢ no longer the standard for obstetrics services, the Applicants
determined that modemnization of the Birthing Center was the best alternative. This allows the
Hospital to continue to provide access to obstetrical services and to continue to serve a high amount
of Public Aid beneficiaries. Modernizing the Birthing Center increases patient confidentiality and
decreases noise and disruption, as the improved efficiencies caused by the proposed renovations
allow the Hospital to run the Birthing Center's room as private rooms. The modernization will
allow the Birthing Center to meet hew regulatory standards including the requirements of the
Americans with Disabilities Act. The modernization is necessary to provide an efficient and safe
environment for patient care and will bring the Hospital up to the latest healthcare regulatory and
safety standards.

The proposed modernization does not require new construction or the addition of beds, which keeps
the cost of the project down. 1t will result in a Birthing Center containing 22 private post-partum
rooms, 9 labor delivery rooms, and a supporting nursery. By allowing mothers requiring a long
labor time to be accommodated introoms separate from the LDR, the average length of stay will be

reduced and the number of births that can be accommodated by the LDR suites will increase. This
will address the increase in community demand and accommodate nearly 4,000 deliveries per year.
This option will improve operating efficiencies, safety, security, and patient confidentiality.

As the Hospital provides obstetrics services to a high amount of Public Aid beneficiaries (75% of
obstetrics services are provided to Public Aid beneficiaries), the Hospital serves a vital community
need and the Hospital requests approval of the modernization of its Birthing Center so that it can
continue to care for patients and p[ovide them quality services while protecting their confidentiality.

Cardiac Care Unit (Intensive Care)

The Hospital's intensive care unit fis divided into two sub-units: the surgical intensive care unit and
the cardiac intensive care unit. The cardiac intensive care unit is designed to administer care to
post-procedure cardiac patients. The intensive care portion of the Cardiac Care Unit ("CCU")
currently consists of 16 cardiac intensive care beds. The Hospital is approved for 30 intensive care
beds and the proposed project will not increase the number of approved beds. The Hospital
currently staffs 14 surgical intensjve care beds and 16 cardiac intensive care beds. Following the
modernization, the Hospital will have 28 staffed intensive care beds (14 surgical intensive care and
14 cardiac intensive care) out of the 30 authorized intensive care beds.

1. Do Nothing/Maintain Status Quo

The existing physical infrastructuLe of the Hospital is 40 years old. The current CCU has been in
place for over 20 years and has never been renovated. The space provided within the CCU is poorly
configured to accommodate the needs of physicians and staff members, as well as patients and their
family members. The layout is not efficient and does not adequately accommodate space needs for
new technology for care of patients in this area. For example, the current CCU rooms are too small
to accommodate the C-ARM units. Because this technology does not fit into the patient's room, the
patient must be wheeled down to|the cath lab for the C-ARM procedure. In order to have an up-to-
date CCU, the unit's individual rooms need to be larger to meet current regulatory standards and
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clinical needs. For example, the Hospital's current CCU does not have isolation rooms that are

ADA-compliant.

Under the "do nothing/maintain s

the existing CCU without any mo

anything for the Hospital, it woul

tatus quo" alternative, the Applicants would continue operating in
dernization. Although such a course of action does not cost
Id ignore the existing condition of the facilities, the inefficient

layout, and the inadequate size of patient rooms. For the above reasons, the Applicants determined
that the "do nothing/maintain status quo" option is not a viable alternative.

2. Use Other Area Facilities

The Hospital considered referring
not a viable option. The Hospit

a
Transferring these patients to an(j

these patients are too unstable to

3. Modernize Cardiac Care |

. CCU patients to other area facilities, but determined that this was
's CCU serves post-procedure cardiac intensive care patients.

ther facility following cardiac surgery is not a feasible option, as
transfer.

Unit./Use Underutilized Hospital Space

The existing intensive care portic
expanded area renovates currentl
the CCU is to improve the facilit

n of the CCU consists of 16 staffed intensive care beds. The

y underutilized Hospital space. The program for the renovation of

es for the existing comprehensive cardiac care (recovery) unit,

consolidating the CCU beds at one end of the floor. The overarching goals of this renovation are to
improve workflow and staff efficiencies while improving the continuum of care and ultimately,
clinical results. The renovation will include the addition of three isolation rooms (for a total of

four), two of which will be ADA

compliant. The patient rooms will be renovated, and a family

lounge, conference room, small qurses' station, physician consultation area, and data room will be
added. In conjunction with the modernization, the mechanical, electrical, lighting, power, and

plumbing systems (as well as a fi
systern, and television system) s

The modernization alternative is
renovating existing space within
cardiac care portion is consolida

v

w specialized systems, such as the nurse call system, intercom
rving the CCU will be updated.

the preferred alternative because it is the most cost-efficient,
the Hospital and reorganizing the intensive care unit so that the
ed. Allowing all of the cardiac patients and staff to be located in

the same space saves time and provides better quality care. For these reasons, modernizing the
cardiac care portion of the Hospital's existing intensive care unit is the preferred alternative.

3%
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Gastrointestinal ("'G1") Laborat

ories

The Hospital currently has four (4£ Gl labs spread throughout the same day surgical division of the

Hospital's first floor. The project
to consolidate and modernize the
of the same day surgery unit.

1.

oes not propose the addition of more GI labs, but rather proposes

ltlbs. The Hospital intends to relocate the GI labs to the east end

Do Nothing/Maintain Status Quo

The existing physical infrastructux!e of the Hospital is 40 years old and the Gl Iabs have never been
renovated. The current GI labs are not configured to handle the projected increase volume in an
efficient manner because they are spread across the same day surgery wing and not centralized,

which is inefficient for staff, phy
toilets or a dedicated nurses' stati
standards and to comply with the

5

crciams, and patients. The existing GI labs do not have dedicated
n. Further, the labs must be updated to meet current regulatory
requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act.

Under the "do nothing/maintain slatus quo" alternative, the Applicants would continue operating the
GI labs in their current location and would not modernize the labs. Such a course of action would
ignore the existing condition of the facilities, the inefficient layout, and would prevent the Hospital

from having an area dedicated to

that the "do nothing/maintain stat

2. Use Other Area Facilities

The Hospital's GI Labs are an int

GI procedures. For the above reasons, the Applicants determined
us quo" option is not a viable alternative.

cgral part of the services the Hospital provides and referring

patients to another facility for these services is not a viable option, particularly due to the

anticipated closure of Michael Ré

The Hospital has a large cancer p

treats. GI services are an integra
integral part of the Hospital's ope
cancer procedures and screenings
fiscal years through 2007 was 23
of fiscal year 2008 (through Feb
cases is projected for the full fisc

ese Hospital.

rogram, as cancer is the second highest diagnosis the Hospital
part of the cancer screening and cancer care program and an
rations. The Hospital has experienced a dramatic increase in

, especially GI cases. Cumulative growth during the past four (4)
5% averaging 5.9% annually. GI cascs through the first 8 months
2008) are 10.3% above last year's levels. A forecast of 4,061 GI
al year ending June 30, 2008.

The American Cancer Society es

timates that 104,950 colon and 40,340 rectal cancers were

diagnosed in 2005. 56,290 patients are estimated to have died of colorectal cancer in 2005.

Colorectal cancer accounts for 1
and women. In 2005, colorectal ¢
and 12% of newly diagnosed ¢

and higher national estimates for

excess of 5,000 GI cases per yeay.

For these reasons, referring GI p

-11% of all new cancers and 10% of cancer deaths in both men
ancer accounted for 14% of all newly diagnosed cancers in men
cers in women at the Hospital. Based on our historical trend data
colon and rectal cancers, we are projecting to attain a volume in

atients to another area facility is not a feasible option.
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3. Use Underutilized Bed/Other Hospital Space

This alternative does not apply ta the proposed project, as the proposed project does not require
constructing new space for the Gl Laboratories but, rather, proposes renovating the Hospital's
gxisting space.

4, Modernize GI Laboratories

This modernization project will Eelocate the four (4) GI laboratories to the east end of the outpatient
surgery center. This area will be modemized to include support areas for scope cleaning, storage,
charting, a nurses' station and a conference room. The modernization allows for the creation of
eight (8) dedicated prep/hold/recovery rooms for individual patients. The Hospital currently has no
dedicated prep/hold/recovery rooms. These renovations will allow the GI labs to be more efficient,
as they will be centralized in one area, which is convenient for patients and staff and which is
designed to improve efﬁciencyfand care and to allow the Hospital to meet the anticipated increases
in demand for GI services, as discussed above. The renovations will aiso allow the hospital to have
space for pre- and post-care of jpatients, as currently patients recover in the actual GI Lab, which is
not efficient. Consolidating the space also increases the protections of patient confidentiality and is
convenient for patients and staff.

Rather than building out and eLpanding the GI laboratories, relocating the unit and modemizing

. existing hospital space is the most cost-effective alternative. The Hospital expects the efficiencies
created by the new layout to add to staff efficiencies and to increase patient safety and quality of
care. Further, the renovated rboms provide more space for technology.

Relocating and modernizing the GI laboratories is the preferred alternative, as this option will
address the Hospital's anticipated volume increases for this important service line.

Medical/Surgical Modernization

The Applicants propose to rﬂlnovate five (5) medical/surgical rooms on the eleventh floor of the
Hospital that will be vacated by the partial relocation of the cardiac intensive care unit, as well as a
nurses' station.

1. Do Nothing/Maintain Status Quo

Following the relocation ofja portion of the CCU, five (5) patient rooms that are currently being
used as CCU rooms will be/ vacated. Under the "do nothing/maintain status quo™ alternative, the
Applicants would use these rooms for medical/surgical patients in the existing space without
reconfiguring the rooms to jmeet the needs of medical/surgical patients and staff. Currently, these
rooms comprise a four (4) bed ward and a six (6) bed ward within the CCU. The renovations will
modify these areas to turn the four (4) bed ward into two (2) private patient rooms, and the six (6)
bed ward into three (3) pat‘l ent rooms.

Lo
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Although "doing nothing” will not cost anything, utilizing the vacated CCU space without the
necessary minor renovations would not allow the hospital to have five (5) private medical/surgical
patient rooms. Michael Reese Hospital is anticipated to close in the coming months. Further, the
Hospital has a transfer agreement with the University of Chicago whereby the Hospital receives
patients in need of non-specialized care, which has increased the Hospital's ADC by ten (10} to
twelve (12) per day. As a result, the alternative of doing nothing/maintaining the status quo was
considered and rejected.

2. Use Other Area Facilities

As the renovations to these beds were driven by the relocation of the CCU, the alternative of using
other area facilities does not apply.

3. Modernize Certain Medical/Surgical Beds/Use Underutilized Hospital Space

In the final analysis, the Applicants determined that the best option to ensure the availability of
quality services is to modernize certain medical/surgical beds from the former CCU space. This
project is the most efficient and cost-effective alternative to make use of the Hospital's existing
resources. Due to the Hospital's increasing utilization and need for staffed medical/surgical beds,
the minor renovations necessary to convert former CCU space to medical/surgical beds were
deemed to be worth the limited cost of the renovations.

Support Space (Non-Clinical)

The Applicants propose to renovate non-clinical support space (including a clean and soiled utility
room, administrative offices, an ] ses' lounge, storage space, and a staff locker room), some of
which was vacated by the relocation of the CCU and the GI Labs. While the Applicants considered
the alternative of leaving this spall:e as is, in order for the space to be usable, renovation is required.
Therefore, the Applicants chose the alternative of renovating this non-clinical space in order to
make the Hospital as functional jls possible.

Hospital-wide Sprinkler Installation and Fire Alarm Upgrade (Non-Clinical)

The hospital is required to comply with the Life Safety Ordinance of the Chicago Fire Department
and Fire Prevention Bureau to uﬂdate the facility with installation of a hospital-wide fire sprinkler
system and fire alarm upgrade. This is a non-clinical project.

Renovation of S-27 Air Handler (Non-Clinical)

Due to the renovations to the CCQU, the Hospital is required by the Life Safety Code to update the S-
27 Air Handler. This is a non-clinical project.
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Section III, Item D. Need for thJ- Project

This project is not based upon a ne

ed assessment per Part 1100 of the Planning Board Rules or a

variance because the Applicants are not proposing 1o create a new category of service or add any

beds beyond those previously auth

1. Area market studies

During its analysis of whether or n

Unit ("CCU"), and the Gastrointeg
renovations to five (5) medical/su
of the CCU, the Applicants did no
decision to medernize portions of
functionality of the facilities, and

orized and is strictly a modernization of portions of the Hospital.

10t to renovate the Hospital's Birthing Center, the Cardiac Care
tinal Laboratory ("GI Labs"), as well as certain related

gical beds and a nurses' slation in space vacated by the relocation
t conduct formal area market studies, but instead based its

the Hospital on its current utilization rates, on the age and

the projected increases the Hospital expects due to the impending

closure of Michael Reese Hospital.
2. Calculation of the need for the beds or services

a, Birthing Center

The Hospital's obstetrics occupangy rate for 2007 is 59%. Due to the impending closure of Michael
Reese, as well as the continued increase in Birthing Center volume, the Hospital conservatively
anticipates that its occupancy wil increase in the coming years by an estimated 3% per year.

b. CCU

The Hospital's CCU occupancy rate for 2007 is 67%, which is above the State utilization standard
for ICU (60%). The Hospital's tdtal ICU occupancy rate for 2007 is 71%, which is also above the
State standard. The Hospital anticipates its ICU occupancy rate will continue to increase.

C. (GI Labs

The State does not have a utilization standard for the GI Labs. The Applicants determined that it
needed to develop a more efficient floor plan for the GI Labs in order to accommodate an increase
in patient volume partially stemming from the impending closure of Michael Reese Hospital. The
proposed renovations consolidatc the GI Labs in one area of the ambulatory surgery department,
which provides for greater staff efficiency, greater patient convenience, and greater patient
confidentiality.
d. Medical/Surgical

The Hospital's medical/surgical occupancy rate for 2007 is 34%. Due to the impending closure of
Michae! Reese, as well as the continued increase in inpatient volume, the Hospital conservatively
anticipates that its occupancy will increase in the coming years by an estimated 3% per year.
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3. Identification of individuals likely to use the proposed beds or service

This project is a modernization and does not propose the addition of any beds or services. The
Applicants anticipate that the futurle volume for the Birthing Center, CCU and GI Labs (as well as
for the five (5) renovated medical/Lurgical beds will come from the population living in the
established service areas of the Hospital. The Applicants anticipate that the Hospital will continue
to serve a high percentage of Medicaid beneficiaries. In particular, the zip codes in the Hospitals
primary and secondary service areas include:

Zip Community
New 60604 Loop
New 60605 |South Loop
New 60606 Loop
New 60607 West Loop/Near West
Core 60608 Pilsen/Lower West Side
Core 60609 |Stockyards
SSA 60615  |Hyde Park
Core 60616  |22™ Street
SSA 60619 | Greater Grand Crossing
SSA 60620 | Auburn Park
SSA 60621 Englewood
SSA 60623 South Lawndale
SSA 60628 Roseland
. SSA 60629 | Chicago Lawn
SSA 60632 | Eldson (5™
SSA 60636 | Ogden Park
SSA 60637 Jackson Park
SSA 60649 South Shore
Core 60653 Hyde Park
New 60661 Loop

Attached to this Attachment GRC-4 is a letter from Carmen Velasquez, Executive Director, Alivio
Medical Center, demonstrating the need for the modernization of the Hospital's Birthing Center.
Ms. Velasquez's letter highlights|how the Birthing Center serves a large number of low-income,
Spanish-speaking mothers.

Also attached is a letter from John McCarthy, Chair of the Board of the Hospital, supporting the
proposed modernization and out Iining the Hospital's inpatient and outpatient growth and need for
up-to-date, quality facilities to provide the best level of care to the community.

4, This project does not include the acquisition of major medical equipment.
This section does not analyze the need for the non-clinical aspects of the project, such as the minor
renovations to certain of the Hogpital's non-clinical space, the installation of a sprinkler system, or

the upgrade to the fire alarm system. The sprinkler/fire alarm projects are necessary to comply with
. the Life Safety Code, the Chicago High-Rise Sprinkler Ordinance, and the Life Safety Ordinance of
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the Chicago Fire Department and Fire Prevention Bureau. The S-27 Air Handler project is
necessary to comply with the requirements of the Life Safety Code. The minor non-clinical
renovations are necessary to enable the Hospital to utilize space vacated by the consolidations of the

CCU and the GI Labs.
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ALIVIO MEDICAL CENTER

An Active Presence for a Strong Community

Mr. Jeffrey S. Mark
Executive Secretary
llinois Health Facilities| Planning Board
525 W. Jefferson St. —2™ floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Mark.

| am writing this letter to you to express my support for the modernization of the
Birthing Center at Mercy Hospital and Medical Center. Alivio Medical Center
and Mercy Hospital has worked closely together to address access to health

care to many low income Spanish speaking, and predominantly Mexican
immigrants in our community.

In FY 2007, (July 1, 2006-June 30,2007), 1,154 of Alivic patients delivered their

babies at Mercy Hospital.

Mercy Hospital is an important partner in providing desperately needed quality

health care to our community.

As Execf;utive Director of Alivio Medical Center, | urge the lllincis Health

Facilities Planning Board to approve this essential modernization of the Birthing

Center at Mercy Hospi!tal and Medical Center.
Thank you very much for your attention to this matter.

Sincerely,

b lblrngs,

Carmen Velasquez
Executive Director
Alivio Medical Center

ATTACHMENT GRC-4
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From: JOHN McCARTHY 05/20/2008 12:04 #861 P.002/002

Jonhn C. McCarthy, President
1200 West 35th Strest
Chicago, lllinois 60609

{773) 843-2318

(7731 927-1084 fax

AIRPORT EXPRESS jmccarthy@airportexpress.com

. A Continental Air Transpart Co., Inc. Sarvice

Since| 1853

From Trains to Plares

Mr. Jeffrey S. Mark.
Executive Secretary
llinois Health Facilities Planning Board
525 W. Jefferson St. ~ 27" floor
Springfield, IL 62761

Dear Mr. Mark :

| am writing this letter to you to express my support for the modernization
projects at Mercy Hospital and Medical Center. The projecls include necessary
updating of facilities for qur Birthing Center, Cardiac Care Unit (CCU}, Gl

L aboratories, and Fire Sprinklers and Fire Alarm upgrades.

Mercy Hospital and Medical Center has experienced a dramatic increase in in-

. patient admissions and dutpatient cases during the past four fiscal years.
Cumulative growth during the past four fiscal years through 2007, for inpatient
admissions was 23% averaging 7.1% annually. Outpatient services increased
during the same period increase with a cumulative of 17.7% averaging

5.9%annually.

It is apparent from the above utilization rates that Mercy Hospital and Medical
Center must maintain modern, up to date, healthcare facilities for the efficient,

high quality care for our patients.

If | can provide any further information in support of this endorsement of this
project, please do not hésitate to call my office.

Sincerely,

Y

L=
Jofin McCarthy
Chair of the Board
Mercy Hospital and Medical Center

ATTACHMENT GRC-4

¢ | Recmed an thegenal m 512008
46

OFFICIAL SEAL
NOTARY PUSLIC
.m
MY COMMSES TE OF w




)

Section III, Item E. Size of the Project

1. For any department that has a square footage that exceeds the State Norm or if no State

Norm is shown:

Birthing Center (OB/GYN/LDR/Newborn Nursery)

The State Norm for OB/GYN bed
(the modemization will not chang

476 x 30 = 14,280 square feet

$ is 476 square feet per bed. The Hospital has 30 OB/GYN beds
> the number of OB/GYN beds).

The State Norm for Labor-Delivery-Recovery is 23 square feet per bed or 4.6 square feet per

procedure or 1975 square feet per
room). The Hospital has 9 LDRs

needed delivery room (based upon 750 live births per delivery
the modernization will not change the number of LDRs). The

Hospital has 449 beds (the modernization will not change the number of Hospital beds).

23 x 449 =10,327

The State Norm for a newborn nu

rsery is 152 square feet per obstetrics bed. The Hospital has 30

OB beds (the modernization will not change the number of OB beds).

152 x 30 = 4,560 square feet

Birthing Center Stale Norm: 14,280 + 10,327 + 4,560 = 29,1 67 square feet

The existing Birthing Center is 34,398 square feet; this number will not change following the
proposed modernization. The Birthing Center will remain slightly larger than the State Norm. This
is due in part to the patient preference for private rooms. This is also necessary to help maintain
patient confidentiality and to decrease noise in the unit.

CCU (Intensive Care Unit)

The State Norm for intensive care
currently operates 30 intensive ca
care beds). Following the propos
(14 surgical and 14 cardiac).

603 x 28 = 16,884 square feet
Proposed square footage of ICU §

The renovated intensive care unit
intensive care unit will be slightly

h

beds is 603 square feet per bed, The Hospital is licensed for and
re beds (14 surgical intensive care beds and 16 cardiac intensive
ed modernization, the Hospital will operate 28 intensive care beds

ollowing modernization: 16,217 square feet

meets the State Norm for square footage, as the proposed
under the allowed 16,884 square feet.
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GI Unit { Ambulatory Care)

There is no State Norm for dedicated GI Laboratories. The Hospital's current GI Labs occupy 5,947
square feet, and the modernized GI Labs will occupy 5,026 square feet.

Hg
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Section ITI, Item E. Size of the Broject, Continued

2. If the project involves a category of service for which the Board has established utilization

targets, provide the following:
projected utilization fo

(a)
(i) Birthing Center (O

r the first two years of operation after project completion

B/GYN)

The first full year of operation of the areas that the Hospital proposes to modernize will be 2011.

The State Standard is 78% occupa

ncy for OB/GYN beds. The Birthing Center currently operates at

59% utilization. The Hospital antiL:ipates that the Birthing Center will operate at 71% utilization in

2011 and at 74% utilization in 20
the Hospital's continued increases

(ii) CCU (Intensive Ca

2 due to the impending closure of Michael Reese Hospital and
in births.

re)

The first full year of operation of the areas that the Hospital proposes to modernize will be 2011.
The State Standard is 60% occupancy for ICU beds. The Hospital's ICU currently operates at 71%,
and the cardiac portion of the ICU currently operates at 67%. The Hospital anticipates that the ICU
will continue to operate over the State Standard in 2011 and 2012 due to the impending closure of
Michael Reese Hospital and the Hospital's continued increase in patients. The Hospital anticipates

that the cardiac portion of its ICU
2011 and 2012.

(iii) GI Labs

There is no State Standard for util

will be utilized at an even higher degree than the overall ICU in

ization of dedicated GI Laboratories. The Applicants forecast that

the Hospital will perform 4,061 GI cases in the fiscal year ending June 30, 2008.

(iv) Medical/Surgical

The first full year of operation of the areas that the Hospital proposes to modernize will be 2011.
The State Standard is 88% occupancy for medical/surgical beds. The Hospital's medical/surgical
department currently operates at 34%. The Hospital anticipates that the medical/surgical
department will operate at 46% in 2011 and at 49% in 2012 due to the impending closure of
Michael Reese Hospital and the Hospital's continued increase in patients. Please note that the

Hospital only proposes to renovat
renovations are necessary due to|t

(b)

e five (5) medical/surgical beds and a nurses' station. These
he partial relocation of the cardiac intensive care unit.

an explanation regarding how these projections were developed

The Applicants developed the projected utilization of each unit by factoring in its trend of recent

patient increases (a 23% increas%
increase in outpatient admission

in inpatient admissions over the past four fiscal years and a 17.7%
over the same period), the impending closure of Michael Reese

Hospital, and other reasons, inclpding population growth and gentrification of the Hospital's service
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area. The Hospital's market survey showed a 19% increase in outpatients and a 9% increase in
inpatients. The actual projections are based upon a 3% increase each year, which the Applicants
view as a conservative projection.

(c) copies of any contracts|with new physicians or professional staff

While the Hospital does not have any particular contracts with new physicians that drive the
proposed renovation, the Hospital‘t continuing relationship with the University of Chicago
continues to increase the Hospital's utilization. The Hospital has a transfer agreement with the
University of Chicago whereby the Hospital receives the overflow from the University of Chicago's
emergency room and receives referrals of patients in need of non-specialized care and psychiatric
services. These patients increase the Hospital's ADC by ten (10) to twelve (12) per day.

(d) list of any new procedures which will affect the workload of the facility.

The Hospital does not anticipate any new procedures in the areas being renovated.

50
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Minois Health Facilities Planning Board

SECTION VIIL.

Application for Permit February 2003 Edition Page 19

REVIEW CRITERIA RELATING TO ALL MODERNIZATION PROJECTS (MOD)

This scction is applicable to all proj
expanding a department, acquiring major medical equipment, remodeling. or constructing additions or new buildings.

A.

Indicate if the following arc

ects proposing modernization. Modemization includes, but is not limited to:

Specific Information Requirements

as or departments are to be modemized and provide the information as applicable.

1. AMBULATORY CARE (Include all outpatient clinics) -- Is this arca being modemized? Yes @ No®

If ves, provide:

a.

b.

Year
Number

The number of treatment/examination rooms; Existing

The number of visits for cach of the last three years:

Proposed

2. AMBULATORY SURGERY TREATMENT CENTERS-- Is this area being modemized? Yes O No &

If ves, provide:

a.

b.

C.

The number of

Year
Number

The number of v

Ycar
Number

Year
Number

rocedures for cach of the last three years:

isits for each of the last three years:

The number of operating rooms for each of the last three years:

3. CARDIAC CATHETERIZATION -- Is this arca being modemized? YesO No &

If ves, provide the number of inpatient, outpatient, and total procedures (patient visits) performed on
adults and on pediatric paticnts for each of the past three years:

Year
Inpaticnt
Qutpaticnt
Total

ADULT PEDIATRIC
Year
Inpaticnt
Outpaticnt

Total

S
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. 4. EEG DEPARTMENT|OR AREA -- Is this area being modemized? Yes® No®

If yes, provide the number of inpatient. outpatient, and total procedurcs for each of the past threc ycars:

Ycar
Inpatient
QOutpatient
Total

5.  EKG DEPARTMENT OR AREA -- [s this arca being modemized? YesD No®
If ves, provide the number of inpatient. outpatient. and total procedures for each of the past three years:

Ycar
Inpatient
Qutpatient
Total

6. HEMODIALYSIS SERVICES -- Is this arca being modemized? YesDO No X
If yes, provide the following information:

a.  The number of treatment stations: cxisting proposcd

b. The number of treatments performed for each of the last three years:

Year
Treatments

7. LABOR-DELIVERY!RECOVERY --Is this arca being modemized? Yes® No D

Lad

If ves, provide the following information:

a.  The number of b. The number of procedures and delivenes for
cach of the last three years:
Labor rooms 0
Delivery/birthing rooms 0 Year FY 2007  FY 2006 EY 2005
Recovery statiorls 3 Procedures  __0 0 0
LDR’s ) Dcliverics 3067 2618 2547
LDRP rooms 0

“*Please note that this project is @ modemization only and does not request the addition of any new OB/GYN beds.
8.  LABORATORY SERVICES -- Is this area being modernized? Yes D No ®

If ves, provide the number of equivalent full-time employees (FTE’s) employed in the laboratory

9. MAGNETIC RESONANCE IMAGING -- Is this area being modemized? Yes O No ¥
If ves, provide the following information for cach of the last three years:

Year

. Number of] visits
Number of scans

A
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Application for Permit February 2003 Edition Page 21

NURSERY (other than neonatal intensive care units) - Is this area being modemized? Yes ® No O

If ves, provide the fol

lowing for each of the last three years: "

Year FY 2007 FY 2006 FY 2005
Number ofi newborns 3103 2645 2571
Numbgr ofj paticnt days 6509 5509 5207

*Please note that this project is |
11. OCCUPATIONAL THERAPY -- Is this arca being modemized? Yes O No ®@

12.

15.

modernization only and does not reguest the expansion of the nursery.

If ves, provide the fol

Year
Inpatient t

Outpatientjtreatments

lowing information for each of the last three years:

Jeannents

Number of| visits

PHYSICAL THERAPY -- Is this arca being modemized? YesO No ®

Tf yes, provide the following information for each of the last three years.

Year
Inpatient t

Outpatient treatments

reatments

Total treatments
Numbcr of|visits

PULMONARY FUNCTION -- Is this arca being modentized? Yes O No &

If ves, provide the following information for cach of the last three years.

Year

Inpaticnt procedures
Qutpatient procedures

Total proc

edures

Number oflvisits

RECOVERY (SURGICAL) -- Is this area being modernized? Yes 0 No &
If ves, provide the existing and proposed number of stations by type:

Inpatient

Qutpatient Stage 1
QOutpatient Stage 11

Existing Proposed

RESPIRATORY THERAPY -- Is this area being modemized”? Yes O No®
If yes, provide the following information for each of the last three years.

Year

Inpaticnt treatments
Qutpaticnt {reatments

Total trcatments
Number of lvisits
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. 16. DIAGNOSTIC RADIOLOGY --Is this area being modemized? Yesn No ™
If yes, provide the following information classifying procedurc rooms as general or special according to
the type of machines émployed.

Goncral machings arc: Spccial machincs arc:
—Radiograplhic -Angiographic
-F]uoroscobic -CT Scanmer
-Radiograghic/Flouroscopic -Mammography
-Tomographic (lincar) -Sonographic (ultrasound)

-Tomographic (multi-directional)
a. Provide the number of cxisting and proposcd general procedure rooms by machine type.
b.  Provide the number of cxisting and proposcd special procedure rooms by machmne type.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT MOD-1A AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

17. EMERGENCY SERVIICES -- Is this area being modemized? Yes O No @
If ves, provide the folljuwing information:

a.  The number of éxisting and proposcd treatment/cxamination rooms:
b. A list of any of the above rooms that arc or will be used for purposes other than general treatment;
¢.  The number of visits for each of the last three years.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT MOD-1B AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

18. INPATIENT BED AREA -- Is this arca being modemized? Yes B NoO
If vcs, provide the following information: +

a.  The number of existing and proposed private rooms, semi-private rooms, and three or more
occupancy rooms (by category of service for cach type of room) for the entire facility and for the
project;

b.  Line drawings showing the configuration of the unit(s) being modemized.
*Please note that this project is a modernization only and does not request the addition of any new inpatient beds.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT MOD-1C AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

19. NUCLEAR MEDICINE -- Is this area being modemized? Yes O No @
If ves, provide the following information:

a. A list of the existing and proposed major pieces of equipment;
b.  The cxisting and proposed number of procedure rooms;
C. The number of inpaticnt, outpaticnt, and total proccdures donc for cach of the last three years;

d. A breakdown ofjthe procedures into types of procedures and machine time/procedure for the last
year.

. APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT MOD-1D AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION,

sif
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20. RADIATION THERAPY --TIs this area being modermized? Yes O No &
If ves, provide the following information:

a. The number of Jreatments and the number of “courses of treatment™ for each of the last three
years;

b. A list of the existing and proposed pieces of megavoltage equipment.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION ASATTACHMENT MOD-1E AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

21. SURGERY --Isthis aLza being modemized? Yes O No
If ves, provide the following information:

a.  Thc cxisting and proposcd numbcr of procedure rooms, Indicatc the usc of these rooms such as
general, open hc%an, eye, endoscopy, and cystology. Indicate how many rooms are dedicated
solcly to outpatient surgery, solely to inpaticnt surgery, and how many are used for both.

b.  The inpatient, outpatient, and total hours of utilization (including clcan-up and sct-up time) for
cach of the last three vears;

c.  The total hours of utilization (including clean-up and set-up time) for cach type of procedure room
for cach of the last three vears;

d.  The number of inpatient, outpaticnt, and total surgical visits for each type of surgical specialty for
cach of the last three years.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT MOD-1F AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION,

22. OTHER DEPARTMEL!TS OR AREAS - Are any other areas being modemized? Yes @ No O
If ves, identify the area(s) and provide workload data for each area for each of the last three years.*
Please see Attachment MOD-A(22).
APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENTS MOD-1G, MOD-1H, MOD-11, MOD 1.J, etc. AFTER
THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

B. Criterion 1110.420.b, Modern Facilities
A critcrion must be claimed for EACH department or arca to be modemized. The justilication for cach
department or area must be|on a separatc page. Choose the criterion or criteria which most clcarly

approximates thc rcason for proposing the modemization.

At least ONE of the following two criteria must be claimed for EACH department or arca proposed for
modernization,

. Read criterdon 1110.420.b.1. This criterion cannot be used to justify any increasc in square footage.
If expansion of a department is proposed, criterion 1110.420.b.2 must be claimed.

Indicate if this critcrioh is claimed and subnit the following:
a.  the age of the building or piece of equipment;
b.  the downtime experienced on the piecc of equipment for each of the last three years:

¢.  the cost of repairexpericneed on the picee of cquipment for cach of the last three years;

5§
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. d.  adetailed explanation of why and how it was determined that the building or piece of equipment
was deteriorated and needs to be replaced,
e. providc copies of any licensing. certification, or fire protection citations.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT MOD-2 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

2. Read Criterion 1110.420.b.2. Identify if this criterion is claimed and submit the following information:

a.  adetailed explanation of why and how it was determined that expansion of the department or arca
Was necessary;

b. adiscussion of the altcrnatives considered to cxpanding the department (c.g. increasing the hours or
days of operation) and why the altcratives were rejected.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT MOD-3 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

C. Criterion 1110.420.c, Major Medical Equipment N/A

Read Criterion 1110.420.c and provide documentation that the equipment will achieve or exceed the applicable
targct utilization levels specificd in Appendix B of Part 1110 within 12 months aficr becoming operational.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT MOD-4 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.




Section VII, Item A(18). Inpatitht Bed Area

The Hospital currently has the following rooms:

Category Private Rooms | Semi-private Rooms 3+ Occupancy Total Rooms
Medical/Surgical 37 126 0 163
Obstetric 12 9 0 21
Intensive Care 26 2 0 28
Neonatal ICU 0 0 0 0
Pediatric 5 16 0 21
Rehabilitation 0 12 0 12
Mental Illness 1 19 0 20
Long Term Care 0 0 0 0
Total 81 184 0 265

Following the proposed renovation, the number of beds will remain the same. The room count will
be as follows:

Category Private Rooms | Semi-private Rooms 3+ Occupancy Total Rooms

Medical/Surgical 37 126 0 163
QObstetric 12 9 0 30

Intensive Care 28 0 0 28

Neonatal ICU 0 0 0 0

Pediatric 5 16 0 21

. Rehabilitation 0 12 0 12
Mental Illness 1 19 0 20

Long Term Care 0 0 0 0
Total 83 182 0 265
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Section VII, Item A(22). Other Departments or Areas

The other area being modernized is the Hospital's GI laboratories.

The workload data for the GI Labs for each of the last three years is as follows:
FY2007: 3,681 procedures
FY2006: 3,682 procedures

FY2005: 3,251 procedures

ATTACHMENT MOD(A)(22)




Section VII, Item B. Modern Facilities

Birthing Center and GI Labs:

1.

The Applicants propose to modernize its Birthing Center, GI labs, and five (5) of its
medical/surgical beds (as well as a nurses' station) based on the rationale listed in criterion
1110.420(b)(1). The proposed project does not increase the square footage of the Birthing

Center or the GI labs.

(a)

(b)
(c)
(d)

The Hospital building is 40 years old and the Birthing Center, GI labs, and
medical/surgical beds have never been renovated.

N/A

N/A

The Applicants determined that the projects are necessary as detailed below:

i

Birthing Center

Modernizing|the Birthing Center is the most efficient and cost-effective
alternative tolpreserve the quality of services provided by the Hospital and to
continue to serve the community, particularly the Public Aid beneficiaries in
need of obstcltrics services. With the closure of Michael Reese Hospital,
continuing to provide obstetrics services to the community serves a vital need.
As the Hospiial‘s facilities are 40 years old and have not been renovated, and as
the Hospital's existing semi-private post partum rooms are no longer the
standard for obstetrics services, the Applicants determined that modemization
of the Birthirlg Center was necessary. Modemizing the Birthing Center
increases patjent confidentiality and decreases noise and disruption, as the
efficiencies created by the proposed renovations will allow the Birthing Center
rooms to be fun as private post-partum rooms. The modernization will allow
the Birthing {Jenter to meet new regulatory standards including the
requirements;of the Americans with Disabilities Act. The modernization is
necessary to Lrovide an efficient and safe environment for patient care and will
bring the Hodpital up to the latest healthcare regulatory and safety standards.
This project will improve operating efficiencies, safety, security, and patient
confidentiality.

bl
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ii. Gl Labs

As discussed|above, the Hospital's facilities are 40 years old and have not been
renovated. The relocation and modernization of the GI laboratories is
necessary to increase efficiency of the labs and to provide for adequate space
for new technology. The modernization is also necessary to better protect
patient confidentiality. These renovations will allow the GI labs to be more
efficient, as they will be consolidated, saving staff and physician time. With
the addition of dedicated prep/hold/recovery rooms, the Hospital will be able to
meet the antil:ipated increases in demand for GI services, as these functions
currently take place in the Gl labs, which is inefficient,

iii. Certain Medical/Surgical Beds/Nurses' Station

As discussed previously, the Hospital's facilities are 40 years old and have not
been renovated. Due to the consolidation and partial relocation of the cardiac
care portion of the intensive care unit ("CCU"), five (5) formerly intensive care
patient rooms were vacated. The modernization of these rooms is necessary to
make them functional medical/surgical rooms. A nurses' station is also being
renovated to better serve the floor.

iv. Sprinklers/Fire Alarm

The hospital|is required to comply with the Life Safety Ordinance of the
Chicago Fire¢ Department and Fire Prevention Bureau to update the facility
with installation of a hospital-wide fire sprinkler system and fire alarm
upgrade. This is a non-clinical project.

v. §-27 Air Handler

The hospitallis required to comply with the Life Safety Code to update the S-27
Air Handler.| This is a non-clinical project.

vi. Other Nontclinical Space

The Hospital also plans to renovate a clean and soiled utility room,
administrative offices, a nurses’ lounge, storage space, and a staff locker room.
This is a non-clinical project.

The sprinkler/fire alarm and the S-27 air handler project are required by various
regulations and the Life Safety Code, but none of the renovations are driven by
citations.

3
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Section VII, Item B. Modern Facilities

Cardiac Care Unit ("CCU"):

2. The Applicants propose to modernize its CCU based on the rationale listed in criterion
1110.420(b)(2).

(a) The hospital deterr!nined that the minor expansion of the CCU division of the
intensive care unit was ne¢essary because the Hospital's facilities are 40 years old and have
not been renovated. The proposed renovation of the CCU is necessary to improve the
facilities for the existing comprehensive cardiac care (recovery) unit and to consolidate the
CCU beds at one end of the floor. This renovation will improve workflow and staff
efficiencies while improving the continuum of care and ultimately, clinical results.

In order to have an up-to-«'iate CCU, the unit's individual rooms need to be larger to meet
current regulatory standargds and clinical needs. For example, the Hospital's current CCU
does not have isolation ropms that are ADA-compliant,

The modernization is cost-efficient, renovating existing space within the Hospital and
reorganizing the intensive care unit so that the cardiac care portion is consolidated.
Allowing all of the cardiac patients and staff to be located in the same space saves time and
provides better quality care.

(b) In debating whethgr to expand the CCU, the Hospital considered and rejected the
following alternatives:

Do Nothing. The Hospital considered doing nothing to the existing CCU, but rejected this
alternative because the current CCU has been in place for over 20 years and has never been
renovated. The current space is poorly configured to accommodate the needs of physicians,
staff, patients, and familyImembers. The layout is not efficient, as it is spread out rather than
centralized, and the patient rooms are too small and do not accommodate new equipment
and other clinical needs. !For example, the Hospital's current CCU does not have isolation
rooms that are ADA-compliant. For these reasons, the Hospital decided against doing
nothing.

Use Other Area Facilities. The Hospital considered referring CCU patients to other area
facilities, but determined Lt'hat this was not a viable option. The Hospital's CCU serves post-
procedure cardiac intensive care patients. Transferring these patients to another facility
following cardiac surgery is not a feasible option.

Use Underutilized Hospital Space/Modernize Cardiac Care Unit. The Hospital chose the
alternative of renovating the CCU to improve the facilities for the existing comprehensive
cardiac care (recovery) unit and to consolidate the CCU beds at one end of the floor. This
alternative is intended to improve CCU workflow and staff efficiencies while improving the
continuum of care and ultimately, clinical results. The renovation will include the addition
of three isolation rooms (for a total of four), two of which will be ADA compliant. The

Y
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patient rooms will be renoyated, and a family lounge, conference room, small nurses' station,
physician consultation area, and data room will be added.

The modernization alternative is the preferred alternative because it is the most cost-
efficient, renovating existi’ng space within the Hospital and reorganizing the intensive care
unit so that the cardiac care portion is consolidated. The expanded square footage of the
CCU renovates underutilized hospital space. Allowing all of the cardiac patients and staff to
be located in the same space saves time and provides better quality care. For these reasons,
modemnizing the cardiac chre portion of the Hospital's existing intensive care unit is the
preferred alternative.

The sprinkler/fire alarm and the S-27 air handler project are required by various regulations
and the Life Safety Code,|but none of the renovations are driven by citations.

3
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SECTION XXIV. REVIEW CRITERIA RELATING TO FINANCIAL FEASIBILITY (FIN)

This section is applicable to all projectsisubject to Part 1120.

Does the applicant (or the entity that is responsible for financing the project or is responsible for assuming the
applicant’s debt obligations in case of default) have a bond rating of “A” or better? Yes 0 No X

If yes is indicated, submit proof of the bond rating of “A” or better (that is less than two years old) from
Fitch’s, Moody’s or Standard add Poor's rating agencies and go to Section XXX. If no is indicated, submit
the most recent three years’ audited financial statements including the following:

1. Balance sheet

2. Income sthtement

3. Change in fund balance
4. Change in financial position

APPEND THE REQUIRED DOClUMENTS AS ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS AND PLACE AFTER ALL
OTHER APPLICATION ATTACHMENTS INCLUDING THE REMAINING ATTACHMENTS FOR THIS

A. Criterion 1120.210.a, Financial Viability

1. Viability Ratios

SECTION AND FOR SECTION XXX.

If proof of an “A’" or better bond rating has not been provided. read the critcrion and complcte the
following table providing the viability ratios for the most reeent three years for which audited financial
statements are available. | Category B projects must also provide the viability ratios for the first full fiscal
year after project completion or for the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or excceds target

utilization (per Part 1100), whichever is later.

Provide Data for Projects Classified as. | 4" Category Aor Catégory B (fast three years). . | Calegory B
Enter Historical and/or Projected Years:- |  FY2005 FY2006 FY2007 Ev2012
Current Ratio | B 9 16 15

Net Margin Percentage 23% 2.9% 9.0% 1.2%
Percent Debt to Total Capitalization 85% 71% 52% 53.7%
Projccted Debt Scrvice Coverage 1.79 2.56 6.54 287

Days Cash on Hand 45 54 .6 45 60
Cushion Ratio 2.4 39 5.1 6.0

Provide the methodologTy and worksheets utilized in determining the ratios detailing the calculation and
applicable ling item amounts from the financial stalements. Complete a separate table for each co-applicant

and provide worksheets for each. Insert the worksheets afier this page.

2. Vanance

Compare the viability fatios provided to the Part 1120 Appendix A review standards.  If any of the
standards for the applic‘ant or for any co-applicant ar¢ not met, provide documentation that a person or
organization will assum{: the lcgal responsibility to meet the debt obligations should the applicant default.
The person or organization must demonstrate compliance with the ratios in Appendix A when proof of a

bond rating of “A™ or beiﬁer has not been provided.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT FIN-1 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

ae
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B. Criterion 1120,210.b, Availability of Funds

If proof of an “A” or better bond rating has not been provided, read the criterion and document that sufficient
resources are available to fund the project and related costs including operating start-up costs and operating
deficits. Indicate the dollar athount (o be provided from the following sources:

|
2,135,856.00 Cash & Securi:ies
Provide stattments as to the amount of cash/securitics available for the project. Identify any

\ralue and availability of such funds. Interest to be eamed or depreciation account

security, its
funds to be éamed on any assct from the date of application submission through project

completion are also considered cash.

Pledges
For antici pajted pledges, provide a letter or report as to the dollar amount feasible showing the

discounted Yalue and any conditions or action the applicant would have to take to accomplish
goal. The time period, historical fund raising experience and major contributors also must be

specified.
Gifts and Bequests
Provide verification of the dollar amount and identify any conditions of the source and timing

of its use,
26,893,300.00 Debt Financing (indicate type(s) FHA insured mortgage under Seclion 242 )
For gencrallobligation bonds, provide amount, tcrms and conditions, including any anticipated

discounting; or shrinkage) and proof of passage of the required referendum or evidence of
governmental authority to issue such bonds;

For revenué bonds, provide amount, terms and conditions and proof of securing the specified
amount,

For mortgages, provide a letter from the prospective lender attesting to the cxpectation of
making the loan in thc amount and timc indicatcd;

For leases, provide a copy of the leasc including all terms and conditions of the lease including
any purchage options.

Governmental | Appropriations
Provide a copy of the appropriation act or ordinance accompanied by a statement of funding

availability|from an official of the governmental unit. If funds are to bc made available from
subscquent|fiscal years, provide a resolution or other action of the govermmental unit aticsting
to such future funding.

Grants
Provide a letter from the granting agency as to the availability of funds in terms of the amount,

conditions,[and time or Teceipt.

Other Funds and Sources
Providc vefification of thc amount, tcrms and conditions, and typc of any othcr tunds that will

be used forjthe project.

29,029,156.00 TOTAL FUNDS AVAILABLE

le——

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT FIN-2 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION,

C. Criterion 1120.210.c, Operating Start-up Costs

If proof of an “A” or better bond rating has not been provided, indicate if the project is classificd as a Category
B projcct that involves cstablishing a ncw facility or a new catcgory of scrvice? Yes O  No ®. If yesis
indicatcd read the criterion and provide in the space below the amount of operating start-up costs (the same as
reported in Section I of this application) and provide a description of the items or components that comprise the
costs. Indicate the source and amount of the financial resources available to fund the operating start-up costs
(including any initial operating deficit) and reference the documentation that verifies sufficient resources are

available.
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MERCY HOSPITAL AND MEDICAL CENTER
Section XXIV - Review Criteria Related to Financial Feasibility
Part 1120.210a-Financial Vlability
Viabllity Ratio-Support

{000's OMITTED)

ACTUAL ACTUAL ACTUAL | PROJECTED STATE
FYEJUN 05 _FYEJUNDS _ FYEJUNO7 | FYEJUN12 GUIDELINES
CURRENT RATIO
CURRENT ASSETS $37,351 $39,936 $62,110 $56,334
CURRENT LIABILITIES $45,310 344,714 $38,795 537,768
RATIO B 9 16 1.5 1.6 MIN
NET MARGIN PERCENTAGE
NET INCOME $4.304 §5,124 $19,961 52,811
NET OPERATING REVENUE §$187.724 $176,502 $222,148 $223,304
RATIO 2.3% 2.9% 9.0% 12 3.5% MIN
PERCENT DEBT 1O TOTAL CAPITALIZATION
LONG-TERM DEBT $32,815 $31,313 $36,213 $67,439
UNRESTRICTED FUND BALANCE §5.811 $12.970 532,084 §58,213
TOTAL $38,626 $44,283 $69,197 $125652
RATIO 85% 71% 52% 53.7% 60% MAX
PROJECTED DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE
NET INCOME 54,304 §5.124 $10,961 52,811
DEPRECIATION $8,419 $8,374 $8,278] $9,853
INTEREST.NET $3.725 $2,743 $2,816 $4.665
TOTAL 516,448 $16,241 §31,055 $17,329
PRINCIPAL PAYMENTS $4.956 $3.714 $1.817 $1,364
NET INTEREST PAYMENTS $4,252 $2,639 $2,931 $4,665
ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE $9,208 $6,353 $4.748 $6,020
DEBT SERVICE RATIO 1.79 2.56 6.54 2.87 175 MIN
MAXIMUM ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE $9.208 $6,353 $4,748 $6,029
MAXIMUM DEBT SERVIGE RATIO 1.79 2.56 6.54 2.87 1.75MIN
DAYS CASH ON HAND
CASH & EQUIVALENTS 39,578 $10,867 $10,632 $13.035
JNVESTMENTS & BOARD DESIGNATED FUNDS $12.088 $14,050 313,794 $23,132
TOTAL ASSETS AVAILABLE 521,666 $24,917 $24,426 $36,167
TOTAL EXPENSES 184,002 $174,984 5206546 $229,359
LESS DEPRECIATION $8,419 $8.374 $3,278 $9,853
NET EXPENSES $175,583 $166.610 $203,268 5219,508
AVERAGE DAILY EXPENSE $481 5456 $542 $601
DAYS CASH ON HAND | 5.0 54.6 45.0 50 80 MIN
|
CUSHION RATIO |
CASH & EQUIVALENTS | $9.578 $10.867 $10,632 $13,005
INVESTMENTS & BOARD DESIGNATED FUUNDS $12,088 $14,050 $13,794 §23,132
TOTAL ASSETS AVAILABLE | $21,666 $24,917 $24,426 $36,167
{
MAXIMUM ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE $9.208 $6,353 54,748 $6,029
CUSHION RATIO 2.4 3.9 51 6.0 5 MIN

&Y
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Section XXIV, Item A. Financial Viability

Please note that the co-applicant, Mercy Health System of Chicago, did not separately complete the
ratios, as it has only limited assets; as further outlined in the attached consolidated financial

statements.

As it is insuring the Hospital's mortgage, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development
is assuming the legal responsibility to meet the Hospital's mortgage obligations should the Hospital

default.

4
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Section XXIV, Item B. Availability of Funds

Attached is information on the debt financing related to the project.

10
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Timothy Wons

Executive Director

J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.
Tax Exempt Capital Markets
10 5. Dearborn 5t. 32nd Flgor
Chicago, IL 60670

Tel: 312-385-8455

Fax: 312-732-2400

Jay Shah

Yice President

J.P. Morgan Securities Inc.
Tax Exempt Capital Markets
10 5. Dearborn 5t. 32nd Floor
Chicago, IL 60670

Tel: 312-325-6742

Fax: 312-732-2400

JPMorgan L)

June 3, 2008

Thomas J. Ganvey

Vice President of Finance and Chief Financial Officer
Mercy Hospita|l & Medical Center

2525 South Michigan Avenue

Chicago, IL 60616-2477

Dear Tom,

J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. has been retained to assist Mercy Hospital & Medical Center
(“Mercy"”) in Bbtaining permanent financing in an amount up to $85,000,000 for the
purpose of renovating and equipping its existing facilities in Chicago, Illinois. As part of
our engagement, we are providing the attached preliminary term sheet outlining a
potential app'roach to this financing.

Please note that the attached term sheet does not represent a commitment to lend
money on the part of J.P. Morgan Securities Inc. A commitment to finance or
underwrite tHese bonds would require formal credit approval and would be subject to
additional dué diligence,

We look forward to this opportunity to assist Mercy.

Co=l 7 0~
Timothy Wons

Executive Director

i
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MP_roposed Ter

m Sheet

JPMorgan

Transaction

FHA 242 insured mortgage securing an issuance of tax-
exempt bonds pursuant to a Master Trust Indenture and
associated bond documentation among Trustee, Issuer
and Obligor

Amount

Up to $85,000,000

Use of Bond Proceeds

1) Funding the construction and equipment of
renovations to the existing facilities including a birthing
center, Gl lab, Cardiac Care Unit and hospital wide
sprinkler system

2) Funding of a debt service reserve fund

3) Paying for costs of issuance

Interest Rate

To be determined

Term

To be determined - not to exceed 30 years

Closing Date

Rating

The Series 2008 bonds are anticipated to be delivered
as soon as reasonably possible upon receipt of a
Certificate of Need and related approvals

"'I'he”inonds_w{ll be cari'-y the fatings_;;sociated with the
FHA mortgage insurance (“AA™)

Debt Service

Reserve Fund

A Debt Service Reserve Fund will be required

Security

Pledge of general revenues and a mortgage on all real
property that comprises the core operations of the
obligor

Financial Covenants

Usual and customary with threshold levels to be
negotiated with the hospital

A
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|
SECTION XXV. REVIEW,CRITERIA RELATING TO ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY (ECON)

This section is applicable to all projects Isubj:&:ct to Part 1120.
A. Criterion 1120.310.a, Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements
1s the project classificd as a Category B project? Yes @ No O, Ifno is indicated this criterion is not

applicablc. If ycs is indicated] has proof of a bond rating of “A” or bettcr been provided? Yes O No &. Ifves
is indicated this criterion is not applicablc, go to jtem B. If no is indicated, read the criterion and address the

following;
Are al] available cash and equivalents being used for project funding prior to borrowing? O Yes ® No

If no is cheeked, provide a notarized statement signed by two authorized representatives of the applicant entity
(in the case of a corporation, dne must bc a member of the board of directors) that attests to the following:

1. a portion or all of the cash and equivalents must be retained in the balance sheet asset accounts in order that
the current ratio does not fall below 2.0 times;, or

2. borrowing is lcss costly than the liquidation of cxisting investments and the existing investments being
retained may be converted to cash or used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION ASATTACHMENT ECON-1 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

B. Criterion 1120.310.b, Condthions of Debt Financing

Read the critcrion and providc a notarized statement signed by two authorized ropresentatives of the apphicant
cntity (in the case of a corpordtion, onc must be a member of the board of directors) that attests to the following

as applicable:

1. The selected form of deb( financing the project will be at the lowest net cost available or if a more costly
form of financing is sclccted, that form is more advantageous due to such terms as prepayment privilcges,
no required mortgage, access to additional debt, tcrm (years) financing costs, and other factors;

2. All or part of the project i:nvolves the lcasing of equipment or facilities and the expenses incurred with such
leasing are less costly than constructing a new facility or purchasing new equipment.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION ASATTACHMENT ECON-2 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.
C. Criterion 1120.310.c, Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs
Read the criterion and providl the following:

1. Identify gach departmen ) OT arca impacted by (he proposed project and provide a cost and square footage
allocation for new construiction and/or modemization using the following format (inscrt afier this page).

|
COST AND GROSS SQUARE FEET BY DEPARTMENT OR SERVICE
A B C D E F G H
Dcpartment Total Cost
(list below) | Cost/Square Fool Gross Sq. FL. Gross Sq. FL. Const. § Mod. ¥ (G+H)
New Mod. New Circ.* Mod. Circ * (AxC) (B xE)
Contingency
TOTALS

*Include the percentage (%) ol space for circulation
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Section XXV, Item C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs

1. Cost and Gross Square Feet by Department or Service

A | B ¢ | D E [ F G H Total
Department | Cost/Square Foot | Gross Square Feet | Gross Square Feet | Const. | Mod. § (G+E)
New Mod. New Cire. Mod. Circ, 3 (Bx E)
(AxC)
OB/GYN 0 $263.4982* 0 0 14,371 19% 0 3,786,733 | 3,786,733
ICU 0 $439.305* 0 0 8,805 22% (0 3,868,081 | 3,868,081
Med/Surg 0 $319.3535* 0 0 2,708 0 0 864,809 864,809
Gl Labs 0 $449.5274% 0 0 5,026 27% 0 2,259,325 | 2,259.325
Non-clinical 0 £206.44 0 0 3,376 0 0 696,941 696,941
(Admin, staff
lounges/
locker
rooms, etc.)
Non-clinical 0 $5.07697 0 0 716,515 0 0 3,637,732 | 3,637,732
fire alarm
Non-clinical 0 $20.13 0 0 458,503 0 0 9,234,248 | 9,234,248
sprinkler
Non-clinical 0 $23.9914 0 0 20,571 0 0 493,528 493,528
S-27 Air
Handler
Contingency 0 $1.26 0 0 716,515 0 0 905,574 905,574
TOTALS 0 1728.58247 0 0 1,943,960 68% 0 25,746,971 | 25,746,971

* This amount includes the cost of site preparation.
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. 2. Tor each piece of major medical equipment included in the proposcd project, the applicant must certify onc
of thc following:

a,  that the lowcst net caJT)st availablc has been sclected; or

b. that the choice of higher cost equipment is justified due ic such factors as, bul not limited to,
maintcnance agrcements, options to purchase, or greater diagnostic or therapeutic capabilities.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS ATTACHMENT ECON-3 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION,

3. List the items and costs included in preplanning, site survey, site preparation, off-site work, consulting, and
other costs to be capilaliz'ed. If any project line item component includes costs attributable to extraordinary
or unusual circumstances] explain the circumstances and provide the associated dollar amount, When fair
market valuc has becn provided for any component of project costs, submit documentation of the value in
accordance with the requirements of Part 1190.40.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION AS'ATTACHMENT ECON-4 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

D. Criterion 1120.310.d, Projected Operating Costs

Recad the critcrion and provide in the spacc below the facility’s projected dircet annual opcrating costs (in
current dollars per equivalcnt'patient day or unit of service, as applicable) for the first full fiscal year of
operation after project complétion or for the first full fiscal year when the project achieves or cxceeds target
utilization pursuant to 77 I1. Adm. Code 1100, whichever is latcr. If the project involves a new category of
service, also provide the annual operating costs for the scrvice. Direct costs arc the fully allocated costs of
salaries, bencfits, and supplieé. Tndicate the vear for which the projected operating costs arc provided.

E. Criterion 1120.310.¢, Total Effect of the Project on Capital Costs

. Is the project classified as a category B project? Yes® No 0. Ifnois indicated, go to item F. If yesis
indicated, provide in the spack below the facility 's total projected annual capital costs as defined in Part
1120.130.f (in current dollars per equivalent patient day) for the first full fiscal year of operation afier project
completion or for the first ful] fiscal vear when the projcct achieves or exceeds target utilization pursuant to T
111. Adm. Code 1100, whichcVer is later. Indicate the year for which the projected capital costs arc provided.

F. Criterion 1120.310.f, Non-p|atient Related Services

Is the project classified as a category B project and involve non-patient related services? Yes O No®. Ifnois
indicated, this criterion is notapplicablc. If yes is indicated, read the criterion and document that the project
will be self-supporting and ndt result in increased charges to patients/residents or that increased charges arc
justified based upon such factors as, but not limited to, a cost benefit or other analysis that demonstrates the
project will improve the applicant’s financial viability.

APPEND DOCUMENTATION Ag ATTACHMENT ECON-5 AFTER THE LAST PAGE OF THIS SECTION.

D FY2012: $146,483,000; operating cost per equivalent patient day: 146,483,000/101,105 = $1,449. These costs include
salaries and wages ($93,977,000), employee benefits ($19,181,000) and supplies and pharmaceuticals {$33,325,000).

E:  FY2012: $14,518,000; capital cost per equivalent patient day: 14,518,000/101,105 = $143.59.
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CRCY

MEercy HospiTaL ¢ MEDICcAL CENTER

2525 SOUTH MICHIGAN AVENUE
CHICAGO, [LLINGIS G0GT4-2477

phone 312.567.2000

May 19, 2008

Health Facilities Planning Board
525 West Jefferson

2" Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re:

Debt Financing, Modernization of Mercy Hospital

To Whom It May Concern:

We are writing this letter in accordance with the requirements of Certificate of Need Criterion

1120.310.a — Reasonableness of Fj
borrowing is less costly than the li
being retained may be converted t

Sincerely,

Name::j fg:gﬁ;‘é jie;é é;ﬂ_ﬂ

Title: E,{;g,g, g}“j / (£Q

Subscribed and Sworn to before n

Iﬂ day of hf\a,%, , 20
Lardre G- DCJ\MQQM/

Fnancmg Arrangements. We hereby attest to the fact that
quidation of existing investments and the existing investments
o cash or used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

X4

e:_Soha Me CarFhy

Drvrectose

itle: Chave of

1e this

08

OFFICIAL SEAL

SANORA A SCHUELER
NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF RLINOIS

Notary

MY COMMISSION EXPIRES0310M1

PRy

16

ATTACHMENT ECON-1




EMERCY

. MErcY HosriTal & Mepicar CENTER
2525 SouTH MIcHIGAN AVENUE

CHICAGO, ILLINOIS G0616-2477

phone 312.567.2000

May 19, 2008

Health Facilities Planning Board
525 West Jefferson

2" Floor

Springfield, lllinois 62761

Re: Debt Financing, Modernization of Mercy Hospital

To Whom It May Concern:

We are writing this letter in accordance with the requirements of Certificate of Need Criterion |
1120.310.a — Reasonableness of Financing Arrangements. We hereby attest to the fact that |
borrowing is less costly than the liguidation of existing investments and the existing investments

. being retained may be converted to cash or used to retire debt within a 60-day period.

LY, &

r rec o/

Sincerely,
Addids oo )
Name:, She 1ol )
Title: L
Subscribed and Sworn to before me this

|99k day of Mo 4 , 2008
OFFICIAL SEAL

SANORA A SCHUELER
QW@ Q- Qd\**bw’ }  NOTARY PUBLIC - STATE OF RLINOIS
Notary MY COMMISSION EXPRES. 030N 1
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GMERCY

Meircy HosriTaL & Mepican CENTER
2525 SouTn MICHIGAN AVERUL
CHICAGO, TLLINDIS AOATG-2477

phone 312.567.2000

May 19, 2008

Health Facilities Planning Board
525 West Jefferson

2™ Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: Debt Financing, Modernization of Mercy Hospital

To Whom It May Concern:

We are writing this letter in accordance with the requirements of Certificate of Need Criterion
1120.310.b — Conditions of Debt Financing. We hereby attest to the fact that the selected form
of debt financing for the proposed project represents the lowest net cost available. The project
does not involve the leasing of equipment or facilities.

Sincerely,

NamE‘/STStt :S AQ| Id ! /)gg] e
Title: erggléﬂ,:']:[ CEQ

Subscribed and Sworn to before me this

[9* day of ma}?ﬁ , 2008

OFFICAL SEAL

Dandro Q- Dehutdor SANORA A SCHUELER
Notary NOTARY PUBLIC - BTATE OF LLINOIS
MY COMMISSION EXPIRES 031071

19

ATTACHMENT ECON-2




B

FRCY

. MEercY HosprITal & MEDIcal CENTER
2525 SouTn MICHIGAN AVENUE
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CHICAGO, TLLINOIS AOGTG-2477

plhone 311.567.2000

May 19, 2008

Health Facilities Planning Board
525 West Jefferson

2" Floor

Springfield, Illinois 62761

Re: Debt Financing, Modemization of Mercy Hospital

To Whom It May Concern:

We are writing this letter in accordance with the requirements of Certificate of Need Criterion
1120.310.b — Conditions of Debt Financing. We hereby attest to the fact that the selected form of

. debt financing for the proposed project represents the lowest net cost available. The project does
not involve the leasing of equipment or facilities.

Sincerely,

Name:/SJ ¥ ﬂ ’
Title: G{‘;E\gi ;E z eic{ *‘EZ

Subscribed and Sworn to before me this

19% day of May , 2008
Y OFFICIAL SEAL
mgnonnssrcnuam
PUBLIC - STATE OF KLINOIS
NQW A._pchuslen MY COMMSSION EXPRES OMION1
olary
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2. N/A. No major medical equipment is included in the proposed project.

Section XXV, Item C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs, Continued
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Section XXV, Item C. Reasonableness of Project and Related Costs, Continued

3. The project does not require preplanning, site survey, or off-site work. The site preparation costs
to be capitalized arc $417,318. The consulting costs (o be capitalized are $77,814.
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Section XXIV, Financials
Attached are the audited financial statements for the past three years. Please note that these are

consolidated financial statements; the applicants, Mercy Hospital and Medical Center and Mercy
Health System of Chicago, do not have separate audited financial statements.

7L
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Mercy Health System of Chicago
and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Financial Report
June 30, 2007
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McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements /

To the Board of Directors
Mercy Health System of Chicago
Chicago, Illinois

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mercy Health System of Chicago and
subsidiaries (the “Corporation”) as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the related consolidated statements of operations
and changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Corporation's management. Our respansibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement, An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinicn,

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Mercy Health System of Chicago and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, and the results

of their operations and changes in net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

%M S uln, | cep

Chicage, lllinois
October 30, 2007

g5

McGladrey & Pufien, LLP s & member firm of RSM International, ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries -
Consolidated Balance Sheets )
June 30, 2007 and 2006 |
2007 2006 -
||
Assets
N
Current Assets '
Cash and cash equivalents $ 6,786,970 $ 7,291,637 |
Investments and assets limited as to use
Internally designated under self-insurance program 30,636 127,211 L
Short-term invesiments 3,846,092 1,826,802 [
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance for '
doubtful accounts of $8,933,000 in 2007 and |
$11,362,000 in 2006 ) 33,141,041 26,568,161
Due from related party 423755 - K
Inventories 2,153,453 2,147 405
Medicald assessment revenue receivable 12,596,005 - [ 8
Grant receivable 1,000,000 -
Other current assets 2,132,123 1,974,922 L2
Total current assets 62,110,075 39,936,138 u
Investments and Assets Limited as to Use, net of amounts o
. required to meet current obligations )
Pledged under debt agreement 12,041,020 12,040 542 [ o
Externally designated under lease agreement . 717,662 :
Internally designated under self-insurance program 1,933,333 2,009,888 K
Other Investments 1,632,059 2,682,589
15,606,412 17,450,681 i
Property and Equipment s
Land and land improvements 8,466,531 8,793,112 [
Buildings and fixtures 109,443,733 106,443,732 »
Equipment 120,906,482 117,627,148 [ o
Construction in progress 5,103,306 4,183,699
243,940,112 237,007 691 |
Less accumulated depreciation (186,210,094) {178,250,906) K
57,730,018 58,756,785 o
Other Assets -;
Deferred financing costs, net 207,978 474,253 K
Investment in joint venture and other 1,723,356 1,212,436
1,931,334 1,686,689 [
Total assets ' $ 137,377.839 $ 117,830,293 i
° -
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. ? G -;
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2007 2006

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Due to third-party payors

Current portion of long-term debt

Medicaid assessment tax payable

Current portion of professional liability

Current portion of deferred grant revenue
Totat current liablfities

Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion
Professional liability, less current portion
Financing obligation arising frorn sale-leaseback transaction
Deferred grant revenue, less current portion
Total fiabilities

Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 9 and 14)

Net Assets:
Unrestricted
Temporarily restricted
Permanently restricted
Total net assets

Total liabilities and net assets

$ 15366826 § 18195144

8,303,295 8,033,457
573,583 6,257,664
914,253 6,522,676
6,039,734 -

6,472,666 5,580,667
- 1,125,000 125,000
38,795,357 44,714,608
36,213,018 31,313,062
17,491,667 17,604,333
7,537,158 7,331,968
1,821,323 1,978,562
101,858,523 102,942,533

|

\

\

|
32,983,553 12,970,267
2,223,203 1,604,933
312,560 312,560
35,519,316 14,887,760

§ 137,377,839 § 117:830,293
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets
Years Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006
Revenue;
Net patient service revenue $ 190,180,524 $ 171,780,631
Medicaid assessment revenue 25,192,010 -
Capitation revenue 1,904,432 1,698,339
Contributions 994,439 867,944
Other 3,515,005 3,826,466
Net assets released from restriction - used for operations _ 361,601 328,519
222,148,011 178,501,899
Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 97,504,896 80,200,686
Supplies 29,315,853 25,775,952
Insurance, net {Note 11) 4,766,676 (2,242,683)
Depreciation and amortization 8,278,329 8,373,976
Provision for uncollectible accounts 11,631,073 14,323,749
Interest 2,815,971 2,743,940
Professional fees 6,295,101 5473,887
Repairs, utilities and rent 13,320,459 11,615,181
Purchased services 17,229,098 14,543,733
Medicaid assessment tax 12,079,468 -
Other 3,309,598 4,175,355
206,546,522 174,983,776
Operating income 15,601,489 3,518,123
Nonoperating income:
Gain on sale of property 2,932,909 848,808
Investment income 1,057,432 757,905
Income from joint venture 369,449 -
4,359,790 1,606,713
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 19961279 § 5,124 836
(Continued)
ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets {Continued)

Years Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006

Unrestricted net assets
Excess of revenue over expenses
Net change in unrealized gains and losses on investments
Forgiveness of note payable
Increase in unrestricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets
Contributions
Net assets released from restrictions - used for operations
Increase in temporarily restricted net assets

Increase in net assets

Net assets:
Beginning of year

End of year

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

7

$ 19961279 3§ 5,124,836

52,007 (2,543)
. 2,075,000
20,013,286 7,197,293
979,871 415,610
(361,601) (328,519)
618,270 87,091
20,631,556 7,284,384
14,887,760 7,603,376

§ 35519316 § 14867760
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

. Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 l

2007 2006

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase in net assets $ 20,631,556 § 7,284,384 |
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assefs to ‘
net cash provided by operating activities: |

Net change in unrealized gains and losses on investments (52,007) P 2,543
Depreciation ' 7,959,188 8,115.478 |
- Amortization ' 319,141 258,498 |
Provision for uncollectible accounts + 11,631,073 14,323,749
Gain on sale of property . (2,932,909) {848,808) |
Amortization of deferred grant revenue (157,239) (189,478) :
Interest added to financing obligation arising from sale- ' |
leaseback transaction : 205,190 285,327
Forgiveness of note payable ' . (2,075,000 I
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (18,203,953) (16,797,611) I
Medicaid assessment tax receivable and payable (6,556,271) - {
Grant receivable (1,000,000) -
Other assefs (727,035) (108,905) [
. Accounts payable and accrued expenses (1,955,784) 1,400,048
Due to third-party payors (5,684,081) 1,227,313 [
Professional fiability 779,333 (4,601,000) )
Deferred grant revenue 1,000,000 - £
Net cash provided by operating activities 5,256,202 8,276,598 [
Cash Flows from Investing Activities : [
Purchases of property and equipment (6,182,263) (8,148,311) :
Payments of accounts payable for the purchase of property and equipment (1,613,701) - [
Purchases of investments and assets limited as to use and other investments (5,160,976) (3,123,554) ’
Proceeds from sale of property 3,193,756 1,065,391 E
Proceeds from sale/maturity of investments and assets limited to use 5,134,537 3,941,945
Repayment from related party . 234,573 E
Advances to affiliate (423,755) -
Net cash (used in) investing activities (5,052,402) (6,029,955) E
Cash Flows from Financing Activities E
Net proceeds from long-term debt - 299,956 - &
Payments on long-term debt (1,008,423) (2,422,015)
Payment of deferred financing costs : - (253,098) E
Proceeds from grant, for property and equipment - 32,239
Net cash (used in) financing activities : (708,467) (2,642,874) E
. Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (504,667) {396,231} &
q O ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS E
(Continued)
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows {Continued)
Years Ended June 30, 2007 and 2006

2007 2006

Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning

Ending
Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized of $288,500
in 2007 and $259,000 in 2006

Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
Property and equipment additions included in accounts payable

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemer_ns.

Ul

$ 7,281,637 _§ 7,687,868

$ 6786970 § 7,291,637

$ ' 2,855602 9 2,636,215

$ 1011005 § 1,613 701
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Mercy Health System of Chicage and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies

Organization and nature of business: The accompanying consolidated financial statements represent the accounts
of Mercy Health System of Chicago {*Parent”) and its subsidiaries (jointly, the *Corporation”). The Corporation is
sponsored by the Sisters of Mercy of the Americas, Regional Community of Chicago (*Sisters of Mercy”}, a religious
institute. Subsidiaries of the Parent include Mercy Health Care Rehabilitation Center (“Center), Mercy Services
Corporation (“MSC”), Mercy Hospital and Medical Center {"Hospital"), and Mercy Foundation, Inc. (*Foundation”).

The Hospital is a ficensed 479-bed acute care facility with its prirﬁary market in the south and southwest side of
Chicago, Ilfinois, and adjacent suburbs. In addition to the main facility, the Hospital has a network of hospital-owned
primary care centers, private physician offices, and a number of satellites throughout the City of Chicago.

All of MSC's stock is owned by the Parent. MSC has been inactive since the transfer of its operations to the Hospital.

The Foundation was organized for the purpose of collecting, eaming, and receiving funds from public and private
sources, accumulating such funds, and making distributions of income to the Parent or related entities properly
designated by the Parent. '

The Center's assets were sold in December 2001. According to the sale agreement, $300,000 was placed into a
trust account to be used to offset Medicare and Medicaid audit adjustments related to periods prior to the sale.
Unused funds were released to the Hospital in February 2005. Other than recognizing interest income and expenses
related to the release of the trust monies, the Center has been inactive.

The Corporation is a 51% owner of Mercy Heart and Vascular, LLC, a for-profit corporation, which was established
for the purpose of subleasing computed tomography (CT) space and equipment for the overall purpose of promoting
health and providing quality health care services to a broad section of the community. The Corporation accounts for
this joint venture using the equity method.

A summary of significant accounting policies follows:

Principles of consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the Parent, Center, MSC,
Hospital and Foundation. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reporied amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. The use of estimates and assumptions in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements is primarily related to the determination of the net patient accounts receivable and
settlements with third-party payors and the accrual for professional liability. Due to uncertainties inherent in the
estimation and assumption process, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in these estimates and
assumptions in the near-term would be material to the financial statements.

Basis of presentation: The Corporation may classify its net assets into three categories, which are unrestricted,
temporarily restricted and permanently restricted.

A
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Unrestricted net assets are reflective of revenues and expenses associated with the principal operating activities of
the Corporation and are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations.

Temporarily restricted net assets are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may ar will be met either by actions
of the Corporation and/or the passage of ime. As of June 30, 2007 and 2006, temporarily restricted net assets were
restricted by donors primarity for patient care, community service, education, research, and purchase of equipment.
Income eamed on donor-restricted marketable securities, unless restricted by donors, is reflected in investmen '
income. When a donor restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are classified as unrestricted net assets
and reported in the statement of operations and changes in net assets as other revsnue.

Permanently restricied net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the Corporation in perpetuity.
The income earned on permanently restricted net assets has been restricted by donors to provide care for the poor.

Donor-restricted gifts: Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Corporation are reported at fair
value at the date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indication of intentions to give are
reported at fair value at the date the gift is received. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently
restricted suppart if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of operafions and
changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are
met within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial

statements.

Cash and cash equivalents: All investments that are not limited as to use with an onginal maturity of three months or
less at the time of acquisition are reflected as cash equivalents.

Throughout the year, the Corporation may have amounts on deposit with financial institutions in excess of those
insured by the FDIC. Management does not believe this presents a significant risk to the Corporation.

Patient accounts receivable, provision for doubtful accounts and due fromfto third party-payors: The collection of
receivables from third-party payers and patients is the Corporation’s primary source of cash for operations and s
critical to its operating performance. The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts and patient
accounts for which the primary insurance payor has paid, but patient responsibility amounts (deductibies and co-
payments) remain outstanding. Patient receivables, where a third-party payor is responsible for paying the amount,
are camied at a net amount determined by the original charge for the service provided, less an estimate made for
contractual adjustments or discounts provided to third-party payors.

Patient receivables due directly from the patients are carried at the original charge for the service provided less
amounts covered by third-party payors and less an estimated allowance for uncollectible receivables. Management
estimates this allowance based on the aging of its accounts receivable and its historical coliection experience for
each payor type. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are recorded as a reduction of the provision for

uncollectible accounts when received.

The past due status of receivables is determined on a case-by-case basis depending on the payor responsible.
Interest is generally not charged on past due accounts.

A3
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements -

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policles {Continued)

Receivables or payables related to estimated settiements on various payor contracts, primarily Medicare, are
reported as amounts due from or to third-party payors. Significant changes in payor mix, business office operations,
economic conditions or trends in federal and state governmental health care coverage could affect the Corporation's
collection of accounts receivable, cash flows and resulis of operations.

Inventories: Inventories are stated at cost (first-in, first-out method). Inventories consist primarily of supplies
inventories. '

H

Investments and assets fimited as to use: investments are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices.
Realized investment income is included in excess of revenue over expenses unless/the income or loss is restricted
by donor or law. The change in unrealized appreciation in fair value of investments is recognized as a change in net
assets. '

Investments are regularly evaluated for impairment. The Corporation considers factors affecting the investee, factors
affecting the industry the investee operates within, and general debt and equity trends. The Corporation considers
the length of time an investment's fair value has been below carrying value, the near-term prospects for recovery to
carrying value, and the intent and ability to hold the investment until maturity date or market recovery is iealized. |f
and when a determination is made that a decline in fair value below the cost basis is other than temporary, the
related investment is written down to its estimated fair valte and included as a realized loss in excess of revenue
over expenses.

Assets limited as to use consist of investments set aside by the Board for self<insurance over which the Board retains
control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes. Assets iimited as to use aiso include
investments extemally designated under debt and lease agreements.

Property and equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated on the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. The assets’ lives are as follows:

Land improvements 5 years
Buildings and fixtures 5 - 40 years
Fumiture and equipment 3-20 years
Automobiles 3-4 years
Leasehold improvements 15 - 20 years

Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is capitalized as a
component of the cost of acquiring those assets.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buiidings, or equipment, are reported as unrestricted support and are
included in the income or loss from operations unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must
be used. Gifts of long-ived assets with explicit restrictions that specify how the assets are used and gifts of cash or
other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor
stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported
when the donated or acquired long-lived assets are placed.in service.

Accrued professional liability: The provision for accrued professional liability includes estimates of the ultimate costs
for claims incurred but not reported. The provision is actuarially determined. The Corporation is completely self-
insured for all claims incurred on and after July 1, 2002.

10 ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consclidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Deferred financing costs: Costs incurred in connection with the issuance or refinancing of long-term debt are
deferred and amortized over the term of the related financing on a method that approximates the effective yield
method.

Community commitment: Community commitment includes patient charity care rendered to the community ata
reduced rate or at no fee based upon community need or the inability of the individual to pay for services. Because
the Corporation does not pursue collection of amounts determined to qualify as chanity care, they are not reported as

revenue.

Net patient service revenue: The Corporation has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to
the Corporation at amounts different from its established rates. Payment amrangements.include prospectively
determined rates per discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, and per diem payments. Net patient service
revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services
rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors.
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and
adjusted in future peniods as final settlements are determined.

Capitation revenue: The Corporation has an agreement with independent Physician Association at Mercy (IPA@M),
an independent physician association (IPA), to provide outpatient diagnostic services for a monthly capitation fee.
IPA@M receives capitation payments from various health maintenance organizations (HMOs) and sub-capitates to
the Hospital for outpatient diagnostic services. Under this agreement, the Corporation receives monthly capitation
payments based on the number of the IPA's participants, regardless of the outpatient diagnostic services actually
performed by the Corporation.

Operating income: The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include operating income.
Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from operating income, include investment income, gains
and losses from sales of property and equipment, and other income and expense which management views as

outside of nomal activity.

Excess of revenues over expenses: The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include
excess of revenue over expenses that represents the results of operations. Changes in unrestricted net assets that

are excluded from excess of revenues over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include the change in net
unrealized appreciation in fair value of investments, and forgiveness of notes payable by related parties.

Income taxes: The Parent, the Hospital, the Center, and the Foundation have received determination letters from the
Intemal Revenue Service stating that they are exempt from the payment of federal income taxes under Sectlon
501(c)(3) of the intemal Revenue Code.

At June 30, 2007, MSC had approximately $1,566,000 of net operating tax loss camryforwards available for use
against future taxable income, which begin to expire in 2012. As a result of the net operating tax loss camyforwards,
there is no income tax provision in 2007 and 2006. Due to the uncerizain future realization of these loss
carryforwards, the related tax assets have been fully reserved by a valuation allowance in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

Reclassifications: Certain amounts within the 2006 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to
conform with the 2007 presentation with no effect on net assets.

a5
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2. Net Patient Service Revenue

The Corporation has agreements with third-party payors which provide for reimbursement to the Corporation at
amounts different from its established rates. Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs
represent the difference between the Corporation's billings at list price and the amounts reimbursed by Medicare,
Medicaid, Blue Cross, and certain other third-party payors, and any differences between estimated third-party
reimbursement setilements for prior years and subsequent final settlements. Contractual adjustments under third-
party reimbursement programs are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendere
and are adjusted in future periods as final sefflements are determined. A summary of the basis of reimbursemerit

with major third-party payors follows:

Medicare: The Corporation is paid for inpatient acute care and outpatient care services rendered to Medicare
program beneficiaries under prospectively determined rates per discharge (Prospective Payment Systems). These
rates vary according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors.
inpatient non-acute services and defined capital and medical education costs related to Medicare beneficiaries are
paid based upon either a cost reimbursement method or established fee screens, or a combination thereof. The
Corporation's classification of patients under Prospective Payment Systems and the appropriateness of the patient's
admissions are subject to validation reviews. The Corporation is reimbursed for cost reimbursable items at tentative
rates with final setlement determined after submission of annual reimbursement reports by the Corporation and

audits by the Medicare fiscal intermediary.

For the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Corporation recognized approximatety $169,765,000 and
$158,854,000, respectively, of gross patient service revenues from services provided to Medicare beneficiaries.
Changes in Medicare reimbursement as a result of the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services' implementation
of the provisions of future Medicare legisiation may have an adverse effect on the Corporation’s net patient service
revenue. Fiscal year 2008 will represent the first of a three-year phase-in period for implementation of a revised
Medicare Diagnosis Related Group (DRG) reimbursement system. This new payment methodology makes
meaningful refinements to the current CMS classffication system to increase recognition of severity of illness.
However, there will be a limited impact on payments in specific DRGs because of the simultaneous implementation

of incremental reforms for cost-based and severity-based payments.

Laws and regulations goveming the Medicare program are complex and subject to interpretation. As a result, there
is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a material amount in the near-term. The
Hospital befieves that it is in compliance with afl applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of any pending or
threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no such regulatory inquiries have been
made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject o future govemment review and interpretation, as
well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare program. Net patient
service revenue in 2007 and 2006 increased by the effect of third-party payor setilements by approximately $284,000
and $1,200,000, respectively. At.June 30, 9006, the Hospital recorded a liability of approximately $3,500,000 in
connection with the Medicare disproportionate share (DSH) settiements related to fiscal years ended June 30, 2006,
2005 and 2004. In fiscal year 2007, approximately $3,200,000 of the 2006 liability was reversed as the Federal

Centers of Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) is now allowing Title 21 days.
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2. Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

Medicaid: The Corporation is reimbursed at prospectively determined rates for each Medicaid inpatient discharge.
Outpatient services are reimbursed based on established fee screens. For inpatient acute care services, payment
rates vary according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. The
prospectively determined rates are not subject to retroactive adjustment. As described below, the Corporation also
receives incremental Medicaid reimbursement for specific programs and services at the discretion of the State of
linois Medicaid Program. Medicaid reimbursement may be subject to periodic adjustment, as well as to changes in
existing payment levels and rates, based on the amount of funding available to the Medicaid program.

For the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Corporation recognized approximately $122,424,000 and
$104,234,000, respectively, of gross patient service provided to Medicaid patients. ‘Due to the Hospital's refatively
high Medicaid patient volume, the Hospital received additional reimbursement of approximately $13,430,000 in both
2007 and 2006 in the form of critical hospital adjustment payments ("CHAP"), safety net access payments.("SNAP")
and tertiary payments, the majority of which is provided by the lllinois Medicaid program. The Hospita! also receives
disproportionate share and Medicaid High Volume Adjustment amounts as a daily add-on for Medicaid patients.

Managed care organizations: The Corporation has also entered into reimbursement agreements with certain
commercial insurance camers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The basis
for payment under these agreements includes discounts from established charges and prospectively determined per

diem rates.

Provider tax assessment program: The Hospital is part of the State of illinois' hospital tax assessment program
which is administered by the lllinois Department of Public Aid. During fiscal year 2007, the program was renewed for
the period July 2005 through June 30, 2008, Under this program, the Hospital is to receive annually approximately
$12,596,000 from the State and pay annually a provider tax assessment approximating $6,040,000. At June 30,
2007, the Hospital had a receivable of $12,596,005 and a liability of $6,039,734 recorded refated o this program.

For the year ended June 30, 2007, the Hospita! has recorded $25,192,010 in assessment revenue and $12,079,468
in provider tax expense. The State of lllinois has significantly delayed certain payments related to this program as
well as collection of the related assessment tax. Although payment cannot be assured, Hospital management
befieves that the assessment program’s obligations will be fulfilled in the next fiscal year. However, the timing of
these payments is uncertain,

Note 3. Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Corporation grants credit without coliateral fo its patients, most of who are local residents and are insured under
third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors at June 30, 2007 and
2006 was as follows:

2007 2006

Medicare 20% 21%
Medicaid 35 30
Managed care . . 26 30
Other third-party payors 4 4
Self-pay 15 15

. 100% - 100%

ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS




Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 4. Community Commitment and Charity Care

Although reimbursement for services rendered i is critical to the operation of the Corporation, it is the Corporation’s
health care mission to serve the community by treating patients in immediate need of medical services without regard
for their ability to pay for such services. The Corporation maintains records to identify and monitor the ieve! of charity
care it provides. These records include the amount of charges forgone for services and supplies fumished under its
charity care policy, as well as the estimated cost of services and supplies. The estimated difference between the
services provided to Medicaid patients and the reimbursement from the state for this patient care is also moni}ored.

During the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006, the following levels of charity care were provided:

2007 2006
Charges forgone for charity based on .
established rates $ 8799417 $ 9273912
E.;stimated excess of cost over
reimbursement for Medicaid patients $ 6247097 $ 5521989
Note 5. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use, Short-Term Investments, and Cther Investments

The composition of investments and assets limited as to use, short-term investments, and other investments, which
are recorded at fair value based on quoted market values, is as follows as of June 30:

2007 2006
Cash and cash equivalents $ 15315882 §$ 16,876,349
Certificates of deposit 3,536,734 1,934,999
Marketable equity securities 630,524 282,842
U.S. government money market funds .- 300,501

Accrued interest receivable - 10,003
. $ 19483140 $ 19404694

Investment return for investments and assets whose use is limited, short-term investments, and other investments for
the years ended June 30, 2007 and 2006 is as follows:

2007 2006
Interest and dividend income § 1057432 § 757,905
Other changes in unrestricted net assets - change
in unrealized gains and losses on investments S 52007 § {2,543)

Investment securities, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall market
volaﬂllty Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is reasonably possible that changes
in the value of investment securities will occur in the near-term and that such changes could materially affect the
amounts reported in the balance sheet.

ﬁ 8 . ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 6. Investment in Affiliate

The following is a summary of financia! information relating to Mercy Heart and Vascular, LLC, the Corporation’s
investment in joint venture as of June 30: :

2007 2006
Assets $ 879735 § -
Total equity 879,735 { -
Revenue 1,005,710 -
Net income 724,344 -

Note 7. Sale-Leaseback Transaction

On April 15, 2005, the Corporation sold land for $7,000,000 and concurrently entered into an agreement to lease the
property back at $10 per year through April 2009. The Corporation has an option to repurchase the property within
the lease term. Because the Corporation has an option fo repurchase the property, the sale did not quealify for sale-
leaseback accounting and, thus, was accounted for as a financing transaction under FASB Statement No. 98, Sale-
| easeback Accounting. Therefore, the net proceeds from the sale have been recorded as a financing obligation.
Payments under the lease are treated as interest expense with an appropriate per annum inflation based on the
consumer price index (2.7% and 4.3% at June 30, 2007 and 2008, respectively) and a reduction {or increase, if
applicable) of the financing obligation. A sale will be recognized when the Corporation's option to repurchase
expires. The land involved in this transaction has a cost basis of approximately $2,983,000 and is included in land

and land improvements on the balance sheet.

As required by the refated agreement, the Corporation had $717,662 at June 30, 2006 held in escrow related to the
sale-leaseback of the land to be used to pay for costs related to the remediation of environmental issues for this
property, if necessary. This amount is included with investments and assets limited as to use — extemally designated
under lease agreement on the consolidated balance sheet. During 2007, the remaining funds in the escrow account

were released to the Corporation as all required remediation was completed.
Note 8. Notes Payable, Long-Term Debt and Subsequent Event

During 2003, the Corporation issued an uricollateralized demand note payable to the Sisters of Mercy in the amount
of $2,075,000. This note was issued to provide additional working capital to the Corporation. The note was non-
interest bearing. The note was forgiven in its entirety in June 2006. The $2,075,000 was recognized as a transfer of
net assets (forgiveness of note payable) on the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets.

Qg9
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Notes Payable, Long-Term Debt and Subsequent Event (Continued)

Long-term debt is summarized as follows at June 30:

2007 2006
General Electric Capital Corporation, $2,150,000 note
bearing interest at 5.5%, payable In monthly installments
of $29,982, with final installment due January 1, 2008 $ 180,920 § 563,892

JPMorgan Chase Bank:
$12,000,000 promissory note, bearing interest at the prime
rate minus 0.75%, interest payable quarterly, principal
due October 15, 2008* " 12,000,000 12,000,000
$8,000,000 promissory note, bearing interest at the prime rate :
minus 0.75%, payable in quarterly installments of $100,000 ,
plus interest, with a final payment due October 15, 2008* 7,200,000 7,600,000
-$5,000,000 promissory note, bearing interest at the prime rate
minus 0.75%, interest payable quarterly, principal .
due October 15, 2008* 5,000,000 5,000,000
Capital Source Finance, $20,000,000 revolving line of credit,
bearing interest at an annual rate equal to the 30-day LIBOR
rate plus 3.5%, expires October 15, 2008* 12,413,018 12,113,062
One-time overadvance on Capital Source Finance, $20,000,000
revolving line of credit, bearing interest at an annual rate
equal to the 30-day LIBOR rate plus 4.5%, payable in
monthly installments of $139,698 plus interest,

with final installment due September 30, 2007 333,333 558,784
37,127,271 37,835,738

Less: .
Current portion : (914,253) (6,522 676)

$ 36213018 § 31,313,062

*Subsequent to year end, the debt agreements were amended to extend the due dates from April 15, 2008
to October 15, 2008. The debt is shown in accordance with the new terms.

At June 30, 2007, the prime rate was 8.25% and the 30-day LIBOR rate was 5.31%.

The terms of the loan agreements with JP Morgan Chase Bank require that the Corporation maintain a total of
$12,000,000, plus accrued interest, in pledged accounts with a bank. At June 30, 2007 and 2006, the Corporation
held approximately $12,041,000 in these pledged accounts.

At June 30, 2007 and 2006, the $8,000,000 note was secured by a guarantee by the Sisters of Mercy and the
$5,000,000 note is secured by a mortgage on the Corporation's property. The Corporation’s accounts receivable and
certain other assets are pledged as coltateral under the revolving line of credit.

The loan agreements on the notes contain various covenants including those relating to limitations on incurring
additional debt and disposing of property. In addition, the revolving credit and security agreement contains
covenants including those relating to financial performance, insurance coverage and timely submission of specified
financial reports.

0O
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Notes Payable, Long-Term Debt and Subsequent Event (Continued)

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Long-Term
Year Ending June 30: Debt
2008 $ 914,253
2009 36,213,018
- $§ 37127.271

Note 8. Lease Obligations

Rental expense for all operating leases totaled approximately $3,452,000 and $2,860,000 in 2007 and 20086,
respectively. Future minimum lease payments under the noncanceliable leases and related maintenance

agreements are as follows:

Year Ended June 30:
2008 _ $ 2228224
2009 1,789,297
2010 ‘ 1,124,015
2011 858,058
2012 782,155
Thereafter _ 397,676

$ 7179425

Note 10. Retirement Plan

The Hospital sponsored a noncontributory, defined-benefit pension plan, which covered substantially ail of the
Hospitaf's full-time employees. Benefits were based on years of service and the employee’s compensation during
the iast five years of employment. The Hospital's funding policy was to contribute such amounts as are necessary {0
provide for benefits attributed to service to date and those expected to be eamed in the future. Effective June 30,
2003, the plan was amended to freeze all benefit accruals. As a result, a curtaiiment benefit was recorded by the

Hospital.

Effective June 30, 2004, the plan was amended to aflow the sponsor to terminate the plan and settle pension
obligations with all plan participants. The pian amendment accelerated the distribution of benefits eamed. Effective
July 1, 2004, the plan was amended to cease commencing distributions, eliminate the annuity forms of distribution,
revise the allocation formula upon plan termination, revise the provision related to payment in the event a participant
or beneficiary is determined to be incompetent, and provide that the plan be terminated effective July 1, 2004. As of
June 30, 2006, substantially all plan assets were distributed.

XX
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 10.  Retirement Plan (Continued}

The following table sets forth the plan's funded status and amounts recognized in the accompanying consclidated
balance sheets at June 30, 2006:

Change in benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 19,837,865
Service cost /-
Interest cost 228,838

Plan amendments -
Effect of curtailment ; -
Actuarial losses

Benefils paid (19,152,047)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 914,656
Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets al beginning of year 9 19,837,865
Actual return on plan assets - 228,838
Employer contributions -
Benefit paid {19,152,047)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 914 656
Funded status of the plan $ -

Unrecognized prior service cost -
Unrecognized net actuarial gain -

Accrued benefit cost, before additional minimum liability
Adjustment for additional minimum liability _ -

Accrued benefit cost, after additional minimum liability $ -
Assumptions:

Discount rate - 6.00%

Expected return on plan assets NiA

Rate of compensation increase . N/A

Due to the distribution of plan assets, the plan's remaining assets are allocated to fixed income investments as of

June 30, 2006,

Effective July 1, 2004, the Corporation put in place a defined-contribution pension plan, which covers substantially all

of the Corporation’s full-ime employees. The Corporation’s matching contributions are 50% of the anount

contributed by participants, up to a maximum of 6% of the participant's compensation. For the years ended June 30,

2007 and 2006, total expense associated with this plan amounted to approximately $1,261,000 and $1,015,000,
respectively.

YA
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Substdiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 11.  Professional and General Liability Insurance

The actuarially determined professional liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets reflects
management's assessment of claims applicable to all seff-insured periods. Accrued professional liability losses have
been discounted at 6% at both June 30, 2007 and 2006 and are based on & confidence level of approximately 60%.
An accrual for possible losses attributable to incidents that may have occurred, but that have not been identified
under the incident reporting system is included in this liabiity. If accrued professional liability losses had not been
discounted, the estimated liability would be approximately $3,131,000 and $4,031,000 higher than the amounts
recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30, 2007 and 2006, respectively. :

The Corporation's 2006 insurance expense was reduced by approximately $7,400,000 due to a change in the
estimated professional liability accrual as a result of several factors, including revision of the confidence level used to
estimate expected losses from 75% to 60% and favorable loss claim experience. In addition, the Corporation
received a prior year premium refund during 2006 in the amount of $1,300,000. This refund resulted-in an additional

reduction of 2006 insurance expense.
Note12.  Transactions with Related Parties

The following related party transactions have been entered into:

a. As of June 30, 2005, the Corporation had a note payable to the Sisters of Mercy outstanding in the amount
of $2,075,000 which was forgiven in June 2006.

b. The Hospital bills and collects monies for services rendered to the Diagnostic and Treatment (D&T)
Center's patients. In addition, the Hospital charges the D&T Center certain indirect costs of providing
administrative, financial, and clinical services. These charges totaled approximately $413,000 in both 2007
and 2006. '

¢. The operations of the D&T Center are dependent on the continued financial and operating support of the
Hospital. Under the-terms of the Hospital's management agreement with the D&T Center, the Hospital has
agreed to provide the necessary financial and operating support to the D&T Center for future periods.

Note 13.  Functional Expenses

The Corporation provides general health care services to residents within Chicago and the surrounding area and
supports medical education programs. The Corporation's expenses related to providing these services are as follows
for the years ended June 30:

2007 2006
Health care services $ 106,316,115 § 97,313,451
Medical education 7,985,847 7,520,184
Fund-raising . 641,693 515,996
Genera! and administrative 81,602,867 69,634,145

§ 206546522 § 174983776

Certain amounts have been allocated between health care services, medical education, and general and
administrative services. 3
I 0 ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 4.  Commitments and Contingencles

Litigation: The Corporation is a defendant in various lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. Although
the outcome of the lawsuits cannot be determined with certainty, management believes the ultimate disposition of _
such matters will not have a matenal effect on the Corporation’s financial statements.

Regulatory investigation: The U.S. Department of Justice, other federal agencies and the llinois Department of
Public Aid routinely conduct regulatory investigations and compliance audits of health care providers. The
Corporation is subject to these regulatory efforts. Management is currently unaware of any regulatory matters which
may have a material effect on the Corporation's financial posftion or results from operation.

Claim settlement: In 2008, the Corporation settied a lawsuit for the amount of $3,300,000. Of this amount,
$1,300,000 was paid on the settlement date (September 1, 2005). The remaining $2,000,000 is to be paid in three
equal annual instaliments on August 1 of 2006, 2007 and 2008. The Corporation intends to fund the settlement with
cash from operations. At June 30, 2007 and 2006, the settiement amount included in professional liabifity on the
consolidated balance sheet was approximately $1,333,300 and $2,000,000, respectively.

Land sale; In 2004, the Corporation entered into an agreement with a developer to sell the property east of Prairie
Avenue for a floor price of $8,250,000. The Hospital will receive additional proceeds based on the actual number of
housing units sold. Total sale proceeds are estimated to be $10.4 million. Two closings were completed in 2006 and
an additional two closings were completed in 2007. Sales proceeds received in 2007 and 2006 were approximately
$3,246,000 and $944,000, respectively. During 2007 and 2006, the Corporation recognized a gain on the sale of this
property of approximately $2,918,000 and $848,000, respectively.

Electronic medical records system implementation:” in March 2007, the Corporation entered into an agreement with
Cemer Corporation to purchase equipment and certain sub-ficensed software licenses for an Electronic Medical
Records System. Total cost of the system is estimated to be $5 million. As of June 30, 2007, $400,000 has been
paid toward the system. The Corporation intends to fund the remaining cost with cash from operations. The system

is expected to be implemented during fiscal year 2008.

Contingency: Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset
Relirernent Obligations (FIN 47) clarified when an entity is required to recognize a liability for a conditional asset
retirement obligation. The Corporation has a legal obligation to remove hazardous materials from its facilities in the
event the facilities are renovated or replaced. Such hazardous materials include asbestos. Management believes
there is an indeterminate settiement date for the asset retirement obligations because of the range of time over which
the Corporation may settle the obligation is unknown. However, management does not believe that the estimate of
the liability related to these asset retirement obligations is a material amount at June 30, 2007 and 2006.

Note 15. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the'Corporation to estimate the fair value of other financial
instruments:

The carying value of cash and cash equivalents, patient.accounts receivables due from related party, Medicaid
assessment revenue receivable, grant receivable, other curment assets, accounts payable, accrued expenses,
estimated setlements due to or from third-party payors and Medicaid assessment tax payable are reasonable
estimates of their vaiue due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments.
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consofidated Financial Statements

Note 15.  Fair Value of Financial Instruments (Continued)

The fair value of investments and assets limited as to use, which are the amounts reported on the balance sheet, is
based on quoted market prices.

The fair value of long-term debt is estimated based on interest rates for the same or similar debt offered to the
Corporation having the same or similar remaining matunities and collateral requirements. The fair value of the-long-
term debt approximates the carrying values. ;

Note16.  Pending Adoptions of New Accounting Principles

In July 2006, the FASB issued interpretation No. 48 (FIN 48}, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - as
interpretation of SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes. FIN 48 clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in
income taxes recognized in an enterprise's financial statements in accordance with SFAS, Accounting for Income
Taxes. FIN 48 prescribes a comprehensive model for recognizing, measuring, presenting and disclosing in the
financial statements tax positions taken or expected to be taken on a tax retum. FIN 48 is effective for the
Corporation on July 1, 2007. The Corporation is currently evaluating the impact of FIN 48 on its financial statements.

In September 20086, the FASB issued SFAS No, 157, Fair Value Measurements. SFAS No. 157 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair value and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. The

requirements of SFAS No. 157 are effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after
November 15, 2007. The Corporation is cumrently evaluating the impact of SFAS No. 157 on its financial statements.
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. McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

independent Auditor's Report on the Supplementary Information !

To the Board of Directors
Mercy Health System of Chicago
Chicago, illinois

Our audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements taken as
a whole. The consolidating information is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the basic consolidated
financial statements rather than to present the financial position and results of operations of the individual companies.

. The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic
consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic
consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

%%//k%(/ 2~

Chicago, Hilinois
October 30, 2007
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McGigdrey & Pullen, LLP &s a member i of RSM intemational,
an affikation of separaie and independent legal entities
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|
Mercy Heﬁfth System of Chicago and Subsldiaries K
onsolldating Statement of Operations
Year Ended June 30, 2007 K
Mercy Mercy Mercy
Health Hospttal and Health Care Mercy Mercy l
System of Medical Rehabiltation ~ Services Foundation, Consclidated K
Chicago Center Center Corporation Inc. Eliminations Totals
Revenue: . '
Net patient service revenue $ - $180,18054 § - % - % - 3 - § 190,180,524 ‘
Medicaid assessment revenue - 25,192,010 - - - - 25,192,010
Capitation revenue - 1,904,432 - - - - 1,504,432 K
Contributions - 539,782 - - 884,657 {430,000) 594,439 '
Other . 3,515,005 - - - - 3,515,005 L
Net assets released from restriction - ' : '
used for operations - 220917 - - . 140,684 - 361,601 K
- 221,552,670 - - ‘1025341 (4300000 2221 46,011 K
Expenses: ~ ‘
Salaries and benefits - 97,309,357 - - 195,539 - 97,504,896
Supplies - 29,305,502 - - 10,351 - © 29,215,853 £
Insurance - 4,766,876 - - - - 4,766,676
Depreciation and amortization ‘ - 8,214,231 - - 4,098 - 8,278,329 [
Provision for uncoliectible accounts - 11,607,707 - - 23,366 - 11,631,073 -
Interest - 281597 - - - - 2,815971 L
Professional fees - 6,295,101 - - - - 6,205,101 -
Repairs, utilities and rent - 13,286,725 - - 33,734 - 13,320,459 o
Purchased servicas - 17,229,098 - - - - - 17,229,098
Medicaid assessment tax - 12,075,468 - - . - 12,079,468 E
Cther - 2,860,086 - - 748,512 {430,000) 3,309,588 C
- 205,959,922 - - 1,016,600 {430,000) 206.546,522
Operating income - 15,502,748 - - 8,741 - 15,601,489
Nonoperating income: E
Gain on sale of property - 2932509 - - - - 2,932,909 E
investment income 570 504,129 - - 152,733 - 1,057 432
Income from joint venture - 369,449 - - - - 369449 ;
Excess of revenue over expenses 570 19,789,235 - 161,474 - 19,961,279 E
Unrestricted net assets: E
Net change in unrealized gains and
losses on investments - - - - 52,007 - 52,007 E
Increase in unrestricted netassets § 5§70 § 15799235 % - 8§ -8 213,481 § - § 20,013,286 E

®
Fh
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McGladrey & Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements

To the Board of Directors
Mercy Heaith System of Chicago
Chicago, lllingis

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Mercy Health System of Chicago and
Subsidiaries {the “Corporation”} as of June 30, 2006 and 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations
and changes in net assels and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the responsibility
of the Corporation's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements basaed on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasanable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audits pravide a reasonable basis for our opinion,

in our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries as of June 30, 2006 and 2005, and the results
of their operations and changes in net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accaunting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

As discussed in Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements, the Corporation's 2006 insurance expense was
reduced by approximately $7,400,000 due to a change in the estimated professional liability accrual as a result of

several factors, including favorable loss claim experience and a revision of the confidence level used to estimate
expected losses.

MeSadssy [ e, 2

Chicago, Illinois
August 29, 2006

(12

McGladrey & Pullen, LLP is @ member firm of RSM Inlemationas, ]
an affiiation of saparals and independent legal entiies. ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS
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- | -
Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries c
Consolidated Balance Sheets :
June 30, 2006 and 2005 =
2006 2005 =
-
Assets )
c
Current Assels .
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7291637 § 7687868 L=
Investments and assets limited as to use - C
intemelly designated under self-insurance program 127,211 73,220
Shart-term investments 1,826,802 1,002,764 [ -
Patient accounts receivable, net of allowance for ]
doubtful accounts of $11,362,000 in 2006 and [
$16,318,000 in 2005 26,568,161 24,094,295 3
Due from related party ' S 2345737 C
Inventories 2,147,405 1,85¢,338 C
Other cumrent assets 1,974,922 2,404,790
Tatal current assets 39,936,138 37,351,852 [ -
Investments and Assets Limited as to Use, net of amounts [
required to meet current obligations : )
Pledged under debt agresment 12,040,542 12,087,649 E
Externally designated under lease agreement 717,662 800,000 -
Internally designated under seif-insurance program 2,009,888 -
Externally designated under self-insurance program - 3,812,500 c
Other Investments 2,682,589 2,445,495
17,450,681 19,149,644 |}
Property and Equipment o i
Land and land improvements 8,753,112 9,316,753 Lk
Buildings and fixtures 106,443,732 105,162,988
Equipment 117,627,148 112,830,818 i
Construction in progress 4,183,699 788,744
237,007,691 228,108,304 |
Less accumulated depreciation {178,250,906) " (170,781,470) .
. 58,755,785 57 376,834 =
Other Assels =
Deferred financing costs, net 474,253 479,653 H
Other nancurrent assets 1,212,436 966,731
1,686,689 1,446,384 ]
Total assets § 117830283 § 115274714 m|
N
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. ‘ ’ 3 =
o
2 ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS a
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2006 2005

Liahilities and Net Assets

Curmrent Liabilities .
Accounts payable $ 18195144 § 14135542
Accrued expenses 8,158,457 9,204,310
Due lo third-party payors 6,257,664 5,030,291
Current portion of long-term debt 6,522,676 7442634
Note payable . 2,075,000
Cument portion of professional liability 5,580,667 7,423,000

Total current liabilities 44,714,608 45,310,777

Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-term debt, less current portion 3,313,062 32,815,119
Professional liability, less current portion 17,604,333 20,363,000
Financing obligation arising from sale-leaseback lransaction 7,331,968 7,046,641
Deferred grant revenue 1,978 562 2,135 801

Total liabilities 102,942,533 107,671,338
Commitments and Contingencies (Notes 8 and 13}

Net Assels: .
Unrestricted 12,970,267 5772974
Temporarily restricted . 1,604,933 1,517,842
Permanently restrigted * - 312,560 312,560

Total net assets 14,887,760 7,603,376
Total liahilitles and net assets s 11Tk8301293 5 115!274!?14 N
3 ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets

Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

2006

2005

Revenue:
Net patient service revenue

Medicaid hospital assessment revenue . 11,679,718
Capitation revenue 1,698,339 1,337,213
Contributions 867,944 315,032
Other 3,826,466 4,118,378
Net assets released from restriction - used for operations 328,519 645,537
178,501,898 187,724,426
Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 90,200,686 86,613,397
Supplies ' 25,775,952 25,530,887
Insurance, net (Note 10) (2,242,683) 5,741,054,
Depreciation and amortization 8,373,976 8,419,930
Pravision for uncollectible accounts 14,323,749 13,811,990.
Interest 2,743,940 3,725,496
Professional fees 5,473,887 5,375,728
Repairs, utilities and rent 11,615,181 10,631,278
Purchased services 14,543,733 13,589,315
Medicaid hospital assessment expense . 6,779,314
Other 4,175,355 3,783,325
174,983,776 184,001,714
Operating income 3,518,123 3722712
Nonoperating income (expense): :
Gain on sale of property and equipment 848,808 45,324
investment income 757,905 1,544,392
Loss on advance refunding . (978,534)
Other . {30,000)
1,606,713 581,182
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 5124836 & 4,302 894
(Continued)
115
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes in Net Assets (Continued)
Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

2006 2005
Unrestricted net assels
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 5124836 § 4,303,854
Net change in unrealized gains and losses on investments {2,543) .
Fargiveness of nate payable 2,075,000 .
Change in minimum pension liability . 5,503,714
Increase in unrestricted net assats 7,197,293 9,807,608
Tempoararily restricted net assets
Contributions 415,610 669,452
Net assets released from restrictions - used for operations (328,519) (645,537)
Increase in temporarlly restricted net assets 87,091 23,915
increase (n net assets 7,284,384 9,831,523
Net assets:
Beginning of year 7,603,376 (2,228,147
End of year § 14887760 §  7,603.376
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
5 ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsldiaries

Consolldated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005

No. 4704 P 9

2006 2005

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Net change in unrealized gains and losses on investments
Depreciation
Amortization
Provision for uncollectible accounts
Gain on sale of property and equipment
Amortization of deferred revenue
Loss on advance refunding
Interest added to financing obligation arising from sale-leaseback transagtion
Forgiveness of note payable
Changes in operating assets and liabilifies:
Accounts receivable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to third-party payors
Professional ljability
Pension liability
Other assets
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of investments and assets limited as to use and other investments
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale/maturity of investments and assets limited to use
Advance to related party
Repayment from related party
Release debt service reserve funds (1992 and 1936 bonds)
Net cash (used in} investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Advance refunding.of long-term debt

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Proceeds from sale-leaseback transaction

Payments on iong-term debt

Payments on noles payable

Payment of deferred financing costs

Procseds from grant, for property and equipment
Net cash {used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) in cash and cash equlvalents ' ' -7

(Continued)

$ 7284384 § 9,831,523

2,543 -
8,115,478 8,162,489
258,498 257 441
14,323,749 13,814,990
(848,808) (45,324)
(189,478) (125,000}
. 978,534
285,327 46,641
(2,075,000) :
(16,797,611) (16,523,359)
1,400,048 1,624,551
1,227,373 (3,284,525)
(4,601,000) 3,439,000
. (5,633,240)
{108,905) (1,247,769)
8,276,598 11,202,962
(8,148,311) (7,458,178)
(3,423,554 (16,700,149)
1,065,391 57,659
3,941,946 5,132,278
. (234,573)
234,573 :
. 9,763,743
(6,029,955) (9.439,220)
. (54,278,138)
. 40,000,000
. 7,000,000
(2,422,015) (4,727,757)
: (542,549)
(253,098) (576,135)
32,239 134,329

(2,642,874) (12,990,250}

(396,231) (11,136,508) -
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i
i Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsldiaries
i Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Continued)
@ vears Ended June 30, 2006 and 2005
! 2006 2005
! Cash and cash equivalents:
i Beginning § 70687868 § 18,824,376
I Ending § 7291637 §  7687,868
! Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information
i Cash paid for interest, net of amounts capitalized of $259,000
in 2006 and none in 2005 $__ 2636915 9 5343427
i
1 Supplemental Schedule of Noncash Investing and Financing Activities
I Property and equipment additions included in accounts payahle $ 1,613,701 §
! See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Mercy Health System of Chicage and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies

Oraanization and nature of business: The accompanying consolidated financial statements represent the accounts
of Mercy Health System of Chicago ("Parent’) and its subsidiaries (jointly, the "Corporation”), The Corporation is
sponsored by the Sisters of Mercy of the Americas, Regional Community of Chicago ("Sisters of Mercy”), a religious
institute. Subsidiaries of the Parent in¢lude Mercy Health Care Rehabilitation Center (*Center’), Mercy Services
Corporation ("MSC"), Mercy Hospital and Medical Center (*Hospital"), and Mercy Foundation, Inc. (*Foundation®).

The Hospital is a ficensed 479-bed acute care facility with its pimary market in the south and southwest side of
Chicago, lllineis, and adjacent suburbs. in addition to the main facility, the Hospital has a network of hospital-owned
primary care centers, private physician offices, and a number of satellites throughout the City of Chicago.

naonTnATIRNANRN

All of MSC's stock is owned by the Parent. MSC has been inactive since the transfer of its operations to the Hospital.

n

The Foundation was organized for the purpose of collecting, earning, and receiving funds from public and private
sources, accumulating such funds, and making distributions of income to the Parent or related entities property
designated by the Parent.

The Center's assets were sold in December 2001. According to the sale agreement, $300,000 was placed into a
trust account to be used to offset Medicare and Medicaid audil adjustments related to penods prior to the sale.
Unused funds were released to the Hospital in February 2005. Other than recagnizing interest income and expenses
related to the release of the trust monies, the Center has been inactive.

A summary of significant accounting policies follows:

Principles of consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the Parent, Center, MSC,
Hospital and Foundation. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. .

Use of estimales: The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumalions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disciosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. The use of estimates and assumptions in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements is primanly related to the determination of the net patient accounts receivable and
settlements with third-party payors and the accrual for professional fiability. Due to uncedainties inherent in the
estimation and assumption process, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in these estimates and
assumptions in the near-term would be material to the financial statements.

Basis of gresehta'tion: ‘The:Corporation may classify its net assets into three categories, which are unrestricted,
temporariiy restricted and permanently restricted.

Unrestricted net assets are reflective of revenues and expenses associated with the principal operating activities of
the Corporation and are not subject to donor-impesed stipulations.

ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS
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Mercy Health System of Chlcago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies (contlnued)

Temporarily restricted net assels are subject to donor-imposed stipulations that may or vill be met either by actions
of the Comporation and/or the passage of time. As of June 30, 2006 and 2005, temporarily restricted net assets were
restricted by donors primarily for palient care, community service, education, research, and purchase of equipment.
Income earned on donor-restricted marketable securities, uniess restricted by donors, is reflected in investment
income. When a donor restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are classified as unrestricted net assets
and reported in the statement of operations and changes in net assets as other revenue.

Permanently restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the Corporation in perpetuity.
The income eamed on pemmanently restricted net assets has been restricted by donors to provide care for the poor.

Donor-restricted gifts: Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Comoration are reported at fair
value at the date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indication of intentions to give are
reported at fair value at the date the giftis received. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently
restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is accomplished, temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reported in the statements of operations and
changes in net assets as net assets released from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are
met within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributions in the accompanying financial
statements.

Cash and cash equivalents: All investments that are not limited as to use with an original maturity of three months or
less at the time of acquisition are reflected as cash equivalents.

Throughout the year, the Corporation may have amounts on deposit with financial institutions in excess of those
insured by the FDIC. Management does nof believe this presents a significant risk to the Corporation.

Patient accounts receivable, provision for doubtful accounts and due from/o third party-payors: The coliection of
receivables from third-party payors and patients is the Corporation's primary source of ¢ash for operalions and is
critical o its operating performance. The primary collection risks relate to uninsured patient accounts and patient
accounts for which the primary insurance payor has paid, but patient responsibility amounts {deductibles and co-
payments) remain outstanding. Patient receivables, where a third-party payor is responsible for paying the amaunt,
are carried at a net amount determined by the original charge for the service provided, less an estimate made for
contraclual adjustments or discounts provided to third-party payors.

Patient receivables due directly from the patients are carried at the original charge for the service provided less
amounts covered by third-party payors and fess an estimated allowance for uncollectible receivables. Management
estimates this-allawance based on the aging of its accounts receivable and its histotical coliection experience for
each payor type. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are recorded as a reduction of the provision for
uncollectible accounts when received.

The past due status of receivables is determined on a case-by-case basis depending on the payor responsible.
Interest is generally not charged on past due accounts.

Receivables or payables refated to estimated settlements on various payor contracts, primarily Medicare, are

reported as amounts due from or to third-party payors. Significant changes in payor mix, business office operations,
aconamic conditions or trends in federal and state governmental health care coverage could affect the Corporation's
collection of accounts receivable, cash flows and results of operations.

120
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsldlaries

m T

Notes to Consolidated Finangial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accdunting Pollcies (continued)

Inventories: Inventories are stated at cost (first-in, first-out method).

Investments and assets limited as to use: Investments are recorded at fair value based on quoted market prices.
Realized investment income is included in excess of revenue over expenses unless the income or loss is restricted
by donor or law. The change in unrealized appreciation in fair value of investments is recognized as a change in net
assets.

Investments are reqularly evaluated for impairment. The Corporation considers factors affecting the investee, factors
affecting the induslry the investee operates within, and general debt and equity trends. The Corporation considers
the fength of time an investment's fair value has been below carrying value, the near-term prospects for recovery to
carrying value, and the intent and ability to hold the investment until maturity date or market recovery is realized. If
and when a determination is madsa that a decline in fair value below the cost basis is other than temporary, the
refated investment is written down 1o its estimated fair value and included as a realized loss in excess of revenue
Over expenses.

Assets limited as to use consist of investments set aside by the Board for self-insurance over which the Board retains
control and may, at its discretion, subsequently use for other purposes. Assets limited as to use also include
investments externally designated under debt and lease agreements and an insurance ¢laim settiement.

Progerty and equipment: Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depraciated on the straight-line method
over their estimated useful lives. The assets’ lives are as follows;

Land improvements J years
Buildings and fixtures 5~ 40 years
Furniture and equipment 3-20 years
Automobiles 3 -4 years
Leasehold improvements 15-20 years

Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is capitalized as a
component of the cost of acquiring those assets.

Gifts of long-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as unrestricted support and are
included in the income or loss from operations untess explicit donor stipulations specify how the donated assets must
be used. Gifts of long-lived assets wilh explicit restrictions that specify how the assets ara used and gifis of cash or
other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted support. Absent explicit donor
stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintained, expirations of donor restrictions are reported
when the dofiated or acquired long-lived assets are placed in service.

Accrued professional liability: The provision for accrued professional liability includes estimates of the ultimate costs
for claims incurred but not reported. The provision is actuarially determined. The Corporation is completely seif-
insured for all ¢laims incurred on and after July 1, 2002,

12 |
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Mercy Health System of Chlcago and Subsidlaries

Notes ta Cansalidated Financial Statemants

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accdunting Policies (continued)

Deferred financing costs: Costs incurred in connection with the issuance or refinancing of long-term debt are
deferred and amortized over the term of the related financing on a method that approximates the effective yield
method.

Community commitment: Community commitment includes patient charity care rendered to the communily at a
reduced rate or at no fee based upon community need or the inability of the individual to pay for services. Because
the Corporation does not pursue coliection of amounts determined fo qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenue,

Net patient service revenue: The Corporation has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to
the Corporatian at amounts different from its established rates, Payment arangements include prospectively
determined rates per discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, and per diem payments. Net pafient service
revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services
rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors.
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered and
adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined.

Capitation revenue: The Corporation has agreements with various heafth maintenance organizations {HMOs) to
provide medical services to subscribing participants. Under these agreements, the Corporation receives monthly
capitation payments based on the number of each HMO's participants, regardless of services actually performed by
the Corporation. in addition, the HMOs make fee-for-service payments to the Corporation for certain covered
sarvices based upon discounted fee schedules.

Operaling income: The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include operating income.
Changes in unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from operating income, include investment income, gains
and losses from sales of property and equipment, loss on advance refunding and other income and expense which
management views as outside of normal activity.

Results of operations: The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets include excess of
revenue over expenses that represents the results of operations. Changes in unrestricled net assels that are
excluded from excess of revenues over expenses, consislent with industry practice, include the change in nef
unrealized appreciation in fair value of investments, the change in minimum pension liability and forgiveness of notes
payable by refated parties.

Income taxes: The Parent, the Hospital, the Center, and the Foundalion have received determination letters from the
Internal Revenue Service stating.that they are exempt from the payment of federal income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.

Aldune 30, 2008, MSC had approximately $1,566,000 of net operaling tax loss carryforwards avaifable for use
against future taxable income, which begin to expire in 2007, As a result of the net aperating tax loss carryforwards,
there is no income tax provision in 2006 and 2005. Due to the uncertain future realization of these loss camyforwards,
the related tax assets have been fully reserved by a valualion allowance in the accompanying consolidated balance
sheets.

Reclassification: Certain amounts in the 2003 financial statements have been reclassified to confom to the 2006
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2, Net Patient Service Revenue

The Corporation has agreements with third-party payors which provide for reimbursement fo the Carporation at
amounts different from its established rates. Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs
represent the diflerence between the Corporation's billings at list price and the amounts reimbursed by Medicare,
Medicaid, Blue Cross, and certain other third-party payors, and any differences between estimated third-party
reimbursement settlements for prior years and subsequent final settlements. Contractual adjustments under third-
party reimbursement pragrams are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered
and are adjusted in future periods as final settlements are determined. A summary of the basis of reimbursement
with major third-party payors follows:

Medicare: The Corporation is paid for inpatient acute care and outpatient care services rendered to Medicare
program beneficiaries under prospectively determined rates per discharge (Prospective Payment Systems). These
rates vary according to & patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors.
Inpatient non-acute services and defined capital and medical education costs related to Medicare beneficiaries are
paid based upon either a cost reimbursement method or established fee screens, or a combination thereof. The
Corporation's classification of pafients under Prospective Payment Systems and the appropriateness of the patient's
admissions are subject o validation reviews. The Corporation is reimbursed for cost reimbursable items at tentaive
rates with final settlement determined after submission of annual reimbursement reports by the Corporation and
audits by the Medicare fiscal intermediary.

For the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, the Corporation recognized approximately $158,854,000 and
$153,003,000, respectively, of gross patient service revenues from services provided to Medicare beneficianies.
Changes in Medicare reimbursement as a result of the Cenlers for Medicare and Medicaid Services' implementation
of the provisions of fulure Medicare legislation may have an adverse effect on the Corporation's net patient service
revenue. Fiscal year 2007 represents the first of a three-year phase-in penod for implementation of a revised
Medicare Diagnosis Related Group (DRG] reimbursement system. This new payment methodology makes
meaningful refinements to the current CMS classification system to increase recognition of severity of illness.
However, there will be a limited impact on payments in specific DRGs because of the simuttaneous implementation
of incremental reforms for cost-based and severity-based payments. Management has not determined the
reimbursement impact of this change in reimbursement for the Hospital.

Medicaid: The Corparation is reimbursed at prospectively determined rales for each Medicaid inpatient discharge.
Quipatient services are reimbursed based on established fee screens. For inpatient acute care services, payment
rates vary according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. The
prospectively determined rates are not subject to retroactive adjustment. As described below, the Corporation also
receives incremental Medicaid reimbursement for specific programs and services at the discretion of the State of
linois Medigaid Program. Medicaid reimbursement may be subject o periodic adjustment, as well as to changes in
existing payment levels and rates, based on the amount of funding available to the Medicaid program.

For the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, the Corporation recognized approximately $104,234,000 and
$97,466,000, respectively, of gross patient service provided to Medicaid patients. Due to the Hospital's relatively
high Medicaid patient volume, the Hospital received additional reimbursement of approximately $13,430,000 in both
2006 and 2005 in the form of critical hospital adjustment payments ("CHAP"), safety net access payments ("SNAP")
and tertiary payments, the majority of which is provided by the Illinois Medicaid program. The Hospital also receives
disproportionate share and Medicaid High Volume Adjustment amounts as a daily add-on for Medicaid patients.
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2, Net Patient Service Revenue (continued)

Blue Cross: The Corporation alsa participates as a provider of health care services under a reimbursement
agreement with Blue Cross. The provisions of this agreement stipulate that services will be reimbursed at a tentative
reimbursement rate and that final reimbursement for these setvices is determined after the submissian of an annual
cost report by the Corporation and a review by Blue Cross,

Manaqed Care Organizations; The Gorporation has also entered into reimbursement agreements with certain
commercial insurance cariers, health maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations. The basis
for payment under these agreements includes discounts from established charges and prospectively determined per

diem rates.

Laws and regulations governing the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject fo interpretation. As
a resull there is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates will change by a malenal amount in the
near-lerm. The Hospital believes thatitis in compliance with ail applicable laws and regulations and is not aware of
any pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no such regulatory
inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review
and interpretation, as well as significant regulatory action including fines, penalties, and exclusion fram the Medicare
and Medicaid programs. Net patient service revenue in 2006 decreased by the effect of third-party payor settlements
by approximately $2,253,000. During 2005, net patient servica revenue was increased by the effect of favorabie third-
party payor settlements of approximately $1,500,000. At June 30, 2006 the Hospital recorded a liability of
approximately $3,500,000 in connection with the Medicare disproportionate share (DSH) settlements related to fiscal
years ended June 30, 2006, 2005, and 2004, This liability is an estimate by management of the Hospital of the
eventual outcome of a DSH reimbursement matter involving the State of linois’ reporting of Title 21 days and its
impact on DSH reimbursement.

In December 2004, the Federal Centers of Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) approved State of Illinois {State)
legislation for a Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program {Program) relating to the period May 9, 2004 to June 30,
2005. Under the Program, the Hospital received additional Medicaid reimbursement from the State and paid a
related assessment. Total reimbursement revenue recognized by the Hospital related to this Program amounted to
$11,679,718 during the Hospital's year ended June 30, 2005. Total assessments incurrad by the Hospital related to
this program amounted to $6,779,314 during the Hospital's year ended June 30, 2005. The laws and regulations
authorizing this Program expired on June 30, 2005. A proposal to continue the Program for three additional years is
currently being considered by CMS.

Note 3. Concentrations of Credit RIsk

The Corporation grﬁnt’s credit without collateral o ils patients, most of who are local residents and are insured under
third-party payar agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors at June 30, 2006 and
2005 was as follows:

2006 2005

Medicare 21% 20%
Medicaid 22 29
Managed care 38 30

QOther third-party payors 4 5
Self-pay L 15 16

l 2 / 100% 100%
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=
Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries L
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements =
Note 4. Community Commitment and Charity Care

-
Although reimbursement for services rendered is critical to the operation of the Corporation, itis the Corporation’s
health care mission o serve the community by trealing patients in immediate need of medical services without regand C
for their ability to pay for such services. The Corporation maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity =

care it provides. These records include the amount of charges forgone for services and supplies fumished under its
charity care policy. as well as the estimated cost of services and supplies. The estimated difference between the
services provided o Medizaid patients and the reimbursement from the state for this patient care is also monitored.

During the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005, the following levels of charity care were provided:

2006 2005
Charges forgone for charity based on
established rates § 927332 § 7601313
Estimated excess of cost over
reimbursement for Medicaid patients ' $ 5621989 § 6753787

Note 5. Investments and Assets Limited as to Use, Short-Term Investments, and Other investments

The composition of investments and assels limited as to use, short-term invesiments, and ether investments, which
are recorded at fair value based on quoted market values, is as follows as of June 30:

2006 2005
Cash and cash equivalents $ 16,876,349 § 19,220,232
Certificates of deposit 1,934,999 916,659
Marketable equity securities 282,842 76,425
U.S. government maney market funds 300,501 -
Accrued interest receivable 10,003 12,312

$ 10404694 § 20225628

12§
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5. investments and Assets Limited as to Use, Short-Term Investments, and Other Investments
(continued)

Investment return for investments and assets whose use is limited, short-term investments, and other investments for
the years ended June 30, 2006 and 2005 is as follows:

2006 2005
Inlerest and dividend income $ 757905 % 506,825
Realized gains on sales of investments, net - 1,037,567

$ 767906 § 1544392
Other changes in unrestricted net assets - change

in unrealized gains and losses on investments 3 {2543) % -

Investment securities, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall market
volatility. Due to the level of risk associated with cenain investment securities, it is reasonably possible that changes
in the value of investment securities will occur in the near-term and that such changes could materially affect the
amounts reported in the balance sheet.

Note 6. Sale-Leaseback Transaction

On April 15, 2005, the Corporation sold land for $7,000,000 and concurrently entered into an agreement to lease the
property back at $10 per year through April 2009. The Carporalion has an option to repurchase the property within
the lease term. Because the Corporalion has an option to repurchase the property, the sale did not qualify for sale-
leaseback accounting and, thus, was accounted for as a financing transaction under FASB Statement No. 98, Sale-
Leaseback Accounting. Therefore, the net proceeds from the sale have been recorded as a financing obligation.
Payments under the lease are treated as interest expense with an appropnate per annum inflation based on the
consumer price index (4.3% and 2.5% at June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively) and a reduction (or increase, if
applicable) of the financing obligation. A sale wili be recognized when the Corporation's option to repurchase
expires. The land involved in this transaction has a cost basis of approximately $2,983,000 and is included in land
and land improvements on the balance sheet.

As required by the related agreement, the Corporation had $717,662 and $800,000 at June 30, 2006 and 2005,
respectively, held in escrow relaled to the sale-leaseback of the land to be used to pay for costs related to the

remediation of 'environmé'otal issues for this property, if necessary. This amount is included with investments and
assels limited as 16 use - externally designated under lease agreement on the consolidated batance sheet.
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiarles

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemants

Note 7. Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt

During 2003, the Corporation issued an uncollaterzlized demand note payable to the Sisters of Mercy in the amount
of $2,075,000. This note was issued to provide additional working capital to the Corporation. The note was non-
interest bearing. The note was forgiven in its entirety in June 2006, The $2,075,000 was recognized as a transfer of
net assets (forgiveness of note payabie) on the consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assels.

Long-term debt is summanzed as fellows at June 30:

2006 2005
General Electric Capital Corporation, $2,150,000 note
bearing interest at 5.5%, payable in monthly installments
of $29,9682, with final instaliment due January 1, 2007 $ 563892 § 909,544

JPMergan Chase Bank:
$12,000,000 promissory note, bearing interest at the prime
rate minus 0.75%, interest payable quarterly, principal
due April 15, 2008 12,000,000 12,000,000
6,000,000 promissory note, bearing interest at the prime rate
minus 0.75%, payable in quarterly installments of $100,000
plus interest, with a final payment due Apnil 15, 2008 7,600,000 8,000,000
$5,000,000 promissory note, bearing interest at the prime rate
minus 0.75%, interest payable quarterly, principle originally
due April 15, 2006, extended to April 15, 2007 5,000,000 5,000,000
Capital Source Finance, $20,000,000 revolving line of credit,
bearing interest at an annual rate equal to the 30-day LIBOR
rate plus 3.5%, expires April 15, 2008 12,113,062 11,833,641
One-time overadvance on Capital Source Finance, $20,000,000
revolving line of credit, bearing interest at an annual rate
equal to the 30-day LIBOR rale plus 4.5%, payable in
monthly instaliments of $139,698 plus interest,
with final installment due October 2006 558,784 2,514,568
37,835,738 40,257,753

Less:
Current portion {6,522 676) (7.442634)
S 31313062 § 32815119
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l Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

! Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements

|
. Note 7. Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt {continued)

Principal maturities of long-term debt at June 30, 2006 are as follows:

| Year ending June 30,

[ 2007 $ 6522676
2008 31,313,062
I : § 37835738

At June 30, 2006, the prime rate was 8.25% and the 30-day LIBOR rate was 5.35%.

On April 15, 2005, the Corparation issued notes payable to JPMorgan Chase Bank in the amounts of $12,000,000,
[ $8,000,000 and $5,000,000 under separate loan agreements. The proceeds were used in connection with the
refunding of the Senes 1992 and 1396 Revenue Bands. On April 15, 2005, the Corporation also entered into a
| Revolving Credit and Security agreement with Capital Source Finance, an asset-based lender. The proceeds of the
revolving line were used to refund the Series 1992 and 1996 Revenue Bonds.

Cerlain proceeds from the issuance of the notes were used to pay the principal and interest outstanding on a portion

| of the Series 1936 Revenue Bonds on April 15, 2005. Cerfain proceeds from the issuance of the notes were also
placed in an irrevocable escrow accaunt ang invested in government securities, which, with interest thereon, were

| sufficient to pay the principal and inferast outstanding on the Series 1992 and 1996 Revenue 8onds in May 2005 and
January 2006, respectively. As a result of these transactions the Corporation recognized a $378,534 nonaperating

! . loss on advance refunding.

I The terms of the loan agreements require that the Corporation maintain a total of $12,000,000 and $15,812,500, plus
‘ accrued interest, in pledged accounts with a bank at June 30, 2006 and 2005, raspectively. At June 30, 2006 and
2005, respecfively, the Corporation held approximately $12,041,000 and $15,900,000 in these pledged accounts.

At June 30, 2005, one of these secured accounts noted above included $3,812,500 which was externally designated

| for pending settlement of a liability claim. At June 30, 2005, this amount is included with investments and assets
limited as to use on the consolidated balance sheet. During fiscal year 2006, a setllement on the liability claim was

[ agreed to. The total settlement amounted to approximately $3,300,000. The external restriction was removed when
the first payment was made by the Corporation in accordance with the settlement agreement. Approximately

| $1,300,000 was paid on that ctaim during fiscal year 2006 and approximately $2.000,000 remains intemally

designated to cover the remaining outstanding liability on that claim at June 30, 2006.

At June 30, 2006 and 20'0_5, the $8,000,000 note is secured by a guarantee by the Sisters of Mercy and the
[ $5,000,000 note is'secured by a mortgage on the Corporation's property. The Comporation’s accounts receivable and
certain other asseis are pledged as collateral under the revolving line of credit.

The foan agreements on the notes contain various covenants including those relating to limifations on incurring
[ additional debt and disposing of property. In addition, the revolving credit and security agreement contains
covenants including those relating to financial performance, insurance coverage and timely submission of specified
financial reports.
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Mercy Heaith System of Chicago and Subsidiartes =
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements -
Note 8. Lease Obligations -
E
Rental expense for all operating leases totaled approximatety $2,860,000 and $2,635,000 in 2006 and 2005, -
respectively, Future minimum lease payments under the noncanceflable leases and related maintenance agreements -
are as follows: -
C
Year ended Juge 30:
2007 $ 2,563,000
2008 2,476,000
2009 1,253,000
2010 540,000
2011 212,000
Thereafter 300,000
= 1346000
Note 9. Retirement Plan

The Hospital sponsored a noncontributory, defined-benefit pension plan, which covered substantially all of the
Hospital's full-ime employees. Benefits were based on years of service and the employee'’s compensation during
the fast five years of employment. The Hospital's funding policy was to contribute such amounts as are necessary to
provide for benefits attributed fo service to date and those expectad 1o be earned in the future. Effective June 30,
2003, the plan was amended to freeze all benefit accruals. As a result, 2 curtailment benefit was recorded by the
Hospital.

Effective June 30, 2004, the plan was amended to aliow the sponsar to terminate the plan and settle pension
obligations with all ptan participants. The plan amendment accelerated the distribution of benefils earned. Effective
July 1, 2004, the plan was amended to cease commencing distributions, eliminate the annuity forms of distibution,
revise the allocation formula upon plan temination. revise the provision related to payment in the event a participant
or beneficiary is determined to be incompetent, and provide that the plan be terminated effective July 1, 2004. This
amendment resulted in a gain of $6,467,781 during fiscat year 2005. As of June 30, 2008, distribution of plan assels
lo participants was still in progress.

Y

18

ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS

oMo MTIoorOoooOIDIDoDoOoDOoDoDITMREmTN




May. 15, 2008 9:53AM  Mercy Hospital & Medical Center No, 4704 P 22
Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsldiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 9, Retirement Plan (continued)

The following table sets forth the plan's funded status and amounts recognized in the accompanying consolidated

balance sheets at June 30:
2006 2005

Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 19837865 § 25204619
Service cost - -
interest cost 228838 1,500,299
Plan amendments - (6,467,781)
Effect of curtailment -
Actuarial losses - -
Benefits paid . (19,152,047) {399,272)
Benefit obligation at end of year 5 914656 _§ 13,837,865

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 19837865 $ 19,571,379
Aclual return on plan assels 228,838 665,758
Employer contributions - -
Benefit paid (19,152,047) (399,272)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 914,656 § 19837865
Funded status of the plan $ -3 -
Unrecognized prior service cost - (6,253,499)
Unrecogrized net actuanal gain - 6,253,499

Actrued benefit cost, before additional minimum liability
Adjusiment for additional minimum liability

Accrued benefit cost, after additional minimum liability $ ) -

Assumptions:
Discount rate ©6.00% 6.00%
Expected return on plan assets N/A 5.50%
Rate of compensation increase NfA N/A

Due to the distribution of plan assets, the plan’s remaining assets are allocated to fixed income investments as of
June 30, 2006 and 2005..

Effective July 1, 2004, the Corporation put in place a defined-contribution pension plan, which covers substantially all
of the Corporalion’s full-time employees. The Carporation's matching contributions are 50% of the amount
contributed by participants, up to a maximum of 6% of the participant's compensation. For the years ended June 30,
2006 and 2003, total expense associated with this ptan amounted to approximately $1,015,000 and $663,000,
respectively.

| 30

19

ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS




May. 15. 2003 9:53AM  Mercy Hosoital & Medical Certer No. 4704 P 23
Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidlaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 10.  Professional and General Liability Insurance

The actuarially determined professional liahility in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets reflects
management's assessment of claims applicable to all self-insured periods. Accrued professional liability losses have
been discounted at 6% at both June 30, 2006 and 2005. An accrual for possible losses aftribulable to incidents that
may have occurred, but that have not been idenfified under the incident reporting system is included in this liability. If
accrued professional liability losses had not been discounted, the estimated liability would be approximately
$4,031,000 and $5,221,000 higher than the amounts recorded in the consolidated balance sheets as of June 30,
2006 and 2005, respectively. The Corporation had investments available for claims seftlemenis of $127,211 and
$73,220 as of June 30, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

nnaononnw

o n

The Corporation’s 2006 insurance expense was reduced by approximately $7,400,000 due to a change in the
estimated professional liability accrual as a result of several factors, including revision of the confidence leve! used to
esfimate expected losses and favorable foss claim experience. In addition, the Corporation raceived a prior year
premium refund during 2006 in the amount of $1,300,000. This refund resulted in an additional reduction of 2006
insurance expense.

Note 11. Transactions with Related Parties

The following related party transactions have been entered into:

a. Asof June 30, 2005, the Corporation had a note payable to the Sisters of Mercy outstanding in the amount
of $2,073,000 which was forgiven in June 2006.

b. The Hospital bills and collects monies for services rendered to the Diagnostic and Treatment (D&T)
Center's patients. In addition, the Hospital charges the D&T Center certain indirect costs of providing
administrative, financial, and clinical services. These charges totaled approximately $413,000 in both 2006
and 2005. At Juna 30, 2005, the Hospital had amounts due from the D&T Center totaling approximately
$235,000 related to these services.

¢. The operations of the D&T Center are dependent on the confinued financial and operating support of the
Hospital. Under the terms of the Hospital's management agreement with the D&T Center, the Hospital has
agreed to provide the necessary financial and operating support to the D&T Center for fulure periods.

Note12.  Functlonal Expenses

The Corporation provides general health care services to residents within Chicago and the surrounding area and
supparts medical education programs. The Corgoration's expenses related to providing these services are as follows
for the years ended June 30:

2006 2005
Health care services $ 67313451 § 94,746,182
Medical education 7,520,184 7,816,498
Fund-raising 515,396 237,832
General and administrative 59,634,145 81,201,202

|3‘ $ 174!983:776 ¢ 184,001,714

Certain amounts have been aliocated between functional categories.
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note13.  Commitments, Contingencies and Subsequent Event

Litigation: The Corporation is a defendant in various lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. Although
the outcome of the lawsuits cannot be determined with certainty, management believes the ultimate disposition of
such matters will not have a material sffect on the Corporation's financial statements.

Requlatory Investigation: The U.S. Department of Justice, other federat agencies and the Minois Department of
Public Aid routinely conduct regulatory investigations and compliance audits of health care providers. The
Corporation is subject to these regulatory efforts. Management is currently unaware of any regulatory matters which
may have a material effect on the Corporation’s financial position or resulls from operation.

Claim Setlement. in 2006, the Corporation settied a Jawsuit for the amount of $3,300,000. Of this amount,
$1,300,000 was paid on the settlement dale (September 1, 2005). The remaining $2,000,000 is to be paid in three
equal annual installments on August 1 of 2008, 2007 and 2008. The Corporation intends to fund the settiement with
cash from operations and the balance is recorded separately as intemally designated for liability claims. At June 30,
2005, the settlement amount was included in professional liability on the consolidated balance sheet. At June 30,
2006, the liability was reduced to $2,000,000

Land Sale: In 2004, the Corporation entered into an agreement with a developer to sell the property east of Prairie
Avenue for a floor price of $8,250,000. The Hospital will receive additional proceeds based on the actual number of
housing units sold. Total sale proceeds are estimated to be $10.4 million. Two closings were completad in 2006 and
a third closing was completed in July 2006. Sale proceeds raceived in 2006 and subsequent to year-end were
$944,000 and $1,710,000, respectively. In 2008, the Corporalion recognized a gain on the sale of this property of
approximately $848,000. Subsequent to year-end, gains recognized-to dale are approximately §1,539,000.

Construction Commitment: In 2006, the Corporation entered into an agreement with a contractor for repair and
maintenance work on the exterior walls and enclosures of the main hospital building. The total estimated cast of the
project was approximately $2.4 miifion. As of June 30, 2006, the estimated remaining cost of the project was
approximately $1.1 million. The project is being funded with cash from operations and is expected to be completed
during fiscal year 2007

Joint Venture: In July 2006, the Corporation entered into an agreement with the cardiology and radiology groups to
form a joint venture to purchase & 64 Detector CT Scan. The Hospital will have a 51% ownership of the joint venture.

Contingency: Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 47, Accounting for Conditional Asset
Refirement Obligations (FIN 47) clarified when an entity is required to recognize a liability for a conditional asset
retirament obligation. The Corporation has a legal obligation to remove hazardous materials from its facilities in the
event the facilities are renovated o replaced. Such hazardous materials include asbestos. Management believes
there is an indeterminale settiement date for the asset retirement obiigations because of the range of time over which
the Corporation may settte the obiigation is unknown. However, management does not beliave that the estimate of
the Tiability relaled to these asset retirement obligations is a material amount at June 30, 2006.

Note 14. Fair Value of Financlal Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Corporation te estimate the fair value of other financial
instruments:

The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents, patient accounts receivables, other assets, accounts payable,
accrued expenses and estimated settlements due to or fram third-party payors are reasonable estimates of their
value due to the short-term nature of these finanzial instruments. !
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidlarles

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 14, Fair Value of Financlal Instruments (Continued)

The fair value of investrments and assets limited as to use, which are the amounts reported on the balance sheet, is
based on quoted market prices.

The fair value of long-term debt is estimated based on interest rates for the same or similar debt offered to the
Corporation having the same or similar remaining maturities and collateral requirements. The fair value of the long-
term debt approximates the carrying values.

133

22

ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS

=
o
L
C
o
-
E
-
m
E
C
-
C
-
c
C
=
C
E
e
C
c
-
C
s
s
v
=
K
=
=




1 Mzy. 15. 2008 9:53&M  Mercy Hosnrtal & Medical Certer No. 4704 P 26

McGladrey &Pullen

]
l. Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report on the Supplementary Inform

| To the Board of Directors
Mercy Health System of Chicago
f Chicago, lllinois

ation

{ Qur audits were made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements taken as
a whole. The consolidaling information is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the basic consolidated

| financial stalements rather than to present the financial position

and results of operations of the individual companies.

The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic
| consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic

consolidated financial statements taken as a whole.

Chicago, Hiinois
l August 29, 2006

® 13y

I McGladrey & Pullan, LLP i¢  member fim ol RSM Inlematianal,
an affiigbion of separete snd Indepandont lagat enljies.
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May. 15. 2008 9:54MM  Mercy Hospital & Medical Center No. 4704 7. 29
Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiariss
Consolidating Statement of Operations
Year Ended June 10, 2006
Mercy Mercy
Health Hospital and Health Care Mercy Mearey
Systam of Medlcal Rehabilltation Semvices Foundation, Consalidated
Chicago Center Corporation In¢. Eliminations Totals
Revenus;
Net patient service revenue - S 171,780,631 % - 3 - 3 § 171,780,631
Capitation revenue 1,698,339 - - 1,698,339
Contributions 363,935 - 859,009 (355,000) 887,944
Other 3,626,199 267 - 3,026,466
Nel assets released from rastriction -
used for operations 105,121 - 223,398 - 328,519
177,774 225 - 1,082,674 {355,000)  178,501,8¢9
Expenses:
Salaries and benefits - 90,021,640 - 179,046 - 90,200,686
Supplies - 25,761,076 14,876 - 25,775,952
Insurance (2.242,683) - - - (2,242,653)
Cepreciation and amortization 8,370,394 - 3,582 8,373,976
Provislon for uncollectidle accounts - 14,323,749 . - 14,323,748
Interast - 2743840 - 2,743,340
Profassional fees 5.471,887 - - - 5,473,887
Rapairs, ulilities angd rent . 11,579,954 - 15,227 - 11,615,181
Purchased services - 14,541,350 - 2,383 - 14543733
Other - 3,894,473 - $35,862 {355,000) 4175355
- 174,467,780 - 870,998 {355,000) 174,983,776
Income from operations 3,306,445 - 211,678 3518123
Nonaperating income: b
Gain on sale of propery and equipment - 848,608 . - B48.808
Investment income 342 668,850 88,713 . 757,905
Excass of revenue over expenses 342 4824 103 300,391 - 5,124;8.35
Unrestricted net assets:
Ned change in unrealized gains and - )
losses on investments - - . - {2,543) {2,543)
Forgiveness of note payable 2,075,000 - . - 2,075,000
Increase in unrestricted netassets 3 M2 § 6899103 § - F 297348 % —_ 5 7,i9__§293
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Mercy Health System of Chicago
and Subsidiaries |

Consolidated Financial Report
June 30, 2005
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McGladrey &Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

Independent Auditor's Report on the Financial Statements

To the Board of Directors
Mercy Health System of Chicago
Chicago, lliinols

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Mercy Health System of Chicago and
Subsidiaries (the “Corporation”) as of June 30, 2005, and the related consolidated statements of operations and
changes in net assets (deficioncy) and cash flows for the year then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Corporation’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. The consclidated financial statements of Mercy Health System of Chicago and
Subskdiarias for the year ended June 30, 2004 were audited by other auditors whose report, dated October 20, 2004,
expressed an unqualified opinion on those statements.

We conductad our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement. An auditincludes examining, on a test basls, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for cur opinion. '

*

In our opinion, the 2005 consolidated financlal statements refered to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries as of June 30, 2008, and the results of their
operalions, changes in net assets (deficiency), and their cash flows for the year then ended In conformity with
accounting principles generally accaptad in the United States of America.

cr v P v e uPuu

Chicago, IMinois .
December 2, 2005, except for the last paragraph of Note 7,
as to which the date is January 25, 2006
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. Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Balance Sheets
June 30, 2005 and 2004

2005 2004
Assets
! Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,687,868 $ 18824376
5 Investments and assets limited as to use:
¢ Externally designated under debt agreement 7 - 2,710,150
‘ + Intemally designated under self-insurance program 73,220 910,151
Short-term investments 1,002,764 1311,775
J Patient accounts receivable, net of allowances for
] doubtful accounts of $16,318,000 in 2005 and
: $16,718,000 in 2004 24,094,299 21,382,930
Due from related party 234,573 -
Inventories 1,854,338 1,775,123
Other curent assets 2,404,190 1,194,338
Total current assets 37,351,852 48,108,843
Investments and Assets Limited as to Use ’
Pledged under debt agreement . 12,087,649 -
Extemnally designated under debt agreement . .. 7,444 884
Extematly designated under lease agreement 800,000 -
Intemally designated under set-insurance program - 4,000,000
Extemally designated under self-insurance pragram " 3,812,500 -
Other investments 2,449,495 2,558,374
- 19,149,844 14,003,268
Property and Equipment
Land and land improvements 9,316,753 8,792,213
Buildings end fixtures 105,162,983 101,278,237
Equipment 112,839,819 108,132,944
Construction in progress 788,744 2,961,636
' 228,108,304 221,165,030
Less accumulated depreciation (170,781,470} (163,076,032}
57,326,834 58,088,998
Other Assets ,
Deferred financing costs, net 479,653 537,167
Other noncurrent assets 966,731 1,008,629
1,445,384 1,545,796
Total assets § 115274714 § 121746895
L
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. I / /
2
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2005 2004
Liabllities and Net Assets {Deficiency)
Current Liabllities
Accounts payable $ 14135542 § 11,130,228
Accrued expenses 9,204,310 10,985,063
Pension liability . 5,633,240
- Due tg third-party payors 5,030,291 8,314 816
Current porlion of long-term debt 7,442,634 4,068,651
Notes payable A 2,075,000 2,617,549
Current portion of professional liability 7,423,000 5,803,000
Total current liabilities 45,310,777 48,152,547
Noncurrent Liabilities
Long-ferm debt, less current portion 32,815,119 55,152,023
Professional liability, less cument portion 20,363,000 18,544,000
Financing obligation arising from sale-leaseback transaction 7,046,641 -,
Deferred grant revenue 2,135,301 2126472
Total flabilities 107,671,338 123,975,042
Commitments and Cdntingencles (Note 13)
Net Assets {Deficiency):
Unrestricted 5,810,974 (3,996,634)
Temporarily restricted 1,479,842 1,455,927
Permanently restricted 312,560 312,560
Total net assets (deficiency) 7,603,376 (2,228,147)
Total llabllities and net assets (deficiency) $ 115274714 _§ 121746895

IH2

ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS




. } Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

- P Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes In Net Assets {Deficlency)
‘ . Years Ended June 30, 2005 and 2004 "

2005 2004
Revenue: .
411 Net patient service revenue $ 169,628,548 § 159913124
Medicaid hospital assessment revenue 11,679,718 -
3 ‘Capitation revenue 1,337,213 1,426,263
4 Contributions 315,032 173,740
Other 4,118,378 3,698,665
‘Net assets released from restriction - used for operations 545,537 688,596
._4‘ ' ' 187,724,426 165,900,388
¥
{
i Expenses.
i Salaries and benefits 86,613,397 - 76,352,023
s Supplies , 25,530,887 21,727,502
b Insurance 5,741,054 3,301,425
} Depreciation and amortization 8,419,930 8,604,035
i Provision for uncollectible accounts 13,811,990 12,540,073
& Interest ' 3,725,496 3,930,831
3 Professional fees 5,375,728 5,277,607
. i Repairs, utlities and rent 10,631,278 9,426,582
g Purchased services 13,589,315 13,853,288
Lk Medicald hospital assessment expense . 6,779,314 -
' .f Other A 3,783,325 3,276,070
2 4 184,001,714 158,269,436
g
o QOperating income . 3722712 7,610,952
Nonoperating incoms {expense):
Gain on sale of property and equipment . 45,324 4,339,008
investment income 1,544,392 210,578
Loss on advance refunding (978,534) -
Other {30,000 650,000
581,182 5,199,586
Excess of revenue over expenses $ 4303804 $ 12,810,538
{continued)

143
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Changes In Net Assets (Deficiency)(Contlnued)

Years Ended June 30, 2005 and 2004

2005 2004

Unrestricted net assets
Excess of revenue over expenses
Net change in unrealized appreciation
in fair value of investments
Change in minimum pension liability

» Increase in unrestricted net assets

Temporarily restricted net assets
Contributions
Net assets releasad from restrictions, used for operations
Increase in temporarlly restricted net assets
Increasa in net assets

Net assets (deficlency):
Beginning of year

End of year

See Notes to Consolidatad Financial Staiements.

4y

$ 4303894 $ 12810538

. 22,027
5503714 - (1571622)
9,807,608 11,260,943
669,452 824,392
(645,537) (688,596)
23,915 135,796
9,831,523 11,396,739

(2,228,447) (13,624,835)

§ 7603376 § (2206,147)
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsldiaries

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2005 and 2004

2005

2004

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Increase in net assets
Adjustments to reconcile increase in unrestricted net assets to
net cash provided by operating activities:
Net change in unrealized appreciation of investments
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for bad debts
(ain on sale of property
Amortization of deferred revenue
Loss on advance refunding
Interest added to financing obligation arising from safe-leaseback transaction
Changes In operating assets and fiabilities:
Accounts recelvable
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to third-party payors
Professional liability
Pension lighility
Other assets :
Nat cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchases of property and equipment
Purchases of investments and assets limited as to use and other investments
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment
Proceeds from sale/maturify of investments and assets limited to use
Advance {0 related party .
Release dabt service reserve funds {1992 and 1998 bonds)
Net cash (used in) Investing activities

Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Advance refunding of long-term debt
Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt
Proceeds from sale-leaseback fransaction
Payments on long-term debt
Payments on notes payable
Payment of deferred financing costs
Proceeds from grant, for property and equipment
Other
Net cash (used in) financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents:

Beginning
Ending

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information

Interest paid

See Notes to Consolldated Financial Statements. IL/ {

6

$ 983523 § 11,386,739

- (22,027)
8,419,930 8,604,035
13,811,990 12,540,073
'(45,324) (4,339,008)
(125,000) .
978,534 .
48,641
(16,523,359} (16,085,319}
1,624,561 {1,510,909)
(3,284,525) 2,518,817
3,439,000 354,000
(5,633,240) i
{1,247,769) 808,488
11,292,962 14254869
(7,458,178) (7,392,981)
(18,700,149) (14,397 482)
57,659 7.987623
5,132,278 12,504,034
(234,573) -
9,763,743 -
6,439,.220) (1,298,806)
(54,278,138} .
40,000,000 .
7,000,000 -
(4,727,757) (3,769,802)
(542,549) (500,000)
(576,135) -
134,329 .
(149,645)
(12,990,250) (4,419.447)
(11,136,508) 8,536,616
18,824,376 10,287,760

$ 7687868 _§  18.824.376

43,427

4,324,851
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Mercy Heaith System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policles

Organization and nature of business: The accompanying consolidated financial statements represent the accounts
of Mercy Health System of Chicago ("Parent’) and its subsidianies {jointly, the “Corporation”). The Corporation is
sponsared by the Sisters of Mercy of the Americas, Regional Community of Chicago (*Sisters of Mercy"), a refigious
institute. Subsidiaries of the Parent inciude Mercy Health Care Rehabiitation Center (*Center”), Mercy Services
Corporation {"MSC"), Mercy Hospital and Medical Center (*Hospital"), and Mercy Foundetion, Inc. (*Foundation},

The Hospital is a licensed 473-bed acute care facility with its primary market in the south and éouthwest side of
Chicago, llinols, and adjacent suburbs. In addition to the main facility, the Hospital has a network of hospital-owned
primary care centers, private physician offices, and a number of satellites throughout the City of Chicago.

Prior to the transfer of its operations to the Hospital, effective January 1, 1898, MSC, a taxable organization,
operated several businesses, including home health care services for certain contracts, an occupational therapy
registry, and a supplier of small medical equipment and supplles. Al of MSC's stock is owned by the Parent.

The Foundation was organized for the purpose of coflecting, eaming, and receiving funds from public and private
sources, accumulating such funds, and making distributions of income to the Parent or refated entities properly
designated by the Parent.

The Center was sold in December 2001. According to the sale agreement, $300,000 was placed Into a trust account
to be used to offsst Medicare and Medicaid audit adjustments related to periods prior to the sale. Unused funds were
releasad to the Hospital in February 2005. Other than recagnizing interestincome and expenses related to the
release of the trust monies, the Center has been inactive.

A summary of significant accounting policies follows:

Principles of consolidation: The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the Parent, Center, MSC,
Hospital and Foundation. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation. '

Use of estimates: The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date
of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual
results could differ from those estimates. The use of estimates and assumptions in the preparation of the
accompanying financial statements is primarily related to the determination of the net patient accounts receivable and
seftiements with third-party payors and the accrual for professional liability. Due to uncertainties inherent in the
estimation and assumption process, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in thesa estimates and
assumptions in the near term would be material to the financial statements.

Basis of presentation: The Corporation may classify its net assets into three categories, which are unrestricted,
temporarily restricted and permanently restricted.

Unrestricted nef assats are reflactive of ravenues and expenses associated with the principal operating activities of
the Corporation and are not subject to donor-impesed stipulations.

140
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidlarles

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policles (continued)

Temporarily restricted net assets are subject to donor-impesed stipulations that may or will be met either by actions
of the Corporation and/or the passage of ime. As of June 30, 2005 and 2004, temporarily restricted net assels were
restricted by donors primarily for patient care, community service, education, research, and purchase of equipment.
income eamed on donor-restricted marketable securities, unless restricted by donors, is reflected in investment
income. When a donor restriction expires, temporarily restricted net assets are ciassified as unrestricted net assets
and reported in the statement of operations and changes in net assels as other revenue.

Permanentiy restricted net assets have been restricted by donors to be maintained by the Corporation in perpetuity.
The income eamed on permanently restricted net assets has been restricted by donors to provide care for the poor.

Donor-restricted gifts: Unconditional promises to give cash and other assets to the Corporation are reported at fair
value at the date the promise is received. Conditional promises to give and indication of intentions to give are
reported st fair velue at the date the gift is received. The gifts are reported as either temporarily or permanently
restricted support if they are received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets. When a donor
restriction expires, that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restriction is acoomplished, temporarily
restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net assets and reporfed in the statements of operations and
changes in net assets as net assets reieased from restrictions. Donor-restricted contributions whose restrictions are
met within the same year as received are reported as unrestricted contributions In the accompanyling financial
statements. \

Cash and cash equivalents; All investments that are not limited as to use with an original maturity of three months or
less at the time of acquisition are reflected as cash equivalents. S

Throughout the year, the Corporation may have amounts on deposit with financial institutions in excess of those
insured by the FDIC. Management does not befieve this presents a significant risk to the Corporation.

Patient accounts receivable, provision for doubtful accounts and due fro hird party-payors: The collection of
receivables from third-party payors and patients is the Corporation’s primary source of cash for operations and Is
critical to lts operating performance. The primary collection risks refate to uninsured patient accounts and patient
accounts for which the primary Insurance payor has paid, but patisnt responsibility amounts {deductibles and
copayments) remain outstanding. Patient receivables, where a third-party payor is responsible for paying the
amount, are carmed al a net amount determined by the original charge for the service provided, less an estimate
made for contractual adjustments or discounts provided to third-party payors.

Patient recelvables due directly from the patients are carried at the original charge for the service provided less
amounts covered by third-party payors and less an estimated allowance for uncollectible receivables. Management
estimiates this allowance based on the aging of its accounts recelvable and its historical collection experience for
gach payor type. Recoveries of receivables previously written off are recorded as a reduction of the provision for
uncollectible accounts when received. '

The past due status of receivables is determined on a case-by-case basis depending on the payor responsible.
Interest is generally not charged on past due accounts.

'Receivables or payables related to estimated settiements on various payor contracts, primarily Medicare, are

reported as amounts due from or to third-party payors. Significant changes in payor mix, business office operations,
economic conditians or trends in federal and state governmantal health care coverage could affect the Corporation's
collection of accounts receivable, cash flows and resulfs of oparations,

1471
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Significant Accounting Policies {continued)

Recelvables and payables refated to the Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program are reported as amounts due
from/to third-party payors.

[nventories: Inventories are stated at cast (first-In, first-out method).

Investments and assets limited as to use: Investments whose use is limited are recorded at fair value based on
quoted market prices, Realized investment income is included In excess of revenue over expenses unless the
income or koss is restricted by donor or law. The change in unrealized appreciation in fair value of investments is
recognized as a change in het assets.

investments are regularly evaluated for impairment. The Corporation considers factors affecting the investee, factors
affecting the industry the investee operates within, and general debt and equity rends. The Corporalion considers
the length of time an investment's fair value has been below carrying value, the near-term prospects for recovery to
carrying value, and the intent and ability to hold the investment until maturity date or market recovery is relized. If
and when a determination is made that a decfine in fair value below the cost basis is other than temporary, the
related investment is written down to its estimated fair value and included as a realized loss in excess of revenue
over expenses.

Assets limited as to use consist of investments set aside by the Board for self-insurance over which the Board retains
control and may, at Hts discretion, subsequentiy use for other purposes. Assets limited as to use also include
investments extemally designated under debt and lease agreements and an insurance claim settiement.

Property and equipment; Property and equipment are recorded at cost and depreciated on the straight-line method
over their astimated useful lives. The assets' lives are as follows:

Land improvements : : 5 years

Building and fixtures _ 5-40 years

Fumiture and equipment + 3-20years

Automobiles 3-4years

Leasehold Improvements 15 - 20 years

Interest cost incurred on borrowed funds during the period of construction of capital assets is capitalized as 8
component of the cost of acquiring those assets. Interest expense capitalized as property and equipment was
$160,000 in 2004. There was no interest expense capitalized in 2005.

Gifts of Jong-lived assets, such as land, buildings, or equipment, are reported as unrestricted support and are
included in the income or loss from operations unless explicit donor stipulations specify how the donaled assets must
be used. Gifts of lorig-lived assets with explicit restrictions that specily how the assats are used and gifts of cashor
other assets that must be used to acquire long-lived assets are reported as restricted supgort. Absent explicit donor
stipulations about how long those long-lived assets must be maintafned, expirations of donor restrictions are reported
when the donated or acquired fong-ived assets are placed in service.

Accrued professional liabifity: The provision for accrued professional liability includes estimates of the ultimate costs
for claims incurred but not reported. The provision is actuarially determined. The Corporation is completely self-
insured for alt claims incurred on and after July 1, 2002.

g
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Mercy Heaith System of Chicago and Subsidiarles

Notes to Consclidated Financlal Statements

Note 1. Nature of Business and Slgnificant Accounting Policles (continued)

Defemred financing costs: Costs incurred in connection with the issuance or refinancing of long-term debt are
deferred and amortizad over the term of the related financing on a method that approximates the effective yleld

method.

Community commitment: Community commitment represents patient charity care rendered to the community at a
reduced rate or at no fee based upon community need or the inability of the individual to pay for services. Because
the Corporation does not pursue collsction of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as
revenue.

* Net patient service revenue: The Comoration has agreements with third-party payors that provide for payments to

the Corporation at amounts different from its established rates. Payment arrangements include prospectively
determined rates per discharge, reimbursed costs, discounted charges, and per diem payments. Net patient service
revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from patients, third-party payors, and others for services
rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments under reimbursement agreements with third-party payors,
Retroactive adjustments are accrued on an estimated basis In the period the related services are rendered and
adjusted in future periods as final setilements are determined.

Capitation revenue; The Corporation has agreements with various health maintenance organizations (HMOs) to
provide medical services to subscribing participants. Under these agreements, the Corporation receives monthly
capitation payments based on the number of each HMO's participants, regardless of services actually performed by
the Corporation. In addition, the HMOs make fee-for-service payments to the Corporation for certain covered
services based upon discounted fee schedules.

QOperafing income: The consolidated statements of operations and changes In net assets (deficiency) include
operating income. Changes in unrestricted net assets (deficiency), which are excluded from operating income,
include investment income, gains and losses from sales of property and equipment, loss on advance refunding and
other income and expense which management views as oulside of norme! activity.

Results of operations: The consolidated statements of operations and changes in net assets {deficiency) include
excess of revenue over expenses that represents the results of operations., Changes in unrestricted net assets
(deficiency) that are excluded from excess of revenues over expenses, consistent with industry practice, include the
change in net unrealized appreciation in fair value of investments and change in minimum pension liabllity.

income taxes; The Parent, the Hosplital, the Center, and the Foundation have received determination letters from the
Intemal Revenue Service stating that thay are exempt from the payment of federal income taxes under Section
501(c)(3) of the intemnal Revenue Code.

At June 30, 2005, MSC had approximately §1,566,000 of net operating tax loss carryforwards available for use
against future taxable income, which begin to expire in 2007. As a result of the net operating tax loss camyforwards,
there is no income tax provision in 2005 and 2004, Due to the uncertain future reglization of these loss camyforwards,
the related tax assets have been fully reserved by a valuation allowance in the accompanying consolidated balance -
shesls. :

Reclassification: Certain amounts in the 2004 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2005
presentation. ' .
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiarles

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemsnts

Note 2. Net Patiant Service Revenue

The Corporation has agreements with third-party payors which provide for reimbursement to the Corporation at
amounts different from its established rates. Contractual adjustments under third-party reimbursement programs
represent the differance between the Corporation’s billings at list price and the amounts reimbursed by Medicare,
Medicald, Blue Cross, and certain other third-party payors, and any differences between eslimated third-party
reimbursement settlements for prior years and subsequent final settiements. Contractual adjustments under third-
party reimbursement programs are accrued on an estimated basis in the period the relatad services are rendered
and are adjusted in future periods as final setflements are determined. A summary of the basis of reimbursement
with major third-party payors follows:

Medicare: The Corporation is paid for inpatient acute care and outpatient care services rendered to Medicare
program beneficlaries under prospectively determined rates per discharge (Prospective Payment Systems). These
rates vary acconding to a patient classlfication system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors,
inpatient nonacute services and defined capital and medical education costs related to Medicare beneficiaries are
paid based upon elther a cost reimbursement method, established fee screens, or a combination thereof. The
Corporation’s classlfication of patients under Prospective Payment Systems and the appropriateness of the patient's
admissions are subject to validation reviews. The Corporation is reimbursed for cost reimbursable items at tentative
rates with final setllement determined after submission of annual reimbursement reports by the Corporation and
audits by the Medicare fiscal intermediary.

Medicaid: The Corporation is relmbursed at prospectively determined raies for each Medicaid inpatient discharge.
Outpatient services are reimbursed based on established fee screens. For inpatient acute care services, payment
rates vary according to a patient classification system that is based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. The
prospectively determined rates are not subject to retroactive adjustment. The Corporation also receives incremental
Medicaid relmbursement for specific programs and services at the discretion of the State of llinols Medicald
Program. Medicaid reimbursement may be subject fo periodic adjustment, as well as to changes in existing payment
levels and rates, based on the amount of funding available to the Medicaid program.

Blue Cross: The Corporation also parficipates as a provider of health care services under a reimbursement
agreement with Biue Cross. The provisions of this agreement stipulate that services will be reimbursed at a tentative
raimbursement rate and that final reimbursement for these services is determined after the submission of an annual
cost report by the Corporation and a review by Blue Cross. ' :

Managed Care Organizations: The Corporation has also entered into reimbursement agreements with certain
commercial insurance camiers, heafth maintenance organizations, and prefemed provider organizations. The basis
for payment under these agreements includes discounts from established charges and prospectively determined per
diem ratss.

Laws and regulations goveming the Medicare and Medicaid programs are complex and subject o interpretation. As
a result, there Is at least a reasonable possibility that recorded estimates wilt change by a material amount in the
near-tem. The Hospital believes that It Is in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations and Is not aware of
any pending or threatened investigations involving allegations of potential wrongdoing. While no such regulatory

- inquiries have been made, compliance with such laws and regulations can be subject to future government review

and interpretalion, as well as significant regutatory action including fines, penalties, and exclusion from the Medicare
and Medicaid programs. Net patient service revenue in 2005 and 2004 was increased by the effect of favorable
third-party payor settiements of approximately §1,500,000 and $2,500,000, respectively.
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiarles

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 2. Net Patient Service Revenue (Continued)

in December 2004, the Federal Centers of Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) approved State of lllinois (State)
fegislation for a Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program (Prog ram) relating to the period May 9, 2004 to Jung 30,
2005. Under the Program, the Hospital received additional Medicaid reimbursement from the State and pald a
related assessment, Total relmbursement revenue recognized by the Hospital related to this Program amounted to
$11,679,718 during the Hospital's year ended June 30, 2005. Total assessments incurred by the Hospital related to
this program amounted to $6,779,314 during the Hospital's year ended June 30, 2005. The laws and regulations
authorizing this Pragram explred on June 30, 2005.

Note 3. Concentrations of Credit Risk

The Corporation grants credit without collateral to its patients, most of whom are local rasidents and are insured
under third-party payor agreements. The mix of receivables from patients and third-party payors at June 30, 2005
and 2004, was as follows:

2005 2004
Medicare 20% 25%
Medicaid ' 29 16
- Managed care 30 o,
Other third-party payors 5 24
Self-pay ' 16 4
100% 100%

Note 4. Community Commitment and Charity Care

Although reimbursement for services rendered is ¢ritical to the operation of the Comoratien, it s the Comporation’s
health care mission to serve the community by treating patients in immediate need of medical services without regard
for thelr abllty to pay for such services. The Corporalion maintains records to identify and monitor the level of charity
care it provides. These racords include the amount of charges forgone for services and supplies fumished under its
charity care policy, as well as the estimated cost of services and supplies. The estimated difference between the
services provided to Medicald patients and the reimbursement from the state for this patient care is also monitored.

During the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, the following levels of charity care were provided:

2005 2004
Charges forgone for charity based on
esiablished rates $ 7,601,313 -$ 6,034,409
Estimated excess of cost over
reimbursement for Medicaid patients 6,753,787 4,642,495

$ 14355100 § 12,676,904
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidlaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 5. investments and Assets Limited as to Use, Short-Term Investments, and Other Investments

The composition of investments and assets limited as fo use, shori-term investments, and other investments, which
are recorded at fair value based on quoted market values, is as follows as of June 30: ’

2005 2004
Cash and cash equivalents . $ 19220232 § 8,126,820
Certificates of deposit 916,659 T 628,374
Marketable equity securities 76,425
U.S. govemment money market funds - 10,150,592
Accrued interest receivable 12,312 29,548

§ 20225628 $ 18935334

Investment return for investments and assets whose use is limited, short-term investments, and other investments for
the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, is as follows:

2005 2004
Interest and dividend income $ 506825 § 210,578
Realized gains on sales cfinvestments, net 1,037,567 -
" $ 1544392 % 210,578,
Other changes in unrestricted net assets - change |
in unrealized appreciation In
fair value of investments S - 3 22,027

investment securities, in general, are exposed to various risks, such as Interest rate, credit, and overall market
volatility. Due to the leve! of risk associsted with certain investment securities, it is reasonably possible that changes
in the value of investment securities will occur in the near-term and that such changes could materially affect the
amounts reported in the balance sheet.

Note 6. Sale-Leaseback Transaction

On April 15, 2005, the Corporation sold land for $7,000,000 and concurrently entered into an agreement to lease the
property back at $10 per year through April 2009, The Corporation has an option to repurchase the property within
the lease term. Because the Corporation has an option to repurchase the property, the sale did not qualify for sale-
leaseback accounting and, thus, was accounted for as a financing transaction under FASE Statement No. 98, Sale-
Leaseback Accounting. Therefore, the net proceeds from the sale have been recorded as a financing obligation.
Payments under the lease are treated as interest expense with an appropriate per annum inflation based on the
consumer price Ihdex (3.2% during 2005) and a reduction {or increase, if appiicable} of the financing obligation. A
sale will be recognized when the Corporation's option to repurchase expires. The land involved in this fransaction
has a cost basis of approximately $2,983,000 and is included in land and land improvements on the balance sheet.

As required by the related agreement, the Corporation has $800,000 held in escrow related to the sale-leaseback of
the land to be used for additional environmental costs, if necessary. This amount is included with investments and
assets limited as to use - extemally designated under lease agreement on the consolidated balance sheet at

June 30, 2005,
152
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Finan¢ial Statements

Note 7. Notes Payable and Long-Term Debt

During 2003, the Corporation issued an uncollateralized demand note payable o the Sisters of Mercy in the amount
of $2,075,000 and a note payable to Resurrection Health Care (an unrelated party) in the amount of $1,000,000.
These notes were issued to provide additiona! working capital to the Corporation. Both notes are non-interest
bearing. The outstanding balance on the note to the Sisters of Mercy was $2,075,000 as of June 30, 2005 and 2004.
The outstanding balance on the note to Resurrection Health Cere as of June 30, 2004 was $542,549. The note was

paid during the year ended June 30, 2005.

Long-term debt is summarized as follows at June 30:

lllinols Heaith Faclities Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Sefies 1992, paid during 2005
lllinois Health Facilities Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds,
Serias 1996, paid during 2005
General Electric Capital Corporation, $2,150,000 note
bearing interest at 5.5%, payable in monthly instaliments
of $29,982, with final instaliment due January 1, 2007
JPMorgan Chase Bank:
$12,000,000 promissory note, bearing interest at the prims
rate (6.25% at June 30, 2005) minus 0.75%, interest payable
quartery, principal due April 15, 2008
§8,000,000 promissory note, bearing interest at the prime rate
(6.25% at June 30, 2005) minus 0.75%, payable in
quarterly installments of $100,000 plus Interest, with
a final payment due Apnl 15, 2008
$5,000,000 promissory note, bearing interest at the prime rate
{6.25% at June 30, 2005) minus 0.75%, interast payable
quarterly, principal due April 18, 2006
Capital Source Financa, $20,000,000 revolving line of credit,
bearing interest at an annual rate of LIBOR (3.3%% at
Juna 30, 2005) pius 3.5%, expires Apnl 15, 2008
One-time overadvance on Capital Source Finance, $20,000,000
revolving line of credit, bearing interest at an annua rate
of LIBOR (3.39% at June 30, 2005} plus 4.5%, payable in
monthly instaliments of $139,698 plus interest, with final
instaliment due October 2006 .
Other

Less unamortized discount

Lass:
Current portion
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2005 2004
$ - § 41,195,000
- 17,145,000
909,544 1.211,577
12,000,000 -
8,000,000 -
5,000,000 -
11,833,641
2,514,568 -
- 33,933
40,257,753 59,551,577
(364,836}

40,257,753 59,186,741
(7,442,634} (4,068,651)

§ 32815119 § 55118090
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Mercy Heaith System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 7. Notes Payabie and Long-Term Debt (continued)
Pringipal maturities of long-term debt al June 30, 2005 are as follows:

Year ending June 30,
2006 § 7442634
2007 1,807,177
2008 : 31,007,942

§ 40257753

On Abpril 18, 2005, the Corporation issued notes payable to JPMorgan Chase Bank in the amounts of $12,000,000,
$8,000,000 and $5,000,000 under separate loan agreements. The proceeds were used in connection with the
refunding of the Series 1992 and 1996 Revenue Bonds. On April 15, 20085, the Corporation also entered into a
Revolving Credit and Security agreement with Capital Source Finance, an asset-based lender. The proceeds of the
revoiving fine were used to refund the Series 1992 and 1996 Revenue Bonds.

Certain proceeds from the issuance of the notes wers used to pay the principal and interest outstanding on a portion
of the Series 1996 Revenue Bonds on April 15, 2005. Certain proceeds from the Issuance of the notes were also
placed in an imevocable escrow account and invested in govemment securities, which, with interest thereon, were
sufficient to pay the principal and interest outstanding on the Series 1392 Revenue Bonds on May 16, 2005. .
Proceeds have also been placed in an imevocable escrow account and invested in govemment securities, which, with
interest thereon, will be sufficient to pay the principal and interest outstanding on the remainder of the Series 1996
Revenue Bonds con January 1, 2006. At June 30, 2005, $1,667,204 in principal and interest on advance refundsd
Series 1996 Revenue Bonds, which are considered extingulshed and removed from the balance sheet, remain =~
outstanding. As a result of this transaction the Corporation recognized a $978,534 nonoperating loss on advance
refunding. o

The terms of the new loan agreements require that the Corporation maintain a totat of $15,812,500, plus accrued
interest, in two secured accounts with a bank. At June 30, 2005, the Corporation held approximately 15,900,000 in
these secured accounts. One of the secured accounts, in the amount of $3,812,500, is designated for liability claims.
This amount is included with investments and assets limited as to use on the consolidated balance shest at June 30,
2005. In addition, the.$8,000,000 note s securad by a guarantee by the Sisters of Mercy. The $5,000,000 note is
secured by a mortgage on the Corporation’s property.

The Corporation's accounts receivable, and cerfain other assets, are pledged as collateral under the revolving line of
credit. The amount outstanding under the revolving line of credit at June 30, 2005 Is $14,348,209.

The loan agreements on the notes contain various covenants including those relating to limitations on incuring
additional debt and disposing of property. |n addition, the revoiving credit and security agreement contains
covenants including those relating to financial performance, insurance coverage and timely submission of specified
financial reports. The Corporation was not in compliance with a certain financial covenant required by Capital Source
Finance as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005. Effective January 25, 2006, Capita! Source Finance waived this
covenant vilation through November 7, 2005 and amended this certain financial covenant effective November 8,
2005.

15Y
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsldiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Lease Obligations

Rental expense for alt operating leases totaled approximately $2,635,000 and $2,253,000 In 2005 and 2004,
respectively. Future minimum lease payments under the noncancelable leases and related maintenance agreements
are as follows: )

Year ended June 30:
2006 $ 2,873,000
2007 - 2 562,000
2008 2.476,000
2009 1,253,000
2010 540,000
Theraafter 300,000
S 10.004.000
Note 9. Retirement Plan

The Hospita! sponsored a noncontributory, defined-bensfit pension plan, which covered substantiaily all of the
Hospital's full-time employees, Benefits were based on years of service and the employee's compensation during
the last five years of employment, The Hospltal's funding policy was to contribute such amounts as are necessary {0
provide for bensfits attributed to service to date and those expecied to be eamed in the future, Effective June 30,
2003, the plan was amended to freeze ali benefit accruals. As a result, a curtallment benefit was recorded by the

Hospital.

Effective June 30, 2004, the pian was amended to allow the sponsor to terminate the plan and settle pension
obligations with all plan participants. The plan amendment, which accelerates the distribution of benefits eamed,
resulted in a gain of $3,295,667. The Hospital wilt not receive any future benefit from the plan amendment; therefore,
the gain was recognized during the year ended June 30, 2004, and is classified as & reduction fo salaries and
benefits expanse in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations and changes in net assets (deficiency).
Effective July 1, 2004, the plan was amended to cease commencing distributions, eliminate the annuity forms of
distribution, revise the allocation formula upon plan termination, revise the provision related to payment in the event a
participant or beneficlary is determined to be incompetent, and provide that the plan be terminated effective July 1,
2004. This amendment resulted In a gain of $6,467,781. The Hospital wilt record a pension setilement when the
plan assets are distributed to participants,
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Marcy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8. Retirement Plan (continued)

The Tollowing table sets forth the plan's funded Status and amounts recognized in the accompanying consolidated
balanca sheets at Juna 30:

2005 2004
Change in benefit obligation:
Benefit obligation at beginning of ysar $ 252818 § 29,851,052
Service casl . - -
Interest cost 1,500,299 1,699,654
Pldn amendments {6,467,781) {3,295,667)
' Effect of curtaiiment - -
Actuariaf losses - -
Benefils paid (399,272) {3,050,320)
Benefit obligation at end of year $ 198837865 25,204 613
Change in plan assets:
Fair valug of plan assets at beginning of year $ 19571319 5 21,889,002
Aclual return on plan assets 665,758 732,697 )
Employer contributions - -
Benefit pald ' (399,272) (3,050,320)
Falr value of plan assets at end of year $ 19837865 % 19,57113751__5
Funded stafus of the plan $ - $-  (5633,240)
Unreconized prior service cost (6,253,499) -
Unrecognized net actuarial gain- 6,253,499 5,503,714
Accrued bensfit cost, before additional minimum ffabliity . - (129,526)
Adjustment for additional minimum liabllity , . {5,603,714)
Accrued benefit cost, after additional minimum liability . i - § {5,633 2401
Assumplions:
Discount rate 6.00% 6.00%
Expected refum on plan assets 5.50% 7.50%
Rate of compensation Increase NIA N/A

Due to the impending distributions of plan assets, the plan's assets are 100% allocated fo fixed income investments
as of June 30, 2005 and 2004,

Effective July 1, 2004, the Corporation put in place a noncontributory, defined-contribution pension, which covers
substanfialty all of the Corporation’s full-fime smployees.
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financlal Statements

Note 10.  Professional and General Liabillty Insurance

The actuarially determined self-insurance liability in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets reflects
management's assessment of claims applicable to aif self-insured periods. Accrued malpractice losses have besn
discounted at 6.0% at June 30, 2005. An accrual for possible losses attributable to incidents that may have occuned,
but that have not been identified under the incident reporting system is included in this liability. If accrued
malpractice losses had not been discounted, the estimated liability would be approximately $5,221,000 and
$4,198,000 higher than the amounts recorded in the consolidated batance sheets as of June 30, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. The Corporation had investments available for clalms settiements of $73,220 and $4,910,151 as of

June 30, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Note 19.  Transactions with Related Partles
The following related party transactions have been entered into:

a. The Hospital and the Center entered into transactions with the Sisters of Mercy and other affiliated
corporations under the control of the Sisters of Mercy and participated in trusts sponsored by the Sisters of
Mercy to provide for professional liability claims. In addition, as of June 30, 2005 and 2004 the Corporation
had a note payable to the Sisters of Mercy outstanding In the amount of $2,075,000.

b. The Hospial bills and collects monies for services rendered to the Diagnostic and Treatment {D&T)
Center's patients. In addition, the Hospital charges the D&T Center certain indirect cosls of providing
administrative, financial, and clinical services. These charges totaled approximatety $413,000 in both 2005
and 2004. At June 30, 2005, the Hospital had amounts due from the D&T Center totaling approximately
$235,000 related to these services. The Hospital had no amounts due from the D&T Center at Jurie 30,

2004.

¢. The operations of the D&T Center are dependent on the continued financial and operating support of the
Hospital. Under the terms of the Hospital's management agreement with the D&T Center, the Hospital has
agreed to provide the necessary financial and operating support to the D&T Center for futurs periods.

Note12.  Functional Expenses

The Carporation provides general health care services to residents within Chicago and the surrounding area and
supports medical education programs. The Corporation’s expenses related to providing these services are as follows
for the years ended June 30:

2005 2004
Health care services § 04746182 § 83,882,475
Madical education . 7,816,498 7.911,944
Fund-taising ' - 231832 438,840
General and administrative 81,201,202 66,056,177

$ 184,001,714 § 158289436

Certain amounis have been allocated between functional categorias.
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsldiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 13.  Commitments, Contingencies and Subsequent Event

Medicare Relmbursement: For the years ended Juna 30, 2005 and 2004, the Corporation recognized approximately
$153,003,000 and $158,063,000, respectivaly, of gross patient servica revenues from services provided to Medicare *
beneficiaries. Changes in Medicare reimbursement as a result of the Centers for Madicars and Medicaid Services'
implementation of the provisions of future Medicare legistation may have an adverse effect on the Corporation’s net
patient service revenue,

Medicald Reimbursement: For the years ended June 30, 2005 and 2004, the Corporation recognized approximately
$97 466,000 and $94,868,000, respectively, of gross patient service provided to Medicaid patients. Due to the
Hospital's relatively high Medicaid patient volume, the Hospital receives additional reimbursement of approximately
$13,430,000 in 2005 and 2004 in the form of critical hospital adjustment payments {‘CHAP"), safety net access
payments (“SNAP") and tertiary payments, the majority of which is provided by the ilfinois Medicaid program. The
Hospital also receives disproportionate share and Medicaid High Volume Adjustment amounts as a daily add on for
Medicaid patients. The amount of additional reimbursement from the [inois Medicaid program which will be made to
haspitals in the future is uncertain, and future legistative changes to reimbursements provided to hospitals could have
a matertal adverse effect on the Hospital's operating resufts.

Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program: The Corporation operations for the year ended June 30, 2005 benefited
from Medicaid Hospital Assessment Program (Program) net payments of approximately $4,900,000. A proposal to
continue this Program for three additional years is currently being considered by CMS.

Litigation: The Corporation is a defendant in various Jawsuits arising in the ordinary course of business. Although
the outcome of the fawsuits cannot be determined with certainty, management believes the ultimate disposition of
such matters will not have a material effect on the Corporation’s financial statements.

Requlatory Investigation: The U.S. Department of Justice, other federal agencies and the fiinols Department of
Pubiic Aid routinely conduct regulatory investigations and compliance audits of health care providers. The
Corporation is subject to these regulatory efforts. Management is currently unaware of any regulatory matters which
may have a material effect on the Corporation's financial position or results from operation.

Claim Setflement; Subsequent to year-end, the Hospital setfled a lawsuit for the amount of $3,300,000. Of this
amount, $1,300,000 is to be paid upon the settiement date. The remaining $2,000,000 is to be paid in three annual
instaflments of $666,666.66 on August 1 of 2006, 2007 and 2008. The Hospita! intends to fund the settiement with
cash from operations. AtJune 30, 2005, the seftiement amount was included in professional liability on the
consolidated balance sheet.
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidiaries

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemants

Note 14.  Fair Value of Financlal Instruments

The following methods and assumptions were used by the Corporation to estimate the fair value of other finanglal
instruments: :

The camying value of cash and cash equivalents, patient accounts receivables and other assets, accounts payable,
accrued expenses and estimated setlements due to or from third-party payors are reasonable estimates of their
value due to the shor-tsrm nature of these financiat instruments.

The fair value of Investments and assets limited as to use, which are the amounts reported on' the balance sheet, is
based on quoted market prices.

The fair vaiue of long-term debt is estimated based on interest rates for the same or similar debt offered to the
Corporation having the same or similar remaining maturities and collateral requirements. The fair value of the long-
term debt approximates the carrying values.
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McGladrey &Pullen

Certified Public Accountants

independent Auditor's Report on Supplementary Information

To the Board of Directors
Mercy Health System of Chicago
Chicago, lllinois

Qur audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic consolidated financial statements takenas a
whole. The consolidating informetion is presented for purposes of additional analysis of the basic consolidated
financial statements rather than to present the financial pesition and results of operations of the individuai entities.
The consolidating information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
consolidated financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic

consolidated financial statements taken as a whole,
%ﬂ:’% / /A',%:.L/ £ L™

Chicago, lllinois
December 2, 2005, except for the last paragraph of Note 7,
&5 {o which the date is January 25, 2006

1o

MeGtadrey & Pulien, LLP 5 a member firm of RSM Imtematianat,
2 i ofsoprte am dapendent gal e, ATTACHMENT FINANCIALS
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Mercy Health System of Chicago and Subsidlarles
Consclidating Statement of Operations

Year Ended June 30, 2005
Mercy Mercy Mercy
Hea'th Hospital and Health Care Mercy
System of Medical Rehabllitation  Foundation, Consalidatad
Chicago Center Center Ing. Efiminations Totals
Ravenus!
Net patient service revenus $ - $ 169628548 3 - 3 - % - § 189,628 548
Medicald hospltal assessment revenue - 11,679,718 - - - 11,679,718
Capitallon revenue - 1,337,213 - - - 1.337,.213
Contributions - 213,590 - 3442 (270,000) 315,032
Other - 4,117,204 - 1,174 - 4,118,378
Net assets released from rastriction - used for operalions - 138,883 - 506,644 - 645537
: - 187,115,166 - 879,260 (270,000} 187,724 426
Expenses:
Salaries and benefits 86,451,736 - 161,662 - 86,613,397
Supplies : - 25,527,134 - 3,753 - 25,530,887
insurance - 5,741,054 - - - 5,741,054
Depreciation and amartization - 8,417,128 - 2,802 - 18,419,830
Provision for uncdllectible accounts - 13,811,980 - - - 13,811,900
Interest - 3,725,498 - 3,725,496
Professional feas 5,375,728 - - - 5,375,728
Repalrs, utilttites and rent - 10,595,927 - 35,351 - 10,631,278
Purchased services - 13,585,570 - 3,745 - 13,569,315
Medicald hospital assessment expense - 6,779,214 - - - 6,779,314
Other - 3,553,917 875 488,733 (270,000} 3,783,325
- 183,564,993 675 706,046 {270,000 184,001,714
Income (loss) from operations - 3,550,173 {675) 173,214 - 3,722,712
Nonaperating income (expense): )
Gain on sale of property and equipment - 45,324 - - - 45,324
Investment incqma 197 | 1,475,154 2977 66,084 - 1,544,392
Loss on advance refunding - {878,534) - - - (978,534)
Other : - (30,000} - - - {30,000}
Excess of revenue over expenses 197 4,062,117 2,302 239,278 4,303,&94
Unrastricted net aseets:
Change In mirimum penslen llzbllity - 5,503,714 - - 5,503,714
Increase unrealized net assets $ 197 $§ 9565831 % 2302 % 239278 % S 9.8075608
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